
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

MARCH 2, 2009 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

   

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are outcome statements for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with 
these goals. 
 

Outcome Statements 

 
I. Troy enhances the health and safety of the community 

 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure 

and quality of life venues 

 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community 

in a changing and interconnected world 

 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

March 2, 2009 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Pastor Cliff Lambert – Woodside Bible 

Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Legislative Update from State Representative Marty Knollenberg ....................... 1 

b) Portia Fields-Anderson will present the Michigan Recreation and Park 
Association Recreation Leadership Award to Carla Vaughan .............................. 1 

c) Certificate of Appreciation to the City of Troy from Clinton River Watershed 
Council for Continued Support and Membership .................................................. 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions 1 

C-2 Liquor Violations – SDD & SDM 2 

a) Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid #2731) ................................................... 3 
b) Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy (dba: Rite Aid #4305) .............................................. 4 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

   

c) 7-Eleven, Inc. (dba: 7-Eleven) .............................................................................. 5 
d) Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8162).................................................... 6 

e) ADI Realty, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8242) ...................................................... 7 
f) MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market) .......................................................................... 8 

g) K-Mart Corporation (dba: Big K-Mart No. 4082) ................................................... 9 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 10 

D-1 No Postponed Items 10 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 11 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 11 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Board of 
Review b) City Council Appointments:  Employee Retirement System Board of 
Trustees and Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust and Liquor Advisory 
Committee 11 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations:  None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations: Historic District 
Study Committee 12 

E-3 Authorization to Negotiate Contract for Emergency Medical Services 13 

E-4 PEG Channel Protection in Response to FCC Public Notice DA 09-203 (CSR-
8126, CSR-8127, CSR-8128, MB Docket No. 0913) 14 

E-5 Possible Tree Ordinance Revisions 14 

E-6 Cost Sharing Agreement for Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Facility 
Professional Engineering and Design Services 14 

E-7 Confirmation of Interim Appointment; Deputy Police Chief Gary Mayer as Acting 
Police Chief 15 

E-8 City Manager Resignation 15 

CONSENT AGENDA: 15 



 

 

   

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 15 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 16 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 16 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 16 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 16 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement – Emergency Radio P25 Equipment Enhancement ......................... 16 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 09-2 – 
2008-09 Sanitary Sewer Extensions .................................................................. 16 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 
Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products – City Golf Courses ................... 17 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement – 911 – Customer Premise Equipment (CPE) ................................. 18 

F-5 Application to Transfer SDD License to Kroger Co. of Michigan – 1237 N Coolidge18 

F-6 Application to Transfer SDD License to Kroger Co. of Michigan – 2105 W South 
Blvd 19 

F-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Dunham 
Capital Management, LLC – Section 28 – Sidwell #88-20-28-101-066 20 

F-8 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – NH Motel 
Enterprises, Inc. – Section 9 – Sidwell #88-20-09-151-004 20 

F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Giulio and Janice E. Grupido – 
Section 27 – Sidwell #88-20-27-351-016 20 

F-10 Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements – Quattro Development 
Company, LLC – Section 15 – Sidwell #88-20-15-428-015, -016, and -017 21 

F-11 Request for Acceptance of a Quit Claim Deed – 1075, LLC – Section 34 – Sidwell 
#88-20-34-226-044 21 

F-12 Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 21, 2009 21 



 

 

   

F-13 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 
#26 – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-019 – Halle Properties, LLC 21 

F-14 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit – Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to 
Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #12 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-023 – 
5J’s Investment, LLC 22 

F-15 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to 
Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #22 – Sidwell #88-20-14-352-001 – 
Maya’s Meadows Condominium Association 22 

F-16 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 
Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #44 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-044 – Carlton P. 
Ostdiek Trust and Karen A. Ostdiek 23 

F-17 Request for Public Hearing on March 23, 2009 for Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2006 Reprogramming of Funds 23 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 23 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 23 

a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 234) – Article 28 – 
Automobile Repair in M-1 – March 23, 2009 ...................................................... 23 

b) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 235) – Article 3 – 
Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use 
Approval Applications – March 23, 2009 ............................................................ 23 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted 24 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 24 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 24 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 24 



 

 

   

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 24 

REPORTS: 24 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 24 

a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – February 13, 2008............................ 24 
b) Historic District Commission/Final – September 29, 2008 .................................. 24 
c) Library Advisory Board/Final – October 2, 2008 ................................................. 24 
d) Historic District Commission/Final – October 21, 2008 ...................................... 24 
e) Historic Commission/Final – October 28, 2008 .................................................. 24 

f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final Amended – 
November 12, 2008 ............................................................................................ 24 

g) Library Advisory Board/Final – November 13, 2008 ........................................... 24 
h) Historic District Commission/Final – November 18, 2008 ................................... 24 
i) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – November 20, 2008 ................... 24 
j) Historic District Commission/Final – December 16, 2008 ................................... 24 

k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – January 6, 2009 ...................................... 24 
l) Library Advisory Board/Final – January 11, 2009 ............................................... 24 

m) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 14, 2009 ... 24 
n) Historic District Commission Minutes/Final – January 20, 2009 ......................... 24 
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 27, 2009 ......................... 24 

p) Library Advisory Board/Final – February 3, 2009 ............................................... 24 
q) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 3, 2009 .......................... 24 

r) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 4, 2009 ................................ 24 
s) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Minutes/Draft – February 10, 2009 ..................... 24 

t) Planning Commission/Draft – February 10, 2009 ............................................... 24 
u) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – February 25, 2009 ........................... 24 

J-2 Department Reports: 24 

a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services 
– January 2009 ................................................................................................... 24 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 24 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Cindy Stewart from Wolf Den Pack 1707 Regarding 
the Presentation at Troy Union Elementary School ............................................ 24 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 24 

J-5 Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding  
Notice of Hearing for the Electric Delivery and Supply Customers of The Detroit 
Edison Company – Case No. U-15751 25 



 

 

   

J-6 Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Federal Aid 
Funding for Major Roads – Stimulus Plan and FY 2013 25 

J-7 Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Kocenda v. Troy 
et. al. 25 

STUDY ITEMS: 25 

K-1 Discussion of Interim Appointment of an Acting City Manager and Recruitment 
Process for City Manager 25 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 25 

CLOSED SESSION: 25 

L-1 Closed Session 25 

RECESSED 26 

RECONVENED 26 

ADJOURNMENT 26 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 26 

Monday, March 23, 2009 ......................................................................................... 26 

1. Standard Resolution #4 – Asphalt Paving of Florence Street in Section 9 – 
Project No. 08.108.1 ........................................................................................... 26 

2. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 234) – Article 28 – 
Automobile Repair in M-1 ................................................................................... 26 

3. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 235) – Article 3 – 
Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use 
Approval Applications ......................................................................................... 26 

4. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2006 
Reprogramming of Funds (pending approval) .................................................... 26 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 26 

Monday, March 23, 2009 Regular City Council ..................................................... 26 
Monday, March 30, 2009 Regular City Council ..................................................... 26 
Monday, April 6, 2009 Regular City Council .......................................................... 26 

Monday, April 20, 2009 Regular City Council ........................................................ 26 



 

 

   

Monday, April 27, 2009 Special Study Session – Budget ...................................... 26 
Monday, May 4, 2009 Special Study Session – Budget ........................................ 26 

Monday, May 11, 2009 Regular City Council ........................................................ 26 
Monday, May 18, 2009 Regular City Council ........................................................ 26 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Pastor Cliff Lambert – Woodside 

Bible Church 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) Legislative Update from State Representative Marty Knollenberg  

b) Portia Fields-Anderson will present the Michigan Recreation and Park Association 
Recreation Leadership Award to Carla Vaughan  

c) Certificate of Appreciation to the City of Troy from Clinton River Watershed Council for 
Continued Support and Membership 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AFFIRMS the Michigan NextEnergy Exemption of 
Alternative Energy Personal Property located at 1100 W. Maple, and 1857 Technology Drive, 
Troy, MI, as certified by the City Assessor, in an amount not to exceed $1,970,456.31, a copy 

of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 2 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution and attachments to the Michigan NextEnergy Authority at 300 
N. Washington Square, Lansing, MI 48913. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

C-2 Liquor Violations – SDD & SDM 

 
The following named licensees have been given notice to appear for this series of Public 
Hearings regarding alleged violations: 
 

a) Name:  Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid #2731) 
  Address: 1981 W. South Blvd., 48098 
  License No.: SDM (78430-2008)  

 
b) Name:  Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy (dba: Rite Aid #4305) 

  Address: 2971 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: SDD/SDM (10077-2008 SS)  
 
 c) Name:  7-Eleven, Inc. (dba: 7-Eleven) 

  Address: 1650 Crooks Road, 48084 
  License No.: SDD (18175-2007 SS); SDM (14683-2007)  
 

 d) Name:  Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8162) 
  Address: 2045 W. South Boulevard, 48098 
  License No.: SDM (0815-2008)  

 
 e) Name:  ADI Realty, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8242) 

  Address: 4963 John R, 48085 
  License No.: SDM (73139-2007)  

 
f) Name: MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market) 

  Address: 4835 John R, 48085 
  License No.: SDD (134567-2008 SS); SDM (134568-2008)  
 

g) Name:  K-Mart Corporation (dba: Big K-Mart No. 4082) 
  Address: 100 E. Maple Road, 48083 
  License No.: SDM (172382-2008) 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 3 - 

 

a) Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid #2731) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy:  
 

 Name:  Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid #2731) 
  Address: 1981 W. South Blvd., 48098 
  License No.: SDM (78430-2008)  

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 21, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, The licensee has had prior violations dated: June 19, 2003 - SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); February 28, 2002 - SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, HAS 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 78430-2008 in the name of Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. in the City of Troy), to 
have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS or 

TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department within 
90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

b) Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy (dba: Rite Aid #4305) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name:  Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy (dba: Rite Aid #4305) 
  Address: 2971 W. Maple Road, 48084 

  License No.: SDD/SDM (10077-2008 SS)  
 

WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

SALE TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test) on October 10, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, The licensee has had prior violations dated: September 25, 2001 - SALE TO 
MINOR (Compliance Test); October 27, 1999 - SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); June 25, 
1992 - SALE TO MINOR; February 6, 1992 - SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); October 4, 
1991 – SALE TO MINOR; August 2, 1991 – SALE TO MINOR; October 26, 1989 – SALE TO 
MINOR (Compliance Test); March 3, 1989 – SALE TO MINOR (Controlled Buy); August 22, 1981 
– SALE TO MINOR; August 22, 1981 – SALE TO MINOR; and  
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 5 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM/SDM 
License Number 10077-2008 SS in the name of Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy in the City of 
Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor 

TIPS or TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department 
within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

c) 7-Eleven, Inc. (dba: 7-Eleven) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 
  Name:  7-Eleven, Inc. (dba: 7-Eleven) 

  Address: 1650 Crooks Road, 48084 
  License No.: SDD (18175-2007 SS); SDM (14683-2007)  

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test) on February 21, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: February 11, 2006 – SALE TO 
MINOR (LCC Investigation); June 25, 2002 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); October 
23, 1987 - SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); November 24, 1985 – SALE TO 
INTOXICATED PERSON; February 26, 1983 – SALE AFTER HOURS; September 26, 1981 – 
SALE TO MINOR; April 17, 1981 – SALE TO MINOR; December 22, 1980 – SALE TO MINOR; 
and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDD 
License Number 18175-2007 SS & SDM License Number 14683-2007in the name of 7-Eleven, 
Inc. in the City of Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell 

alcoholic liquor TIPS or TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy 
Police Department within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

d) Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8162) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 
  Name:  Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8162) 

  Address: 2045 W. South Boulevard, 48098 
 License No.: SDM (0815-2008) 

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 21, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 7 - 

 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: August 23, 2007 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); May 10, 2008 – MLCC SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 0815-2008in the name of Arbor Drugs, Inc. in the City of Troy), to have all its 
management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS or TAMS trained, 

and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

e) ADI Realty, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8242) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
    
  Name:  ADI Realty, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8242) 

  Address: 4963 John R, 48085 
  License No.: SDM (73139-2007)  

  
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test) on February 21, 2008;  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: May 3, 2007 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); July 25, 2000 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 73139-2007 in the name of ADI Realty, Inc. in the City of Troy), to have all its 
management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS or TAMS trained, 

and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

f) MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 

 
 Name: MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market) 

  Address: 4835 John R, 48085 
 License No.: SDD (134567-2008 SS); SDM (134568-2008) 
  

WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 9 - 

 

 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 21, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had a prior violation dated: June 22, 2006 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 134568-2008 and SDD License Number 134568-2008 in the name of MK2, 
LLC in the City of Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell 

alcoholic liquor TIPS or TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy 
Police Department within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

g) K-Mart Corporation (dba: Big K-Mart No. 4082) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name:  K-Mart Corporation (dba: Big K-Mart No. 4082) 
  Address: 100 E. Maple Road, 48083 
  License No.: SDM (172382-2008) 

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 10 - 

governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on December 30, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated; August 23, 2007 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); June 30, 2004 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); May 17, 2001 – 
MLCC SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); July 25, 2000 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance 
Test); October 28, 1998 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); September 22, 1988 – SALE 
TO MINOR (Compliance Test); November 21, 1986 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 172382-2008 in the name of K-Mart Corporation in the City of Troy), to have 
all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS or TAMS 

trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department within 90 days; 
and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 11 - 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 

brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Board of 

Review b) City Council Appointments:  Employee Retirement System Board of 

Trustees and Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust and Liquor Advisory 

Committee 

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 
appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  
 

(a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 12 - 

 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Review 
Appointed by Mayor (3-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 
 
Borys Potapenko Term Expires 01/31/2012 

 
Yes: 
No: 

 
(b) City Council Appointments  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees &  

Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust  

Appointed by Council 

 
David Eisenbacher - City Council Representative Unexpired Term 04/15/2009 

 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council ( 7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Andrew Kaltsounis Term Expires 01/31/2010 

 
Yes: 
No: 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations:  None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations: Historic District 

Study Committee    

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations – None Scheduled  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 13 - 

 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council  hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Historic District Study Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) Ad Hoc; (2) Historic District Commission; (1) Local Historic 
Preservation Organization 
 Ad Hoc 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 Authorization to Negotiate Contract for Emergency Medical Services  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Police and Fire departments have always maintained a contract for 
emergency medical responder and ambulance service as one of the critical services to the 
community;  
 
WHEREAS, Since 2003 Alliance Mobile Health, our current contactor is the only provider in the 
Detroit area that meets the professional service standards of the Commission on Accreditation 
of Ambulance Services; and   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy and Alliance Mobile Health have a vested interest in continuing a 
mutually beneficial relationship and request to negotiate new contract pricing, terms and 
conditions;   
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and hereby AUTHORIZES the City of Troy to negotiate new contract pricing, terms 
and conditions with Alliance Mobile Health of Troy, MI, to extend the existing Medical First 
Responder Program, and the final contract will be submitted to Troy City Council for final 
review and approval.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 14 - 

E-4 PEG Channel Protection in Response to FCC Public Notice DA 09-203 (CSR-8126, 

CSR-8127, CSR-8128, MB Docket No. 0913)  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to distribute 
copies of this letter in support of preserving the quality and financial viability of Public, 
Education and Government (PEG) channels to our elected representatives in Washington and 

Lansing and hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney to file this letter on our behalf in 
accordance with the requirements set forth by the FCC Public Notice DA 09-203. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-5 Possible Tree Ordinance Revisions  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS staff to draft revisions to Chapter 28 
Tree Ordinance; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECOMMENDS the following 
revisions:   
_______________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-6 Cost Sharing Agreement for Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Facility 

Professional Engineering and Design Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Agreement between the 
City of Troy and the City of Birmingham, which equally divides the cost of Professional 
Engineering and Design Services for the Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Facility; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 15 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Interlocal Service Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-7 Confirmation of Interim Appointment; Deputy Police Chief Gary Mayer as Acting 

Police Chief 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS the appointment of Deputy Chief Gary 
Mayer as Acting Police Chief of the City of Troy as requested by the City Manager. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-8 City Manager Resignation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the resignation of City Manager, Phillip 
L. Nelson, effective March 31, 2009. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 

opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 16 - 

Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03-  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of February 16, 2009 and the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of 
February 18, 2009 as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Emergency Radio P25 Equipment Enhancement                            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase the emergency 
radio equipment enhancement for the Police department from M/A-Com, Inc (Tyco Electronics) 
of Lynchburg, VA, through an Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for an 
estimated total cost of $10,154.40. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 09-2 – 2008-09 

Sanitary Sewer Extensions                            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 09-2, 2008-09 Sanitary 
Sewer Extensions to Superior Excavating Inc., P.O. Box 4290, Auburn Hills  MI  48321 at an 
estimated total cost of $639,200.00; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 17 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the sewer benefit fee 
for the 2008-09 Sanitary Sewer Extensions, as provided for in Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code 
and revised by Resolution #2005-04-189, to be $23,088.87 based on the total cost of the sewer 
extension, including engineering, inspection, testing and contingency, divided by 32 sewer 
leads to existing lots.  
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products – City Golf Courses                            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to purchase seasonal 
requirements of chemicals for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses to the lowest 
bidders meeting specifications as follows: 
           

BIDDERS      ITEMS          
Lesco Inc. of Cleveland, Ohio   1, 14, 32, 33  
 
Helena Chemical Co. of Zeeland, MI  2, 16, 21, 26, 36     
Great Lakes Turf LLC of Grand Rapids, MI.  3, 8, 13, 15, 25, 30, 31 
 
Tri-Turf Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI  4, 6, 9, 22, 35   
 
Crop Production Svc (CPS) of Sunfield, MI 5  
 
Turfgrass Inc. of Novi, MI    7, 10, 11,12,17,19,23,24,27,29 
 
Harrell’s of Lakeland, Florida   18, 20, 28  

 
at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 4, 2009, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring December 31, 2009; 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS bids for Item #34, 
Disarm, and will be obtained using the informal quote process. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 18 - 

 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – 911 – Customer Premise Equipment (CPE)                            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase Plant/CML 
Vesta Pallas 911 Customer Premise Equipment for Police Communications from Advanced 
Wireless Telecommunications Inc (AWT) of Wixom, MI, through an Oakland County 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, contract #2399 for an estimated total cost of $195,105.31, 
plus ongoing annual maintenance and support; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Oakland County will pay a portion of the purchase and 
installation cost directly to the vendor currently estimated at $114,495.15; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon the contractor 
submission of properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all 

other specified requirements, and Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the contract when in acceptable form. 
 

F-5 Application to Transfer SDD License to Kroger Co. of Michigan – 1237 N Coolidge  
     

(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from The 
Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2008 SDD license to be located at 1237 N 
Coolidge, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
Yes:     
No: 
   

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2008 SDD license to be located at 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 19 - 

1237 N Coolidge, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County, from Perry Drug Stores, Inc., and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:     
No:   
 

F-6 Application to Transfer SDD License to Kroger Co. of Michigan – 2105 W South 

Blvd 
     

(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from The 
Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2008 SDD license to be located at 2105 W 
South, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
Yes:     
No: 
   

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2008 SDD license to be located at 
2105 W South, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County, from Perry Drug Stores, Inc., and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:     
No:   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 20 - 

 

F-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Dunham 

Capital Management, LLC – Section 28 – Sidwell #88-20-28-101-066 
     
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for water 
main from property owner Dunham Capital Management, LLC, having Sidwell #88-20-28-101-
066; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – NH Motel 

Enterprises, Inc. – Section 9 – Sidwell #88-20-09-151-004 
     
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for water 
main from property owner NH Motel Enterprises, Inc., having Sidwell #88-20-09-151-004; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Giulio and Janice E. Grupido – 

Section 27 – Sidwell #88-20-27-351-016 
     
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for sidewalk 
from Giulio Grupido and Janice E. Grupido owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-27-
351-016; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 21 - 

 

F-10 Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements – Quattro Development 

Company, LLC – Section 15 – Sidwell #88-20-15-428-015, -016, and -017 
     
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the three permanent easements for 
sanitary sewer for the properties having Sidwell #88-20-15-428-015, -016 and -017 from 
Quattro Development Company, LLC; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-11 Request for Acceptance of a Quit Claim Deed – 1075, LLC – Section 34 – Sidwell 

#88-20-34-226-044 
     
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Quit Claim Deed from property 
owner 1075, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-34-226-044; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Quit Claim Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-12 Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 21, 2009 
     
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

Installation of YIELD Sign on Langston at Kilmer 

    

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the installation of a 
YIELD sign on Langston at Kilmer. 
 

F-13 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – 

Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 

#26 – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-019 – Halle Properties, LLC 
     
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between the Halle Properties, LLC, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 22 - 

22-401-019, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road 
Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $66,300.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $3,700.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $140.00 from Halle Properties, LLC, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-22-401-019; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-14 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and 

Temporary Construction Permit – Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to 

Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #12 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-023 – 5J’s 

Investment, LLC 
     
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public Utility Easement 
in the amount of $3,000.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit in the 
amount of $800.00 from 5J’s Investment, LLC, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-
226-023; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-15 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and 

Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to 

Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #22 – Sidwell #88-20-14-352-001 – Maya’s 

Meadows Condominium Association 
     
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public Utility Easement 
in the amount of $1,500.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit in the 
amount of $300.00 from Maya’s Meadows Condominium Association, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-14-352-001; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 23 - 

 

F-16 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 

Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #44 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-044 – Carlton P. Ostdiek 

Trust and Karen A. Ostdiek 
     
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between the Carlton P. Ostdiek Trust and Karen A. Ostdiek, owners of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-044, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-
way for Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $17,120.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $6,980.00 from The Carlton P. Ostdiek Trust and Karen A. 
Ostdiek, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-044; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-17 Request for Public Hearing on March 23, 2009 for Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2006 Reprogramming of Funds 
     
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Public Hearing on March 23, 2009 
at 7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit for the purpose of hearing public 
comments on reprogramming 2006 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds for 
the payment of qualified resident’s special assessment fees for the asphalt paving of Florence 
Street and the balance reprogrammed to Section 36 Park Project. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   

a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 234) – Article 28 – Automobile 
Repair in M-1 – March 23, 2009  

b) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 235) – Article 3 – Submittal 
Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval Applications – 
March 23, 2009                 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 24 - 

 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted    

 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 

  

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – February 13, 2008 

b) Historic District Commission/Final – September 29, 2008 

c) Library Advisory Board/Final – October 2, 2008  

d) Historic District Commission/Final – October 21, 2008  

e) Historic Commission/Final – October 28, 2008 

f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final Amended – November 12, 2008 

g) Library Advisory Board/Final – November 13, 2008  

h) Historic District Commission/Final – November 18, 2008  

i) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – November 20, 2008 

j) Historic District Commission/Final – December 16, 2008 

k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – January 6, 2009  

l) Library Advisory Board/Final – January 11, 2009 

m) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 14, 2009  

n) Historic District Commission Minutes/Final – January 20, 2009 

o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 27, 2009  

p) Library Advisory Board/Final – February 3, 2009 

q) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 3, 2009  

r) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 4, 2009 

s) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Minutes/Draft – February 10, 2009  

t) Planning Commission/Draft – February 10, 2009  

u) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – February 25, 2009 
  

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – January 
2009 

 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Appreciation to Cindy Stewart from Wolf Den Pack 1707 Regarding the 
Presentation at Troy Union Elementary School   

    

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 25 - 

J-5 Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding  

Notice of Hearing for the Electric Delivery and Supply Customers of The Detroit 

Edison Company – Case No. U-15751 
 

J-6 Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Federal Aid 

Funding for Major Roads – Stimulus Plan and FY 2013 
 

J-7 Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Kocenda v. Troy 

et. al. 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 Discussion of Interim Appointment of an Acting City Manager and Recruitment 

Process for City Manager 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by MCL 
15.268 (e) – Rome Love v. City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 2, 2009 

 

- 26 - 

RECESSED 

 

RECONVENED 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, March 23, 2009 
1. Standard Resolution #4 – Asphalt Paving of Florence Street in Section 9 – Project 

No. 08.108.1 
2. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 234) – Article 28 – 

Automobile Repair in M-1   
3. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 235) – Article 3 – 

Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval 
Applications  

4. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2006 
Reprogramming of Funds (pending approval) 

       

 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, March 23, 2009 ........................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, March 30, 2009 ........................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, April 6, 2009................................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, April 20, 2009.............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, April 27, 2009............................................ Special Study Session – Budget 

Monday, May 4, 2009 .............................................. Special Study Session – Budget 

Monday, May 11, 2009 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, May 18, 2009 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



 

INTEROFFICE MEMORAND UM 

TO: TROY CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: MARTY KNOLLENBERG 

SUBJECT: LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 

DATE: 2/25/2009 

             

 Budget: In January we held the Revenue Estimating Conference where it was 

revealed that we have a $1.4 billion budget hole for Fiscal Year 2010. The 

forecast looks bleaker for Fiscal Year 2011 and beyond.  

 

 Recently the Governor released her budget proposal. It included cuts of about 

$600 million. This included cuts to corrections, education and the arts. The 

governor did propose that local revenue sharing remain flat. 

 

 There has been much discussion regarding the Federal Stimulus plan from 

Washington, D.C. Even though I do not support the plan, I have been able to 

assist Troy in getting their projects on the list of potential stimulus projects with 

the state. This one time money certainly should go towards infrastructure projects 

that create and retain jobs in our local economy. The stimulus money should not 

be used to balance the budget ahead of government reforms.  

 

 Instead of waiting for the federal stimulus money, I have proposed that we need to 

make reforms and cuts in the way that we operate in Lansing. I have re-

introduced House Bill 4080 regarding the elimination of Lifetime Health Care 

Benefits for legislators. I have a promise from the speaker that my bill will come 

up at some point. 

 

 I also introduced House Joint Resolution D which would cut legislative pay for 

missed votes. Last week, following the Governor's State of the State address, I 

did vote for House Concurrent Resolution 3 which would cut all legislative and 

executive state official pay by 10%. 

 

 There has been a lot of discussion about the Michigan Business Tax and the 

surcharge that was passed in 2007. For the record, I did not support either the tax 

or the surcharge. Now efforts are under way to repeal the surcharge - the Senate 

has already passed a bill repealing the surcharge that should be taken up 

immediately in the House. I have co-sponsored several bills in the past and 

currently that would eliminate or alter the MBT and the surcharge. 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



campbellld
Text Box
A-01c



 

 
 
March 2, 2009  
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item – Public Hearing – Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Michigan Next Energy Authority (MNEA) was created by Public Act 549 of 2002.  The 

Authority is charged with certifying alternative energy businesses, and alternative energy Personal 
Property. 

 
Under provisions of the Act, alternative energy Personal Property (as certified by the local 
Assessor) purchased between 2002 and 2011 (since amended to extend to 2013) may be exempt 
from taxation through the process of eliminating all, or some, of the millages levied against its 
Taxable Value. 
 
The Act provides that the local taxing authorities may ‘opt out’ of the exemption process by failure 
to pass a resolution approving the exemption at a public hearing, within sixty (60) days of receipt 
of the MNEA certifying resolution.  (Local taxing authorities include:  Transportation Authority, 
County, Intermediate Schools, Community College, City {township, village}, and Local Schools). 
 
Compact Power and United Solar Ovonic Corp. have received certification from MNEA as 
alternative energy companies.  They have current Next Energy exemptions in Troy.  They have 
applied for further exemptions of Personal Property totaling $1,970,456.31 in Market Value. 
 
United Solar Ovonic Corp. is at 1100 W. Maple.  Compact Power is at 1857 Technology Drive. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 As shown on the attached chart, the City of Troy’s total exempted taxes for the five (5) years 

available to the companies is estimated at $19,529.60, including administration fees.  This 
amounts to $3,905.92 per year. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



These companies have exemptions dating back to the 2005 assessment year.  All exempted 
taxes for the City of Troy, through 2013 now total $101,490.29.  ($ 19,529.60 in 2009; $21,573.34 
in 2008;  $13,018.96 in 2007;  $35,368.39 in 2006;  and $12,000.00 in 2005).  

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations attached to this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This item is in keeping with City Council Outputs: 

R.  Continue to develop active partnerships with other public agencies. 
U.  Utilize available economic development tools and partnerships in order to compete for quality 
businesses. 

     HH.  Develop active partnerships with Troy business community. 
Options: 
 
 City Council may continue to participate in the MNEA program by passing the suggested 

resolution, or City Council may ‘opt out’ of this exemption process by its failure to pass the 
suggested resolution. 

 
 
NL/nl  H:\Next Energy\2009\CouncilPakPH03.02.09 



Taxing Authority Mills

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2009

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2010

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2011

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2012

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2013

Totals

City of TROY 9.2800 4,426.45 3,983.80 3,585.42 3,226.88 2,904.19 18,126.74
Admin Fee Troy 0.3831 98.12 88.31 79.48 71.53 64.38 401.80

Admin Fee Warren 0.3703 244.45 220.01 198.01 178.21 160.38 1,001.06
Transportation 0.5900 281.42 253.28 227.95 205.16 184.64 1,152.45

Oakland County 4.6461 2,216.13 1,994.52 1,795.07 1,615.56 1,454.00 9,075.28
Oakland Intermediate 3.3690 862.86 776.57 698.91 629.02 566.12 3,533.48
Macomb Intermediate 2.9430 1,942.81 1,748.53 1,573.67 1,416.31 1,274.68 7,956.00
Community College 1.5844 755.74 680.17 612.15 550.93 495.84 3,094.83
Troy School Debt 4.1000 1,050.08 945.07 850.56 765.51 688.96 4,300.17

Warren School Debt 3.1464 2,077.08 1,869.37 1,682.44 1,514.19 1,362.77 8,505.86
School Operating Troy 4.6229 1,184.00 1,065.60 959.04 863.14 776.82 4,848.60

School Operating Warren 5.2688 3,478.18 3,130.36 2,817.32 2,535.59 2,282.03 14,243.48
State Education 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Totals by Year 18,617.31 16,755.58 15,080.02 13,572.02 12,214.82 76,239.75

Est'd Taxable Value Troy SD 275,394 256,116 230,505 207,454 186,709 168,038
Est'd Taxable Value Warren SD 709,834 660,146 594,131 534,718 481,246 433,122

Total Est'd Taxable Value 512,890 476,988 429,289 386,360 347,724 312,952

Market Value Exempted Troy 550,788 512,233 461,010 414,909 373,418 336,076
Market Value Exempted Warren 1,419,668 1,320,291 1,188,262 1,069,436 962,492 866,243
Total Market Value Exempted 1,970,456 953,975 858,578 772,720 695,448 625,903

Total Troy Exempted Taxes 5 Years 19,529.60

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Estimated NextEnergy Exempted Tax Calculation - 2009

01/27/09























MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
44001 GARFIELD 
CLINTON TWP MI 48038-1100 

 
UNITED SOLAR OVONIC CORP 
1100 W MAPLE 
TROY MI 48084-5352 

COMPACT POWER INC 
1857 TECHNOLOGY DRIVE 
TROY MI  48083 

DAVE HEIBER 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE #1000W 
PONTIAC MI 48231 

 

PATRICK DOHANY 
OAKLAND CO PUBL TRANSPORT’N 
1200 N TELEGRAPH 49W 
PONTIAC MI 48231-0049 

OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE RD 
WATERFORD MI 48328 

OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
GEORGE A BEE ADMIN CNTR 
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266 

 

MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

WARREN CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS 
31300 ANITA 
WARREN MI 48093-1697 

    

Formatted for Avery 5160 Labels    

    

    

    

    

    



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, March 2, 2009 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider Alternative Energy Personal Property Exemptions approved by the Michigan 

NextEnergy Authority for the following two (2) locations in the City of Troy: 

  

T2N, R11E, of Section 28    United Solar Ovonic Corp. 
1100 W Maple, Troy, Michigan 

 

T2N, R11E, of Section 35    Compact Power, Inc. 
1857 Technology, Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-02a





pallottaba
Text Box

























 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc 
dba:  Rite Aid #2731 
1981 W. South Boulevard  
Troy, Michigan 48098  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDM  

License Number: 78430-2008 

Violation : Compliance Test - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 5/21/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Michael J. Brown 
 Carlin, Edwards, Brown and Howe 
 Carlin, Edwards, Brown & Howe. PLLC 
 Lansing, MI 48919



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-02b



























 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
Rite Aide Discount Pharmacy 
dba:  Rite Aid #4305 
2971 W. Maple Road  
Troy, Michigan 48084  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDD/SDM  

License Number: 10077-2008 SS 

Violation : Compliance Test (DPU) - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 10/2/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Michael J. Brown 
 Carlin, Edwards, Brown and Howe 
 Carlin, Edwards, Brown & Howe. PLLC 
 Lansing, MI 48919



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-02c





























 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
7-Eleven, Inc. 
dba:  7-Eleven 
1650 Crooks Road  
Troy, Michigan 48084  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDD/SDM/SS  

License Number: SDD 18175-2007 SS; SDM 14683-2007 

Violation : Compliance Test (DPU) - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 2/21/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Elaine Murphy Pohl 
 Kupelian, Ormond & Magy, PC 
 25800 Northwestern Hwy. - Suite 950 
 Southfield, MI 48075



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-02d















pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box















 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
Arbor Drugs, Inc. 
dba:  CVS Pharmacy #8162 
2045 W. South Boulevard  
Troy, Michigan 48098  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDM  

License Number: 0815-2008 

Violation : Compliance Test - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 5/21/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Attorney: Contact not on file. 



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-02e















pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box











 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
ADI Realty, Inc. 
dba:  CVS Pharmacy #8242 
4963 John R  
Troy, Michigan 48085  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDM  

License Number: 73139-2007 

Violation : Compliance Test (DPU) - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 2/21/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Attorney: Contact not on file. 



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-02f





















 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
MK2, LLC 
dba:  Lucky's Market 
4835 John R  
Troy, Michigan 48085  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDD/SDM/SS  

License Number: SDD 134567-2008 SS; SDM 134568-2008 

Violation : Compliance Test - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 5/21/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Attorney: Contact not on file. 



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-02g































 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
K-Mart Corporation 
dba:  Big K-Mart No. 4082 
100 E. Maple Rd.  
Troy, Michigan 48083  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDM  

License Number: 172382-2008 

Violation : Compliance Test - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 12/30/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Attorney: Contact not on file. 



 

 
                            
February 17, 2009 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM:   Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
   William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 

SUBJECT: Authorization to Negotiate Contract for Emergency Medical Services  
 

Background 

 Alliance Mobile Health (AMH) has provided emergency medical responder and ambulance service to the 
City for the past 5 years. 

 The existing contract expires in September 2009.  

 AMH has consistently met or exceeded the performance requirements for this service for over 60 months. 

 AMH is the only ambulance service accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Ambulance Services 
in the Detroit area. This is independent agency that evaluates EMS/ambulance providers and awards 
accreditation to those that meet or exceed nationally recognized standards.  

 AMH is the only EMS provider with its base of operations in Troy which provides additional resources 
during periods of peak service demand. 

 AMH provides additional value added services such as the clinical social worker program to assist patients 
with special needs to access appropriate community resources.   

 Continuing to contract with AMH for EMS services will maintain the high level of service and eliminate 
issues associated with continuity of service when changing providers.  

 As a result of City management’s review of the level of emergency care needed, AMH is the only provider 
that meets those professional service standards; therefore no benefit would be derived from soliciting 
formal bids. 

 

Financial Considerations 

 The current contract allows for rate increases for first responder services in accordance with the Consumer 
Price Index Inflation Calculator, not-to-exceed 3% per year.  Staff anticipates rate increases can be 
lowered or eliminated through negotiations.   
 

Legal Considerations 

 Bids for professional services are being waived in accordance with City Charter and Code. 
 

Policy Considerations 
This effort addresses the following Council outcome statement: 

 Troy enhances the health and safety of the community 
 

Options 

 City management recommends staff be authorized to negotiate contract pricing, terms and conditions with 
Alliance Mobile Health of Troy, MI, to extend the existing Medical First Responder program.  Final contract 
will be brought back to City Council for review and approval. 

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Regular Business – EMS Contract Negotiation 11.08.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



Page 1 of 5 
 

 

 
 
February 24, 2009 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: PEG Channel Protection in response to FCC Public Notice DA 09-203 
  (CSR-8126, CSR-8127, CSR-8128, MB Docket No. 0913)   
 
The Michigan Municipal League has recently brought to light a public notice from the 
Federal Communications Commission (FCC) for seeking comments regarding our 
Public, Education, and Governmental (PEG) programming by March 9, 2009.  The FCC 
has opened a case on preserving the quality and financial viability of PEG channels.  
The case will be addressing the City of Lansing Petition (CSR-8127) and the Alliance for 
Community Media petition (CSR-8126) which challenge AT&T’s system for PEG 
channels viewed as Internet streaming videos and other problems, and the 
Dearborn/Meridian Township petition (CSR-8128) asking Comcast to preserve the 
existing locations of our PEG channels, instead of moving them to the 900 channel 
series.  
 
This is a nation-wide issue and it is of vital importance that we let the FCC know about 
the value and commitment of our PEG channels and the benefits these programs 
provide to the community. The fear is that if we do not make our comments known to the 
FCC, our inaction will be interpreted as an indifference to the viability of our PEG 
programming.  
 
In Troy, we have very successful government, education and public PEG programming 
channels, WTRY, TSTV and CMN, respectively.  These PEG stations provide a myriad 
of essential public service programs and resources to the community.  Our local PEG 
stations and PEG funding provide equipment used to produce special programs like the 
MLK Day Celebration of Freedom, Talking History series, Christmas Tree Lighting 
Ceremony, Troy Daze Concerts, Spotlight on Troy, Troy Library and Troy Museum 
concerts and lectures.  We also produce educational programs, interviews and coverage 
of City Council, Planning Commission, and other Board Meetings. The School District 
produces programs on their sporting events, school concerts, special events and the 
School Board Meetings. CMN has a variety of programs and interviews on a wide range 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04



Page 2 of 5 
 

of topics related to business and recreation.  These are just some of the many 
community-oriented programs that the residents and businesses of Troy rely on to keep 
abreast of what’s happening in the community. Additional information regarding the 
quality of Troy PEG programming information can be found at the following locations on 
the Internet and video TV services: 
  
Public: http://www.cmntv.org  Comcast channel 52; WOW channel 18 
Education: http://www.troy.k12.mi.us/tstv  Comcast channel 58; WOW channel 15 
Government: http://www.troymi.gov/communityaffairs Comcast channel 53; WOW 
channel 10 
 
The loss of the distribution systems provided by the video cable service providers would 
eliminate our ability to broadcast these community programs. The loss of the franchise 
fee would eliminate our ability to fund these programs and community services. Voicing 
our objections relative to AT&T and Comcast for making it more difficult or expensive for 
our PEG stations to continue these programs or inhibiting access to these programs is 
the main reason for bringing these issues to the attention of the FCC. 
 
Support of CSR-8126 and CSR-8127.  There are several issues with the AT&T U-Verse 
system and the method of distribution of our PEG channels to our residents and 
businesses. AT&T claims it is a better service than commercial channels, but the web-
streaming quality is much less than what the commercial channels are provided.  AT&T 
has made it difficult and cumbersome to select PEG channels as provisioned separately 
from the normal channel line-up and are located in a complex menu selection program. 
It is difficult to switch back and forth between the other channels, or make recordings of 
the programming to a DVR and the service lacks support for closed captioning and other 
SAP features.  

AT&T also has a requirement where each entity and source of PEG programming must 
incur the cost and installation fees for a dedicated communication link for sending the 
programming to AT&T. This means that each public, education and governmental 
broadcast station and at any other location where programs are being broadcast or 
produced, need to have a dedicated communication link to AT&T.  In our community, 
Comcast and WOW both provide the communication links at no cost. The added 
expense in addition to all the other problems, are very distressing issues to deal with, 
especially during these tough economic times.  
 
AT&T's U-Verse video service was issued its first permit for build-out in 2005 and AT&T 
has approximately 40-50% coverage in Troy. Our PEG programming is currently not 
available on the channel lineup. December 2007 we had a meeting with AT&T's Carmen 
Johnson, and technicians Scott Alexander and Galvin Getts. Representatives of WTRY, 
TSTV and CMN were also contacted regarding the many issues and concerns with the 
AT&T solution. During the meeting we discussed the current status of the U-Verse 
project and what is needed to make our PEG programming available on their system 
and how it all works. What we found out during the demonstration of the PEG solution,  



Page 3 of 5 
 

is that PEG programming has been handed a huge disadvantage to public accessibility 
and to add insult to injury, it will cost us thousands of dollars just to be able to broadcast 
low quality streaming video on the new U-Verse system. Commercial quality channels 
are not available to PEG programming. 
 
A summary of the PEG service issues regarding AT&T are as follows:  
 
AT&T U-Verse: 

1. Dedicated T1 and Router for streaming broadcast to AT&T. An ip-based web-
streamed broadcast which meets AT&T’s approved specifications must be 
transmitted via a dedicated Internet connection.  The cost and provisioning of a 
dedicated circuit, with has the minimum specifications similar in scope to a T1, is 
at the expense of the PEG facility. Each PEG facility/studio and any broadcasting 
location will have to provide the same connectivity. For Troy, this means the 
school district station TSTV, the Government Station WTRY, and the Public 
Station broadcasting at CMN will each have to provide their own dedicated T1 line 
and Router.  
 

2. Broadcast Monitoring. At this point in time, the capability to monitor the 
broadcast at City Hall is unavailable as AT&T U-Verse is not yet located in this 
area of Troy.  
 

3. PEG Provisioning. This is not like an ordinary TV station and neither is the 
quality. If you are looking to watch your kids’ soccer or baseball game at 1 pm, 
changing the channel and tuning into the program isn’t as easy as turning to 
channel 10. The AT&T PEG solution is a web-streaming version similar to the low 
quality video you would find on the Internet. All PEG channels from every 
community throughout the broadcast area are on the same menu. Residents 
looking for our PEG channels are forced to scroll through an alphabetized menu. 
Most communities have three channels, so 30 communities could have a listing of 
90 entries altogether. It will take a few minutes to scroll down through all the PEG 
listings. 
 

4. Other issues.  
 It doesn’t allow closed captioning, or a second audio.  
 It’s a computer based software program that handles the customer interface 

and it takes extra time to load the application before it is usable. 
 Incompatible with programmed recording devices like TiVo. If you wanted to 

program your DVR or VCR to record the program, forget about it. 
 Excluded from program guides and listings.  
 Regional availability, coverage and project completion is unknown. 

 



Page 4 of 5 
 

Support of CSR-8128.  On January 7, 2008, the Troy City Council passed a resolution 
asking Comcast to preserve the existing channel locations for our public, education and 
government access channels and that no undue cost is associated with basic access to 
the PEG channels. The resolution also requested that Public Act 480 of 2006 be 
amended to require that the PEG channels not be subject to change unless the written 
consent of the effected governmental entity providing the programming is obtained. 
These actions would be in support of the Dearborn/Meridian Township petition (CSR-
8128). 
 
Resolution #2008-01-009  
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Broomfield 
Approved 6-0  
 
WHEREAS, Comcast Cablevision, is among the companies that furnish or will be furnishing 
cable television subscriptions to residential customers;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy and other governmental entities have committed substantial 
resources to deliver programming on governmental and educational access channels, also 
known as PEG and has participated with other governmental entities in the Community Media 
Network (CMN) and the Intergovernmental Cable Communication Authority (ICCA);  
 
WHEREAS, Comcast Cablevision has indicated that it intends to change the channel lineup and 
location of the public, educational and government access channels (PEG) from present 
locations, where they have been situated for many years, to the channel lineup in the 900’s, 
which will require customers to have a digital converter set-top box, a cable card or a QAM* 
capable television;  
 
WHEREAS, The result is added costs, inconvenience, and confusion with respect to citizens 
who intend to view educational and governmental access channels; and 
 
WHEREAS, Since Comcast’s announcement, many citizens have voiced their opposition to the 
news that Comcast intends to change the location of PEG channels and require customers to 
have a digital converter box to receive the channels; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is resolved that: 
 
1.  Comcast Cablevision is requested to preserve the channel locations for public, educational 
and governmental access channels (PEG) and agree that they will not be changed in the future 
without the written consent of the City or governmental entity or entities which provide 
programming on such channels;  
 
2.  The City of Troy requests that Comcast respond to the questions posed by the Michigan 
Chapter of the National Association of Telecommunications Officers and Advisors in its letter 
dated  November 2007 addressing operational and legal issues related to Comcast’s actions; 
and 
 



Page 5 of 5 
 

3.  The City of Troy requests that Public Act 480 of 2006 be immediately amended to require 
that public, educational and governmental access channels remain at the current locations and 
that the same not be subject to change unless the written consent of the affected governmental 
entity providing the programming is obtained; 
 
4.  The City of Troy requests that ICCA legal counsel explore sections of Michigan’s Public Act 
480 of 2006, for provisions that already exist to potentially assist the City in maintaining the best 
delivery of its programming to Troy residents via the cable TV and video systems.  In addition, 
that ICCA continue talks with local providers, as well as investigate appropriate measures, to 
protect the City’s investment in providing programming for local access channels, as these 
channels are important means of communicating with residents. 
 
5.  Consumers should be informed that they have the option in Troy to change to Wide Open 
West if they have a problem with Comcast’s channel lineup.  Comcast is risking the loss of 
many customers who enjoy the local Public, Educational and Governmental Channels. 
 
6.  Digital broadcast TV will be mandatory starting in February 2009 and many consumers will 
already be purchasing new TVs with digital reception and QAM or converter boxes for digital TV 
and QAM reception during the next year. This will effectively be a one year problem if Comcast 
changes the channel list early instead of waiting until February 2009. 
 
* QAM tuners in televisions enable direct reception of digital cable channels without the use of a 
set-top box. 
 

 
In conclusion, the PEG stations in the City of Troy have a long tradition of producing 
quality programs for the community. They are an instrumental tool for communication 
and education and are the source for genuine local programming for our residents and 
about our residents. Our PEG channels are a critical and irreplaceable resource for our 
community, therefore it is recommended that the Troy City Council be requested to 
approve the following resolution: 
 
BE RESOLVED that the Troy City Council authorizes the City Clerk to distribute copies 
of this letter in support of preserving the quality and financial viability of Public, 
Education and Government (PEG) channels to our elected representatives in 
Washington and Lansing and to authorize the City Attorney to file this letter on our 
behalf in accordance with the requirements set forth by the FCC Public Notice DA 09-
203. 
 
 



 

 
 
February 24, 2009 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Possible Tree Ordinance Revisions 
 
 
Background: 
 
 At the June 5, 2006 meeting, revisions to Chapter 28 (Tree Ordinance) were presented to City 

Council.  City Council postponed indefinitely the resolution to adopt the revisions. 
 At the same meeting, a motion was made to request a special task force be appointed to review 

the proposed revisions.  The resolution failed.   
 At a recent City Council meeting, a council member indicated an interest in revisions to Chapter 

28 (Tree Ordinance) the Tree Ordinance.   
 City Council could direct staff to draft revisions to the tree ordinance with input on the 

revisions/changes to be included. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 If changes to the ordinance are adopted, the ordinance then becomes enforceable on the effective 

date.   
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Changes to the tree ordinance are likely to change policy regarding tree regulations, maintenance, 

and landscape standards for private property owners and developers. 
 Should council want changes/revisions to the tree ordinance, staff requests further information on 

what changes may be desirable. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



Chapter 28 - Tree Regulations 
 

 1 

CHAPTER 28  TREE REGULATIONS 

 

1. Definitions.  For the purposes of this chapter the following terms, phrases, words, and their 

derivations shall have the meaning given herein.  When not inconsistent with the context, words 

used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural number include the singular 

number, and words in the singular number include the plural number.   The word "shall" is always 

mandatory and not merely directory. 

 

 (A) The word "tree" unless the context clearly indicates otherwise also means shrubs, bushes 

and all other woody vegetation.  Specific enumeration herein is illustrative and not 

delimiting. 

 

 (B) The term "public utility" shall mean any person owning or operating any pole, line, pipe or 

conduit located in any public street or over or along any public easement or right-of-way 

for the transmission of electricity, gas, telephone service or telegraph service or any other 

means of electronic communication including the television transmission system and/or 

co-axial C.A.T.V. cable. 

 

 (C) The words "prohibited species" shall mean any tree of the following species: 

 

  1) Acer Disycarpum (Silver Maple)  

 

  2) Acer Negundo (Box Elder)  

 

  3) Ailanthus Altissima (Tree of Heaven) 

 

  4) Berberis Vulgaris (European Barberry) 

 

  5) Catalpa Speciosa (Northern Catalpa) 

 

  6) Juniperus Virginana (Eastern Red Cedar) 

 

  7) Populus (Poplar) 

 

  8) Salix (Willow) 

 

  9) Ulmus Americanana (American Elm) 

 

  10) Ulmus Parviflora (Chinese Elm) 

 

 (D) The word "Department" shall mean the Department of Parks and Recreation of the City of 

Troy. 

 

 (E) "Director" shall mean the Director of Parks and Recreation and any and all employees 

under his direction authorized by him to seek compliance with provisions of this Chapter. 

 

 (F) Provisions of this chapter, except as otherwise specifically stated herein, shall apply only 

to public streets, parkways, parks, and other land publicly owned or controlled by the City 

or to such land privately owned when such land comes within the purview of this chapter 

because of the maintenance or continuation of a hazard injurious to the public in general. 



Chapter 28 - Tree Regulations 
 

 2 

 

2. Responsibility.  The Director shall be charged with the duty of enforcing the provisions of this 

chapter together with his duly appointed representative and employees operating under his 

direction.  The Director shall have exclusive jurisdiction and supervision over all trees, other 

plants, and grassy areas planted or growing in public places. 

 

 (A) Preserve or Remove.  The Director shall have the authority and it shall be his duty to plant, 

trim, spray, preserve and remove trees and other plants and grassy areas in public places 

to insure safety or to preserve the symmetry and beauty of such public spaces. 

 

 (B) Order to Preserve or Remove.  The Director shall have the authority and it shall be his 

duty to order the trimming, preservation or removal of trees or plants on private property 

when he shall find such action necessary to public safety or to prevent the spread of 

disease or insects to public trees and places. 

 

 (C) Supervision.  The Director shall have the authority and it shall be his duty to supervise all 

work done under a permit issued in accordance with the terms of this chapter. 

 

 (D) Issue Conditional Permits.  The Director shall have the authority to affix reasonable 

conditions to the granting of a permit hereunder. 

 

  (Rev. 2-28-77) 

 

3. Permits for Tree Planting, Care, Removal. 

 

 (A) Preserve or Remove.  No person shall trim, spray, preserve or remove trees, other plants 

and grassy areas in public places without first filing an application and procuring a permit 

from the Director. 

 

  1) Application Data.  The application required herein shall state the number and kind 

of trees to be trimmed, sprayed, preserved or removed; the kind of treatment to be 

administered, the kind and condition of nearest trees upon the adjoining property; 

and such other information as the Director shall find reasonably necessary to a fair 

determination of whether a permit should be issued hereunder. 

 

  2) Standards for Issuance.  The Director shall issue the permit provided for herein 

when he finds that the desired action or treatment is necessary and that the 

proposed method and workmanship are satisfactory and that such action is in 

conformance with this chapter. 

 

 (B) Plant.  No person shall plant or set out any tree or plant in a public place without first filing 

an application and procuring a permit from the Director. 

 

  1) Application Data.  The application required herein shall state the number of trees 

or plants to be planted or set out, the location, grade and variety of each tree or 

plant, the method of planting, including the supplying of suitable soil and such 

other information that the Director shall find reasonably  necessary to a fair 

determination of whether a permit shall be issued hereunder. 



Chapter 28 - Tree Regulations 
 

 3 

  2) Standards for Issuance.  The Director shall issue the permit provided for herein  

   when he finds that the proposed plantings conform to the requirements of this  

   chapter.  

 

4. Public Tree Removal.  The Department shall have the right to plant, trim, spray, preserve and 

remove trees, plants and shrubs within the lines of all streets, alleys, avenues, lanes, squares, 

and public grounds, as may be necessary to insure safety or to preserve the symmetry and 

beauty of such public grounds.  The Director may remove or cause or order to be removed, any 

tree or part thereof which is in any unsafe condition or which is prohibited species, or is affected 

with any injurious disease, fungus, insect or other pest.  Whenever the Department shall remove 

any tree, plant or shrub, solely for the purpose of constructing any public work, the Director shall, 

if practicable, replace the same at public expense, at some nearby location by planting another 

tree, plant or shrub, not necessarily of the same type. 

 

5. Duties of Private Owners.  It shall be the duty of any person growing trees within the City: 

 

 (A) Trim.  To trim his trees so as not to cause a hazard to public places or interfere with the 

proper lighting of public highways by the street lights, and so that a minimum clearance of 

any overhead portion thereof shall be eight (8) feet above the surface of the street or right-

of-way.  Said person shall remove all dead, diseased, or dangerous trees, or broken or 

decayed limbs which constitute a menace to the safety of the public.  The City shall have 

the right to trim any tree or shrub on private property when it interferes with vehicular 

and/or pedestrian traffic in public places or the proper spread of light along the street from 

a street light, or interferes with visibility of any traffic control device or sign, such trimming 

to be confined to the area immediately above the right-of-way. 

 

 (B) Treat or Remove.  To treat or remove any tree or plant so diseased or insect-ridden as to 

constitute a hazard to trees or plants in public places. 

 

 (C) Prohibited Species.  To refrain from planting any of the following species: 

 

  (1) Acer Disycarpum (Silver Maple). 

 

  (2) Acer Negundo (Box Elder). 

 

  (3) Ailanthus Altissima (Tree of Heaven). 

 

  (4) Berberis Vulgaris (Eurpoean Barberry). 

 

  (5) Catalpa Speciosa (Northern Catalpa). 

 

  (6) Juniperus Virginana (Eastern Red Cedar). 

 

  (7) Populus (Poplar). 

 

  (8) Salix (Willow). 

 

  (9) Ulmus Americana (American Elm). 

 

  (10) Ulmus Parviflora (Chinese Elm). 



Chapter 28 - Tree Regulations 
 

 4 

 

 (D) Tree Protection Prior to Development.  To prevent the unnecessary destruction of trees on 

land where a building permit or subdivision approval has not been issued, the destruction 

within any five (5) year period, of more than twenty-five (25) percent of the trees on any 

parcel of real property within the City, without prior approval of the director shall be 

prohibited. 

 

  (Rev. 6-5-89) 

 

6. Tree Protection.  For All Trees in Public Places:  No person shall break, injure, mutilate, kill or 

destroy any tree or shrub, or set any fire within ten (10) feet of any tree or permit any fire, or the 

heat thereof, to injure any portion of any tree.  No toxic chemicals or other injurious materials shall 

be allowed to seep, drain or be emptied on, near or about any tree.  No electric wires or any other 

lines or wires shall be permitted to come in contact with any tree or shrub in any manner that shall 

cause damage thereto, and no person shall attach any electric insulation to any tree.  No person 

shall use any tree as an anchor except by special written permit from the Director and no material 

shall be fastened to or hung on any tree.  All persons having under their care, custody or control, 

facilities which may interfere with the trimming or removal of any tree, shall, after notice thereof by 

the Director, promptly abate such interference in such manner as shall permit the trimming or 

removal of such trees by the Department. 

 

7. Tree Protection During Development, For all Trees in Public Places:  During any building, 

renovating or razing operations, the builder shall erect and maintain suitable protective barriers 

around all trees and also for all trees specified to be maintained on private property, so as to 

prevent damage to said trees and shall not allow storage of equipment, materials, debris or fill to 

be placed in this area except as may be necessary for a reasonable time if no other storage 

space is available. 

 

8. Excavations Near Trees.  Excavations and driveways shall not be placed within five (5) feet of any 

existing tree without a written permit from the Director.  Any person making such excavation or 

construction shall guard any tree within six (6) feet thereof with a good substantial frame box to be 

approved by the Director and all building material and other debris shall be kept at least four (4) 

feet from any tree. 

 

9. Covering Surface Near Trees.  No person shall place within the street right-of-way any stone, 

brick, sand, concrete or other materials which will in any way impede the full and free passage of 

water, air or fertilizer to the roots of any tree, except a sidewalk of authorized width and location. 

 

10. Regulations for Planting in a Public Place.  Work done under a permit issued hereunder shall be 

performed in strict accordance with the terms thereof and with the following regulations 

established for the planting, trimming and care of trees in public places: 

 

 (A) Trees must not be less than one inch (1") in diameter of trunk one foot (1') above the 

ground.  

 

 (B) All trees from two (2") to four (4") inches in diameter of trunk one foot (1') above the 

ground must be protected and supported by tree guards. 

 

 (C) All cuts above one (1") high in diameter must be water-proofed. 

 

 (D) All trees will be planted on fifty (50') foot centers, unless a special permit is obtained from 

the Director. 



Chapter 28 - Tree Regulations 
 

 5 

 

 (E) No tree will be planted closer than three and one-half (3 1/2) feet to the curb, and no 

closer than three (3) feet to the sidewalk. 

 

 (F) No tree shall be planted on private property within thirty (30) feet of a tree planted in the 

right-of-way. 

 

 (G) No tree shall be planted within fifteen (15) feet either side of a driveway that opens onto a 

public street. 

 

11. Corner Clearance.  All shrubs and bushes located on the triangle formed by two (2) right-of-way 

lines at the intersection of two (2) streets and extending for a distance of twenty-five (25) feet each 

way from the intersection of the right-of-way lines on any corner lot within the city, shall not be 

permitted to grow to a height of more than thirty (30) inches from the established street grade, in 

order that the view of the driver of a vehicle approaching a street intersection shall not be 

obstructed. 

 

 Trees may be planted and maintained on private property in this area, provided that all branches 

are trimmed to maintain a clear vision for a vertical height of eight (8) feet above the roadway 

surface.  Any person failing to trim any trees, shrubs or bushes in conformity with this section shall 

be notified by the Director in the manner provided in Section 14 of this chapter, to do so and such 

notice shall require trimming in conformity with this section within the time prescribed in the notice 

as provided in Section 14 B of this Chapter.  Upon the expiration of such period, the Director may 

cause the trimming to be done and the cost thereof may be collected from the owner of said 

property as provided for in Section 14 E of this chapter. 

 

12. Private Trees - Disease and Infestations.  When the Director shall discover that any tree growing 

on private property within the City is affected with any dangerous and infectious insect infestation 

or tree disease, he shall forthwith serve a written order upon the person in the manner specified in 

Section 14 of this chapter, describing the tree, its location and the nature of the infestation or tree 

disease, and ordering the person to take such measures as may be reasonably necessary.  Such 

order may require the pruning, spraying or destruction of trees as may be reasonably necessary.  

Every such order shall be complied with within ten (10) days after service thereof, or within such 

additional time as may be stipulated in such order as provided in Section 14 B. 

 

13. Dutch Elm Disease.  Every elm tree, regardless of species or variety, infected with the fungus 

ceratostomella ulmi, commonly called dutch elm disease, shall be removed if on public property, 

within ten (10) days after the Director shall learn of the condition and, if on private property within 

the time prescribed in the order as specified in Section 14 B.  No person shall possess, sell, give 

away or transport any elm afflicted with the fungus ceratostomella ulmi nor any wood from, or 

parts of, any tree so afflicted, except that wood, branches and roots of any tree so afflicted may 

be transported to a place for burning, if first sprayed thoroughly with a solution of sevin 50% 

wettable solution two (2) tbs/gal. in a manner approved by the Director. 

 

14. Procedure Upon Order to Preserve or Remove.  When the director or any one under his 

supervision and control shall find it necessary to order the trimming, preservation, or removal of 

trees or plants upon private property as authorized by this chapter herein he shall serve a written 

order to correct the dangerous condition upon the person. 



Chapter 28 - Tree Regulations 
 

 6 

 

 (A) Method of Service.  Such order required herein shall be served in one of the following 

ways. 

 

  (1) By making personal delivery of the order to the person responsible. 

 

  (2) By leaving the order with some person of suitable age and discretion upon the 

premises. 

 

  (3) By mailing a copy of the order to the last known address of the owner of the 

premises by receipted mail. 

 

  (4) By affixing a copy of the order to the door at the entrance to the premises in 

violation. 

 

  (5) By publishing the order in a local paper once a week for three (3) successive 

weeks. 

 

 (B) Time for Compliance.  Such order required herein shall set forth a time limit for compliance 

dependent upon the hazard and danger created by the violation.  In no case shall the time 

limit be less than ten (10) days, except in case of extreme danger, nor more than thirty 

(30) days.  In case of extreme danger to persons or public property and eliminate or abate 

the hazard or danger and assess the costs to the owner as provided in Section 14(E) of 

this Chapter.  An extreme danger shall be described as any situation or occurrence which 

would cause an immediate danger to the life and limb of any person upon any public way 

within the City of Troy. 

 

 (C) Appeal from Order.  A person to whom such order is directed shall have the right, within 

forty-eight (48) hours of service of such order, to appeal to the City Manager of the City of 

Troy who shall review such order within five (5) working days and file his decision thereon 

with the City Clerk with a copy to the appellant which shall be served in any of the methods 

herein provided in paragraph (A) hereof, unless the order is revoked or modified it shall 

remain in full force and shall be obeyed by the person to whom directed.  No person to 

whom an order is directed shall fail to comply with such order within ten (10) working days 

or such additional time as prescribed in the order after an appeal shall have been 

determined. 

  In case of extreme danger, as described above, the director shall have the authority to 

require compliance immediately upon service of the order which expressly dictates that the 

matter is of extreme danger. 

 

 (D) Failure to Comply.  When a person to whom an order is directed shall fail to comply within 

the specified time, the director shall remedy the conditions or contract with others for such 

purpose and charge the costs thereof to the person to whom the order is directed.  The 

person remedying the condition under a contract made hereunder shall be authorized to 

enter the premises for that purpose. 



Chapter 28 - Tree Regulations 
 

 7 

 

 (E) Lien Against Property.  If the cost of remedying a condition is not paid within (30) days 

after receipt of a statement, therefore, from the City Treasurer, such cost shall be levied 

against the property upon which said hazard exists or existed.  Levying of such cost shall 

be certified by the Director to the City Treasurer and shall thereupon become a lien upon 

such property, and shall be included in the next tax bill rendered to the owner or owners 

thereof unless paid before, and shall be collected in the same manner as other taxes 

against such property. 

 

  (Rev. 6-5-89) 

 

15. Private Trees - Inspection.  The Director and his representatives and employees shall have the 

authority to enter upon private premises for the purpose of examining any trees, shrubs, plants, or 

vines for the presence of destructive insects or plant diseases.  No damages shall be awarded for 

the destruction of any tree, shrub, or plant or fruit or injury to the same, if done by the Director or 

those under his direction in accordance with this chapter. 

 

16. Lawn Extensions.  On residential streets, the abutting owner or occupants may maintain a 

planting strip on the lawn extension between the sidewalk and the street therein in conformity with 

this chapter.  No person shall willfully injure or destroy any grass, flower or tree upon any such 

planting strip or throw papers, refuse, or any other thing thereon.  No person shall drive an 

automobile, bicycle or any other vehicle upon or over any such planting strip. 

 

17. Private Utilities. 

 

 (A) Overhead Lines Trimming Permits.  The Director shall grant permission to public utilities to 

trim and keep trimmed all trees within the streets, alleys, parks and public places of the 

City, in such a manner as shall keep the overhead lines of such public utilities safe and 

accessible.  Such trimming shall be done in accordance with approved practices and 

under the general direction of the Department.  Said permission, as provided for in this 

section, shall require reasonable prior notice to the City before any work is commenced 

thereunder.  Provided, however, that in the event of an emergency requiring immediate 

maintenance work on the overhead lines of said public utilities, prior notice of commencing 

work under said permit shall not be required.  The word "emergency" as used in this 

section, shall be defined to mean the occurrence or happening of an event which could not 

be prevented by the exercise of reasonable care and foresight, which might cause 

damage to the overhead lines of the public utilities. 

 

 (B) Gas Main Leakage.  Gas pipes or mains within any public right-of-way or on any public 

property shall be so maintained as to avoid any leakage therefrom.  In the event a leak 

exists or occurs, it shall be reported to the owner of such pipe and main, and the leak shall 

be repaired within twenty-four (24) hours.  Any damage to trees, shrubbery or grass 

resulting from the escape of gas from a pipe or main shall be repaired, and the cost of the 

work, including the cost of removal and the replacement of any trees, shall be levied 

against the owner of the pipe or main causing the damage. 

 

18. Rules and Regulations.  The Director shall make such rules and regulations supplementary to this 

chapter not in conflict herewith, as he may from time to time deem necessary.  No person shall fail 

to obey any rule or regulation effective hereunder. 

 

 (Rev. 3-26-79) 



campbellld
Text Box
E-06





































 

 
 
                             
 
 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Confirmation of Interim Appointment; Deputy Police Chief Gary Mayer  

as Acting Police Chief 
 
 
In conformance with Charter and Code requirements, I respectfully request your confirmation 
of the appointment of Deputy Police Chief Gary Mayer as Acting Police Chief for the City of 
Troy.  
 
Deputy Chief Mayer has served Troy as the Deputy Chief since October 6, 2007, and as 
Police Captain since January 14, 1995.  The Civil Service Commission has certified Deputy 
Chief Mayer as qualified for this position pursuant to the provisions of Act 78 Police and Fire 
Civil Service System of Public Act 1935, as amended.   
 
As required by the Act, this appointment cannot exceed three (3) months.  The Commission 
has approved the testing process for promotion to Police Chief; that process will begin 
immediately. 
 
I have enclosed applicable Charter and Code provisions relative to this issue; specifically, 
§3.9, §3.11 (c), and §3.13 of the City Charter, and §1 and §1.1 of Chapter 3 of the Troy City 
Code. 
 
As always, please advise if you have questions or need additional information. 
 
 
cc: Charles Craft, Police Chief 
 Gary Mayer, Deputy Police Chief 
 Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 
  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
E-07











 
 
 
To:  The Mayor & City Council 
From: Phil Nelson, City Manager 
Subject: Resignation 
Date:  February 26, 2009 
 
I hereby respectfully rescind my previous resignation and submit my resignation 
as City Manager of Troy effective March 31, 2009.  Thank you. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-08



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 1 - 

Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, February 16, 2009, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Mark Nowak of First Baptist Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a service commendation 

to Bonny Avery recognizing her 32 years of service as a librarian with the Troy Public 
Library. 

b) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a service commendation 
to Wayne Wright recognizing his outstanding service to the community as a member of 
the Planning Commission. 

c) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a proclamation 
congratulating Global LT on its 30th year anniversary. 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

C-1 Standard Resolution #4 – Asphalt Paving of Florence Street in Section 9 – Project 

No. 08.108.1 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public and will 
reopen the Public Hearing under Postponed items at the Regular City Council meeting 
scheduled for Monday, March 23, 2009. 
 
Resolution #2009-02-031 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES action on Standard Resolution 
No. 4, the Special Assessment of bituminous paving on Florence Street, in Section 9, until after 
the continuation of the Public Hearing to be held at the Regular City Council meeting scheduled 
for Monday, March 23, 2009. 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 2 - 

Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

C-2 Street Vacation – Portions of Daley Street Abutting Lots 28 and 33 of Supervisors 

Plat No. 11 Subdivision, South of Big Beaver, North of I-75, Section 26 (File 

Number: SV 148-D) 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2009-02-032 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby VACATES that portion of the right-of-way 
easement, commonly known as Daley Street, which transverses Lot 28 of Supervisor’s Plat No. 
11, which is described below, and which is depicted in the attached Daley Street Vacation 
Sketch, dated February 9, 2009, and designated as Exhibit A; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby VACATES the Public Turn 
Around within the Daley Street right-of-way, formerly reserved in Resolution #2006-11-330, and 

hereby REPLACES it with a Public Vehicular Maneuverability Easement as depicted in the 
attached Daley Street Roadway Easement sketch, dated January 9, 2009, and designated as 
Exhibit B; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the attached Public 
Vehicular Maneuverability Easement, designated Exhibit C; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
this Resolution and the attached sketches designated Exhibit A and Exhibit C with the Oakland 

County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Tim Burns, Oakland County Commissioner-19

th
 District  

David Ashland 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 3 - 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None 

Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Traffic Committee 

 

a) Mayoral Appointments – None Scheduled 
 

(b) City Council Appointments  
 
Resolution #2009-02-033 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council (7 Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Lawrence Halsey Term Expires 01/31/2012 

 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: Board of Review; (b) City Council Nominations: Employee 

Retirement System Board of Trustees; Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 

and Liquor Advisory Committee   

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations  
 
Resolution #2009-02-034 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Board of Review 
Appointed by Mayor (3-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 
 
Borys Potapenko Term Expires 01/31/2012 

 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 4 - 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Resolution #2009-02-035 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  

 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees &  

Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust  

Appointed by Council 

 
David Eisenbacher - City Council Representative Unexpired Term 04/15/2009 

 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council ( 7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Andrew Kaltsounis Term Expires 01/31/2010 

 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-3 Bid Waiver – Integrated Security Management System Expansion Project  
 
Resolution #2009-02-036 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, SimplexGrinnell is an authorized, licensed installer in Michigan of the Andover 
Controls security system;  
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable that the same security system installed at the DPW facility and 
during the Police and Fire building renovation/addition project be expanded to other campus 
and offsite facilities to provide video security and access control;  
 
WHEREAS, The Police Department has remote access to monitor video and alarms at all 
facilities from a central location with compatible equipment and software; and  
  
WHEREAS, Due to the complexity of the system, it is desirable to allow the company who 
programmed and currently maintains the system to expand the application, thus avoiding 
corruption of the programming; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and hereby AUTHORIZES the City of Troy to enter into a contract with 
SimplexGrinnell of Farmington Hills, MI, for labor and materials to install an Integrated Security 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 5 - 

Management System for an estimated total cost of $284,987.00, less a 5% discount of 
$14,249.00, for a net total estimated cost of $270,738.00, in accordance with their proposal 

dated February 4, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-4 Bid Waiver – Professional Services, Police Department Promotional Testing 

Services  
 
Resolution #2009-02-037 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO, Inc. has been providing testing and hiring services for the Police 
department since 1990; and  
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO meets departmental needs, complies with Act 78 Commission 
requirements, purchased all the Michigan Municipal League’s testing services and has proven 
to be fair and impartial; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and hereby APPROVES a contract to provide promotional testing services for the 
Police Department with EMPCO’s Metro Police Testing Consortium at pricing as contained in 
their proposal dated February 9, 2009; 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Manager 
and Human Resources Director to execute this contract with EMPCO, Inc. when in acceptable 
form, which shall remain in effect for a period of two years from the date of certification of the 
eligibility list by the Act 78 Commission. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-5 SDD/SDM Liquor Violation Hearings  
 

b) Proposal to Reschedule SDD/SDM Liquor Violations at a Special Meeting on 

Monday, March 9, 2009 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Kerwin    
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting on Monday, 
March 9, 2009 at 7:30 PM in the City Council Chambers for the purpose of rescheduling public 
hearings and taking action on fourteen SDD/SDM Liquor Violations.  
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend E-5 b) Reschedule SDD/SDM Liquor Violations at a Special 

Meeting on Monday, March 9, 2009 by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2009-02-038 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution E-5 b) Reschedule SDD/SDM 

Liquor Violations at a Special Meeting on Monday, March 9, 2009 by STRIKING it in its entirety 

and SUBSTITUTING it with the following language from proposed resolution option E-5 a): 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCHEDULES seven 
SDD/SDM Liquor Violation Hearings for the Regular City Council Meeting 
scheduled for Monday, March 2, 2009 and seven SDD/SDM Liquor 
Violation Hearings for the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for 
Monday, March 23, 2009. 

 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Kerwin  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Substituted Resolution E-5 a) Reschedule SDD/SDM 
Liquor Violations on Monday, March 2, & 23, 2009 
 
Resolution #2009-02-039 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS substitute resolution E-5 a) Reschedule 

SDD/SDM Liquor Violations on Monday, March 2, & 23, 2009 by INSERTING: “BE IT 
FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Staff to place SDD/SDM 
Liquor Violations immediately following previously scheduled PUBLIC HEARINGS on the 
Monday, March 2, & 23, 2009 agendas”.  
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin   
No: Schilling 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 7 - 

Vote on Resolution E-5 a) Reschedule SDD/SDM Liquor Violations on Monday, March 2, 

& 23, 2009 as Amended 
 
Resolution #2009-02-040 
Moved by Kerwin    
Seconded by Beltramini 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCHEDULES seven SDD/SDM Liquor Violation 
Hearings for the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, March 2, 2009 and 
seven SDD/SDM Liquor Violation Hearings for the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for 
Monday, March 23, 2009. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Staff to place 
SDD/SDM Liquor Violations immediately following previously scheduled PUBLIC HEARINGS 
on the Monday, March 2, & 23, 2009 agendas. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Beltramini   
No: Kerwin, Schilling 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-6 Amendments to Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required  
 
Resolution #2009-02-041 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60 
of the Troy City Code, Fees and Bonds Required, Sections 60.03 and 60.04, as prepared by 
City Administration, with an effective date of March 1, 2009, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-7 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy  
 
Resolution #2009-02-042 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) 
encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the following 
minimum criteria, as authorized by the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198):  
 

1.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) tax abatement shall not be granted 
until there is compliance with MCL 207.559; and  
 

2.  Real property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement, except for those unique 
situations where there are building improvements that are required to support the 
personal property that otherwise qualifies for a tax abatement; and 

 
3.  Leasehold property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement unless applicant is 

responsible for payment of the property taxes, and can demonstrate timely payment of 
property taxes upon the City’s request; and 

 
4.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued for a period or term exceeding 12 years; and 

 
5.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued unless an Applicant will create more than 10 

jobs and/or has a personal property investment of at least $750,000.00, and/or owns 
the underlying real property or has a lease for the underlying property that exceeds 5 
years, as long as two of the three criteria are satisfied. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the use of the 
following matrix to calculate the length of an IFEC tax abatement, where the increase in the 
number of jobs created will increase the term of the IFEC abatement, and similarly the increase 
in the personal property investment and the ownership/lease conditions on the real property will 
increase the term of the IFEC abatement: 
 

 
Tax Abatement Matrix 

  Job Creation Building Terms PP Investment 

 
10 - 24 1 year Own 4 years  $ 750,000  1 year 

 
25 - 49 2 years Lease    $ 2,000,000  2 years 

 
50 - 99 3 years 1 - 5 year None  $ 5,000,000  3 years 

 
100 - 149 4 years 6 - 9 year 2 years  $ 10,000,000  4 years 

 
150 - 199 5 years 10 + year 4 years  $ 20,000,000  5 years 

 
200 + 6 years         

 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the implementation 
of an application fee equal to 2 % of the estimated personal property taxes abated under the 
terms of the IFEC tax abatement, or the actual costs of processing the application, whichever is 
less, and the City of Troy will not charge or collect any other fees for the application, in keeping 
with MCL 207.555 (3).  
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield 
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 9 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-8 Adoption of Revenue Enhancements and Expenditure Reductions  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The nation and the State of Michigan are experiencing an economic recession that 
has impacted all aspects of life;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy, as a result of the recession, is faced with a budget deficit;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has instructed staff to develop alternative revenue sources 
and expenditure reductions that will continue to provide the highest levels of services, but within 
means that do not overburden residents and resources;  
 
WHEREAS, Based on Council’s adopted Outcomes and ranked Outputs, staff has developed a 
listing of revenue sources that provide service enhancements but with costs that are to be 
levied toward direct users of the services; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has developed a listing of expenditure reductions that are designed to reduce 
or eliminate nominal services or programs, but still offer an acceptable level of services to the 
community; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the following lists of 
revenue enhancements and expenditure reductions that will be incorporated in the General 
Fund section of the operating budget: 
 

 Transfer excess special assessment funds 

 Increase DDA direct charges for services offered City staff 

 Implement police arrest booking fee 

 Implement a $1.00 charge on all park and recreation transactions 

 Charge admission to museum grounds 

 Charge non-resident fee for Internet usage at the Library 

 Implement property damage auto crash recovery fee 

 Increase building permit fees by 5% 

 Charge non-profit groups for use of Community Center meeting rooms 

 Increase shelter fees 

 Charge seniors the full cost of all programs 

 Implement auto injury accident cost recovery fee 

 Implement structure fire response fee 

 Implement fire re-inspection and revised plan review fee 

 Implement a fuel surcharge on traffic tickets 

 Implement suspicious fire response and investigation fee 

 Freeze staff positions through retirement incentives and layoffs 

 Eliminate the City calendar 

 Eliminate all irrigation except athletic fields, DDA and City Hall grounds 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 10 - 

 Reduce part-time staff in the parks department by 25% 

 Reduce the number of rights-of-way mowing from 6 to a minimum of 3 cuttings per year 

 Eliminate annual plantings, mulch, street rights of way except DDA and Civic Center  

 Reduce Civic Center maintenance levels 

 Eliminate employee tuition reimbursement program 

 Negotiate hiring part-time in lieu of full-time staff with recognized bargaining units 

 Reduce mowing in parks/public grounds 

 Eliminate family festival 

 Eliminate annual boards and committees appreciation banquet 

 Consider benefits of alternative fuel vehicles 

 Develop and promote energy saving policy 

 Direct city manager and department heads to cut lowest priority services 

 Promote Troy to the film industry to reap the economic benefits 

 Provide fee offsets to fund the nature center 

 Implement business occupancy permit and annual renewal fee 

 Implement a fee for conducting the citizen’s academy 

 Utilize approximately $250,000.00 from the Budget Stabilization Fund 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AFFIRMS that all funds 
generated from revenue enhancements and expenditure reductions shall be used to balance 
the General Fund of the City of Troy Operating Budget. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend E-8 Adoption of Revenue Enhancements and Expenditure 
Reductions 

 
Resolution #2009-02-043 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution E-8 Adoption of Revenue 

Enhancements and Expenditure Reductions by STRIKING “Freeze” and INSERTING “Limit” in 
the bullet point section of the resolution.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend E-8 Adoption of Revenue Enhancements and Expenditure 

Reductions as Amended 

 
Resolution #2009-02-044 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution for E-8 Adoption of 

Revenue Enhancements and Expenditure Reductions by STRIKING “Utilize approximately 

$250,000.00 from the Budget Stabilization Fund” from the bullet point section of the resolution 
in its entirety. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 11 - 

Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
No: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming  
 

MOTION FAILED  

 

Vote on Resolution E-8 Adoption of Revenue Enhancements and Expenditure 

Reductions as Amended 

 
Resolution #2009-02-045 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by  Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The nation and the State of Michigan are experiencing an economic recession that 
has impacted all aspects of life;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy, as a result of the recession, is faced with a budget deficit;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has instructed staff to develop alternative revenue sources 
and expenditure reductions that will continue to provide the highest levels of services, but within 
means that do not overburden residents and resources;  
 
WHEREAS, Based on Council’s adopted Outcomes and ranked Outputs, staff has developed a 
listing of revenue sources that provide service enhancements but with costs that are to be 
levied toward direct users of the services; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has developed a listing of expenditure reductions that are designed to reduce 
or eliminate nominal services or programs, but still offer an acceptable level of services to the 
community; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the following lists of 
revenue enhancements and expenditure reductions that will be incorporated in the General 
Fund section of the operating budget: 
 

 Transfer excess special assessment funds 

 Increase DDA direct charges for services offered City staff 

 Implement police arrest booking fee 

 Implement a $1.00 charge on all park and recreation transactions 

 Charge admission to museum grounds 

 Charge non-resident fee for Internet usage at the Library 

 Implement property damage auto crash recovery fee 

 Increase building permit fees by 5% 

 Charge non-profit groups for use of Community Center meeting rooms 

 Increase shelter fees 

 Charge seniors the full cost of all programs 

 Implement auto injury accident cost recovery fee 

 Implement structure fire response fee 

 Implement fire re-inspection and revised plan review fee 

 Implement a fuel surcharge on traffic tickets 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 12 - 

 Implement suspicious fire response and investigation fee 

 Limit staff positions through retirement incentives and layoffs 

 Eliminate the City calendar 

 Eliminate all irrigation except athletic fields, DDA and City Hall grounds 

 Reduce part-time staff in the parks department by 25% 

 Reduce the number of rights-of-way mowing from 6 to a minimum of 3 cuttings per year 

 Eliminate annual plantings, mulch, street rights of way except DDA and Civic Center  

 Reduce Civic Center maintenance levels 

 Eliminate employee tuition reimbursement program 

 Negotiate hiring part-time in lieu of full-time staff with recognized bargaining units 

 Reduce mowing in parks/public grounds 

 Eliminate family festival 

 Eliminate annual boards and committees appreciation banquet 

 Consider benefits of alternative fuel vehicles 

 Develop and promote energy saving policy 

 Direct city manager and department heads to cut lowest priority services 

 Promote Troy to the film industry to reap the economic benefits 

 Provide fee offsets to fund the nature center 

 Implement business occupancy permit and annual renewal fee 

 Implement a fee for conducting the citizen’s academy 

 Utilize approximately $250,000.00 from the Budget Stabilization Fund 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AFFIRMS that all funds 
generated from revenue enhancements and expenditure reductions shall be used to balance 
the General Fund of the City of Troy Operating Budget. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:04 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:17 PM 
 

Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 

of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2009-02-046 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 

Council, Rule #6 Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City 
Council to discuss and take action on an item that does not appear on the agenda.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 13 - 

Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-9 City Manager Resignation and Next Steps 
 
There was consensus of City Council to take no action on agenda item E-9 City Manager 
Resignation and Next Steps at this time. 

 

a) Proposed Resolution to Accept Resignation of City Manager 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the resignation of City Manager, Phillip 

L. Nelson, EFFECTIVE Monday, March 2, 2009 at 11:59 PM. 
 

Proposed Amendment to Resolution E-9 a) Resolution to Accept Resignation of City 
Manager 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Fleming   
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution E-9 a) Resolution to Accept 

Resignation of City Manager by STRIKING “11:59 PM” and INSERTING “at the conclusion of 
the March 2, 2009 City Council Meeting”. 
 
Mayor Schilling was absent from the City Council Chamber from 9:38 PM until 9:44 PM. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2009-02-047 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item F-4e, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: None 
Absent: Schilling  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 14 - 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2009-02-047-F-2 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of February 2, 2009 as amended. 
 

F-3 City of Troy Proclamations:  

 
Resolution #2009-02-047-F-3 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 
a) Service Commendation – Bonny Avery  
b) Service Commendation – Wayne Wright  
c) Celebrating 30 Years – Global LT 
 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles     
 
Resolution #2009-02-047-F-4a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase one (1) 2009 
Jeep Grand Cherokee for the Police department from Golling Chrysler Jeep, Inc. of Bloomfield 
Hills, MI, through an Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for an estimated total 
cost of $22,514.00. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreements – Fleet Vehicles     
 
Resolution #2009-02-047-F-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES contracts to purchase the following 
2009 vehicles for the Police and Public Works departments: one (1) Ford Taurus, three (3) 
Ford Expedition 4X4’s, five (5) Ford Crown Victorias from Signature Ford of Owosso, MI; one 
(1) Chevrolet Malibu and two (2) Chevrolet Impalas from Buff Whelan Chevrolet of Sterling 
Heights, MI, through Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreements for an estimated 
total cost of $201,800.00 and $52,032.00 respectively. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Traffic Control Signs 

and Posts     
 
Resolution #2009-02-047-F-4c 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 15 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide Traffic 
Control Signs and Posts on a proposal by proposal basis to the four low total bidders as 
follows: Osburn Associates, Inc of Logan, OH, Proposals A-G, and J; Allied Municipal Supply of 
Taylorville, IL, Proposals H and I; Dornbos Sign, Inc of Charlotte, MI, Proposal K and 
secondary supplier on Proposal I; and Vulcan Signs of Foley, AL, secondary supplier on 
Proposal H, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened January 13, 2009, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring 
January 31, 2010. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Service Contract SimplexGrinnell 

Integrated Security Management System     
 
Resolution #2009-02-047-F-4d 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an ongoing proprietary service 
agreement with SimplexGrinnell of Farmington Hills, MI, to provide materials and labor to 
maintain the Integrated Security Management System under the pricing, terms and conditions 
of the Pricing Agreement established for 2009, subject to annual adjustments not to exceed 3% 
in increases, as determined by the CPI for the Detroit/Ann Arbor area, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option–Printing/Distribution 

of Water and Sewer Bills     
 
Resolution #2009-02-047-F-4f 
 
WHEREAS, On May 12, 2008, a one-year contract for the production, printing and distribution 
of the City’s water and sewer bills with options to renew for three (3) additional one-year 
periods was awarded to the low total bidder, American Mailers Inc of Detroit, MI (Resolution 
#2008-05-149); and 
 
WHEREAS, American Mailers, Inc. has agreed to exercise the first of three one-year renewal 
options under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract for the first additional year with American Mailers, Inc. of Detroit, MI, to 
provide production, laser printing and distribution of water and sewer bills, plus the actual cost 
of first class postage, under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring April 30, 
2010. 
 

F-5 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility 

Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 

99.203.5 – Parcel #12 – Sidwell #88-20-23-100-047 – Harold and Carolyn Gronow 
     
Resolution #2009-02-047-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Harold and Carolyn Gronow, owners of property having Sidwell #88-



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 16 - 

20-23-100-047, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road 
Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $77,400.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $2,200.00 from Harold and Carolyn Gronow, owners of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-23-100-047; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-6 Approval of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary 

Construction Permit – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project 

No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #58 – Sidwell #88-20-14-351-084 – Fountain Park Troy 

Association 
 
Resolution #2009-02-047-F-6 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public Utility Easement 
in the amount of $500.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit in the amount 
of $300.00 from Fountain Park Troy Association, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-14-
351-084; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Approval of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary 

Construction Permit – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project 

No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #54 – Sidwell #88-20-15-426-033 – Bharati R. Samanta Living 

Trust 
     
Resolution #2009-02-047-F-7 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public Utility Easement 
in the amount of $7,500.00 from the Bharati R. Samanta Living Trust dated November 6, 1996, 
owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-15-426-033; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 17 - 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Pathways Master Plan     
 
Resolution #2009-02-048 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to develop a comprehensive 
Pathways Master Plan for the City of Troy to the highest rated bidder, Hamilton Anderson 
Associates of Detroit, MI, as a result of a best value process at an estimated cost of 
$40,997.18, plus reimbursable expenses not to exceed $4,450.00, as contained in the contract 
documents; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon consultant’s submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the documents once in acceptable form. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) Michigan Next Energy Exemptions – March 2, 2009   
Noted and Filed 

 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted   
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 Council Comments 
 
Council Member Kerwin requested that City Staff submit a monthly progress report to City 
Council outlining dates, times and milestones in regard to the transit center. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 18 - 

Council Member Kerwin requested City Staff to prepare an informational calendar listing dates 
when City Council can expect revised ordinances to come before them. She is especially 
interested about when City Council can expect the ordinance requirement for trees and 
landscaping. 
 
Council Member Kerwin requested that her Council mail be opened and emailed to her when it 
is received at City Hall. 
 
Mayor Schilling agreed and asked that her mail be opened and emailed to her also. 
 
Mayor Schilling attended Congressman Peters’ event at his office today regarding the Stimulus 
Plan. The Mayor will also be attending another meeting in Rochester Hills regarding the same 
topic. 
 
Council Member Beltramini congratulated the Troy Police Department for receiving the Police 
Traffic Safety Award.  
 
Council Member Beltramini commended the Planning Commission for always keeping the 
public good foremost during their decision making process. 
 
Council Member Beltramini was pleased that the pathways project is moving forward. 
 
Mayor Schilling expressed gratitude to Chief Craft and recognized the many contributions he 
has made during his outstanding career. 
 
Council Member Eisenbacher agreed with the changeover to e-delivery of Council packets. 
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – November 10, 2008 
b) Library Advisory Board/Final – December 11, 2008  
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – January 7, 2009 
d) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – January 7, 2009 
e) Planning Commission/Final – January 13, 2009 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – January 27, 2009  
g) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – January 27, 2009  
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – February 3, 2009 
i) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 9, 2009 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 19 - 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2008  
b) City Council Expense Report – January, 2009  
c) Building Department – Permits Issued July through December 2008  
d) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Year 2008  
e) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of December 2009  
f) Building Department – Plan Review Duration Report  
g) Police Department – 2008 Year End Calls for Police Service Report  
h) Police Department – 2008 Michigan Association of Chiefs of Police Traffic Safety Award  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 

J-5 Communication from Museum Manager Loraine Campbell Regarding Preliminary 

Report to De-List Historic Resource at 5875 Livernois – Sidwell #88-20-09-232-005 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-6 Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Notice of Hearing for the Electric Delivery and Supply Customers of The Detroit 

Edison Company – Case No. U-15768 
Noted and Filed 

J-7 Communication from City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew Regarding Proposed 

Reduction in Preparation and Delivery Costs of City Council E-Agenda Packet  
Noted and Filed 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 16, 2009 

 

- 20 - 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:13 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 1 - 

Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Wednesday, February 18, 2009, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31PM. 
 
Council Member Beltramini gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given.  

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield (Arrived at 8:45 PM) 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak (Absent) 
Mary Kerwin 

OUTLINE OF PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE: 

Under the Laws of the State of Michigan, Council is vested with the authority to take adverse 
action against a liquor licensee that has committed a violation of the Liquor Code or the local or 
state laws. However, prior to any adverse action, the licensee is entitled to a due process 
hearing to challenge the charged violation. For those licensees that choose to challenge the 
charged violation, the following procedure is recommended for the hearing. 
 

1. The Mayor calls the licensee whose case is to be heard. 
2. The licensee and/or his attorney should be asked to the front of the Chamber to 

acknowledge their presence for the record and can be seated. 
3. The Assistant City Attorney makes a very short opening statement regarding the 

violation(s), and presents proofs. 
4. When witnesses are called, they should be sworn by the City Clerk to tell the truth. 
5. Once the witness is sworn, the Assistant City Attorney will question the witness. 
6. The police report and other documents may be offered into evidence as part of the 

case and should be kept by the City Clerk as part of the records. 
7. At the conclusion of the City’s case, the licensee or his attorney should be asked to 

offer an explanation for the violations if they choose, make a statement, offer 
evidence, or otherwise make their presentation. 

8. If the licensee offers evidence from witnesses who have not been previously sworn, 
the City Clerk should swear those witnesses. 

9. Once the licensee has concluded his presentation, the Assistant City Attorney should 
be given an opportunity for rebuttal, if any is desired. 

10. City Council members may ask questions at any time, but it is suggested that this 
questioning by Council members be conducted after the parties conclude their 
presentations. 

11. When the presentation of evidence is concluded, the matter returns to the City 
Council for discussion, deliberation, and resolution. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 2 - 

The following named licensees have been given notice to appear for this series of Public 
Hearings regarding alleged violations: 
 

1.0  Liquor Violations (Class C; Class C Resort &Hotel B):  

 
a) Name:  Tent Restaurant Operations (dba: Bailey’s Pub & Grille) 

  Address: 1965 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: Class C (139298-2008)  
 

b) Name:  Alibi Lounge of Troy, Inc. (dba: Alibi Lounge & Restaurant) 
  Address: 6700 Rochester Road, 48085 
  License No.: Class C (858-2008 SS)  
 

c) Name:  GBD, Inc. (dba: Franco Café) 
  Address: 3614 Rochester Road, 48083 
  License No.: Class C (16886-2008 SS) 
 

d) Name:  Priya Enterprise, Inc. (dba: Priya Restaurant) 
  Address: 72 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: Class C (41130-2008 SS) 
 

e) Name:  Café Sushi, LLC (dba: Café Sushi) 
  Address: 1933 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: Class C (107549-2008 SS) 
 

f) Name:  Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc./RBHV Troy, LLC 
    (dba: Embassy Suites Hotel) 

  Address: 850 Tower Drive, 48098 
  License No.: B-Hotel (75063-2007 SS) 
 

g) Name:  C J Mahoney’s of Troy, LLC (dba: C J Mahoney’s of Troy) 
 Address: 2511 Livernois, 48084 

  License No.: Class C (173579-2008 SS) 
 

h) Name:  Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC (dba: Ocean Prime) 
  Address: 2915 Coolidge Highway, 48084 
  License No.: Class C Resort (169707-2008 SDM) 

 
i) Name:  American Legion Charles Edward Post 14 

  Address: 1340 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: Club (20523-2008) 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 3 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

The following named licensees have been given notice to appear for this series of Public 
Hearings regarding alleged violations: 
 

1.0 Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort; Club & B-Hotel 
 

a) Tent Restaurant Operations (dba: Bailey’s Pub & Grille) 
 
Resolution #2009-02-049 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2009 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
 Name:  Tent Restaurant Operations (dba: Bailey’s Pub & Grille) 

  Address: 1965 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: Class C (139298-2008)  

  
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations dated: October 2, 2008 - 

SALE TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had a prior violation dated: October 23, 2007 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 18, 2009; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 139298-2008 in the 

name of Tent Restaurant Operations in the City of Troy BE RENEWED with the STIPULATION 
that all employees be TIPS or TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide proof of training to 
the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of this resolution be 

SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 4 - 

b) Alibi Lounge of Troy, Inc. (dba: Alibi Lounge & Restaurant) 
 
Resolution #2009-02-050 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2009 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

 
 Name:  Alibi Lounge of Troy, Inc. (dba: Alibi Lounge & Restaurant) 

  Address: 6700 Rochester Road, 48085 
  License No.: Class C (858-2008 SS)  

 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations dated: December 30, 2008 

- SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had prior violations dated: October 28, 2003 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); October 11, 2002 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); April 16, 1993 – 
SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); October 26, 1989 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance 
Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 18, 2009; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 858-2008 SS in the 

name of Alibi Lounge of Troy, Inc. in the City of Troy BE RENEWED with the STIPULATION 
that all employees be TIPS or TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide proof of training to 
the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of this resolution be 

SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 5 - 

c) GBD, Inc. (dba: Franco Café) 
 
Resolution #2009-02-051 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2009 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
 Name:  GBD, Inc. (dba: Franco Café) 

  Address: 3614 Rochester Road, 48083 
  License No.: Class C (16886-2008 SS) 

 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations dated: December 30, 2008 

- SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had prior violations dated: April16, 2004 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); November 6, 1998 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); October 18, 
1995 – SALE TO MINOR; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 18, 2009; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 16886-2008 SS in 

the name of GBD, Inc. in the City of Troy BE RENEWED with the STIPULATION that the 
licensee provide proof of recent TIPS or TAMS training of all employees to the Troy Police 

Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

d) Priya Enterprise, Inc. (dba: Priya Restaurant) - No action taken due to new 

ownership. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 6 - 

e) Café Sushi, LLC (dba: Café Sushi) 

 
Resolution #2009-02-052 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2009 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
 Name:  Café Sushi, LLC (dba: Café Sushi) 

  Address: 1933 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: Class C (107549-2008 SS) 

 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations dated: October 2, 2008 - 

SALE TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had a prior violation dated: March 3, 2005 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 18, 2009; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License 107549-2008 SS in the name 

of Café Sushi, LLC in the City of Troy BE RENEWED with the STIPULATION that all 
employees be TIPS or TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide proof of training to the Troy 

Police Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

f) Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc./RBHV Troy, LLC (dba: Embassy Suites 

Hotel) 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 7 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2009 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
 Name:  Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc. /RBHV Troy, LLC 

    (dba: Embassy Suites Hotel) 
  Address: 850 Tower Drive, 48098 
  License No.: B-Hotel (75063-2007 SS) 

 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations dated: October 9, 2008 - 

SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 18, 2009; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED  
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that B-Hotel License Number 75063-2007 SS in the 

name of Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc./RBHV Troy, LLC. in the City of Troy BE 

RENEWED with the STIPULATION that all employees who serve food and beverages be TIPS 
or TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide proof of training to the Troy Police Department 

within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor 
Control Commission. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend f) Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc. /RBHV Troy, LLC 
(dba: Embassy Suites Hotel) 

 
Resolution #2009-02-053 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution f) Hospitality Ventures 

Management, Inc./RBHV Troy, LLC (dba: Embassy Suites Hotel) by STRIKING “who serve 

food and beverages” and INSERT “involved in food or beverage service”. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 8 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend f) Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc. /RBHV Troy, LLC 

(dba: Embassy Suites Hotel) as Amended 

 
Resolution #2009-02-054 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2009 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
 Name:  Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc. /RBHV Troy, LLC 

    (dba: Embassy Suites Hotel) 
  Address: 850 Tower Drive, 48098 
  License No.: B-Hotel (75063-2007 SS) 

 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations dated: October 9, 2008 - 

SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 18, 2009; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED  
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that B-Hotel License Number 75063-2007 SS in the 

name of Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc./RBHV Troy, LLC. in the City of Troy BE 

RENEWED with the STIPULATION that all employees involved in food or beverage service be 
TIPS or TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide proof of training to the Troy Police 

Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Fleming   
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 9 - 

g) C J Mahoney’s of Troy, LLC (dba: C J Mahoney’s of Troy) 
 
Resolution #2009-02-055 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2009 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
 Name:  C J Mahoney’s of Troy, LLC (dba: C J Mahoney’s of Troy) 
 Address: 2511 Livernois, 48084 
 License No.: Class C (173579-2008 SS) 
 

and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations dated: October 2, 2008 - 

SALE TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 18, 2009; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 173579-2008 SS in 

the name of C J Mahoney’s of Troy, LLC in the City of Troy BE RENEWED with the 

STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS or TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide 
proof of training to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of 

this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin   
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

h) Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC (dba: Ocean Prime) 
 
Resolution #2009-02-056 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2009 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
 Name:  Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC (dba: Ocean Prime) 

  Address: 2915 Coolidge Highway, 48084 
 License No.: Class C Resort (169707-2008 SDM) 

 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations dated: December 30, 2008 

- SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 18, 2009; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C Resort License Number 169707-2008 

SDM in the name of Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC in the City of Troy BE RENEWED with 

the STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS or TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide 
proof of training to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of 

this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling   
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Council Member Broomfield arrived at 8:45 PM. 
 

i) American Legion Charles Edward Post 14 
 
Resolution #2009-02-057 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 11 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2009 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
 Name:  American Legion Charles Edward Post 14 

  Address: 1340 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: Club (20523-2008) 
 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations dated: July 1, 2008 – 

GAMBLING VIOLATION (CIU); 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had prior violations dated: February 4, 1988 – MLCC 
Gambling/Gambling Devices on Premises; April 25, 1986 – MLCC SALE TO NON-MEMBER; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 18, 2009; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Club License Number 20523-2008 in the name 

of American Legion Charles Edward Post 14 in the City of Troy BE RENEWED. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield, Beltramini   
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Howrylak  

 
Resolution #2009-02-058 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem 
Howrylak at the Regular City Council and Closed Session meetings of Wednesday, February 
18, 2009 due to being out of the county.  
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield, Beltramini, Eisenbacher    
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 12 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Performance Evaluation – City Manager Request for Closed Session 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session at the request of City 
Manager, Phillip L. Nelson for the purpose of conducting his Performance Evaluation as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (a). 
 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone L-1 Performance Evaluation – City Manager Request for 
Closed Session 
 
Resolution #2009-02-059 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES L-1 Performance Evaluation – City 
Manager Request for Closed Session until the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for 
Monday, March 2, 2009. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming  
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Kerwin  
Absent: Howrylak 

 

MOTION FAILED 
 

Vote on Resolution to Meet in Closed Session L-1 City Manager Performance Evaluation 
 
Resolution #2009-02-060 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session at the request of City 
Manager, Phillip L. Nelson for the purpose of conducting his Performance Evaluation as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (a). 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Kerwin, Schilling  
No: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming  
Absent: Howrylak 
 

MOTION FAILED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 18, 2009 

 

- 13 - 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:28 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Barbara A. Pallotta 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
 
February 24, 2009 

 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
    
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement - Emergency Radio P25 Equipment Enhancement 
 
BACKGROUND  
 

 On April 3, 2006, Troy City Council approved contracts to purchase emergency radio 
equipment from M/A-Com, Inc of Lynchburg, VA through Oakland County 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreements (CC Res #2006-04-168-E4c). 

 

 As previously corresponded, the CLEMIS (Court and Law Enforcement Management 
Information Systems) consortium has constructed a new 800 MHz public Safety 
Radio System for Oakland County called OakWIN.  The purpose of this system is to 
provide countywide interoperable radio communications for all law enforcement, fire, 
and emergency medical services throughout Oakland County.   

 

 Funding for this project came from a 9-1-1-telephone surcharge and was approved by 
the Oakland County Board of Commissioners under Miscellaneous Resolution No. 
99-279.  This project relieved the City of Troy, and other consortium communities, of 
the financial and operational responsibilities related to constructing and maintaining 
“stand alone” radio systems.  In addition to financing and constructing the system’s 
infrastructure, the project is providing base stations, as well as mobile and portable 
radios to consortium public safety agencies.  Ancillary equipment, the need for which 
differs from agency to agency, must be specified and purchased by individual 
participating agencies. 

 

 The equipment software enhancement requested is operational in nature and 
necessary to maintain communications capabilities outside Oakland County and 
throughout the State of Michigan.  

 

 Oakland County Cooperative currently has contracts with MA/Com, the manufacturer 
of the radio equipment and only company allowed to program the units.  

 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
February 16, 2009 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: OC Cooperative Agreement – Emergency Radio Equipment Enhancement 
 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 Funds for this equipment enhancement are available through the Police Department 
Contractual Services Account for Communications, #101.301.13.325.7802.095 and 
the Police Department’s Forfeiture Account, #101.301.10.305.7740.045.  

 It is more cost effective to upgrade the current portable radios, than to purchase new 
ones for $3,500.00 each plus programming. 

 
LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.   
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

 The health and safety of the community will continue to be enhanced.  (Outcome 
Statement #1) 

 
OPTIONS 

 City management and the Troy Police Department request approval and authorization 
to purchase the emergency radio equipment enhancement from M/A-Com, Inc (Tyco 
Electronics) through the Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an 
estimated cost of $10,154.40, as detailed on attached quote dated 1/8/2009.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Information submitted by:  Sgt. Donald Ostrowski  

   
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 PD P25 Equipment OC 02-09.doc 















campbellld
Text Box
F-04b











Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
 
February 23, 2009 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting  
    Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products – City Golf Courses 
 
Background 

 On February 4, 2009, bids were received and opened for IBT-COT 09-01 to provide turfgrass 
chemicals and fertilizers for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses. 

 56 vendors were notified via the MITN system with seven (7) bidders responding and one 
statement of no bid received. 

 Serious consideration was given to all vendors on all items, due to the fact that some 
chemicals are now coming off patent. 

  Lesco Inc. bid an alternate on Item #3, and Turfgrass Inc bid alternates on Items #3 and #8, 
which do not contain the micro-nutrient package and patented plant extracts essential for 
plant growth.  

 On Item #6, bids received for Triton 70WDG were quoted in units of measure (UOM) other 
than those specified; and therefore not considered for award. 

 Great Lakes Turf LLC bid an alternate on Item #7 that deviated from the UOM specified, and 
therefore not considered for award. 

 All bids received for Items #6, #9 and #26 had identical agency pricing.  Tri-Turf Inc. was 
awarded Items #6 and #9; Helena Chemical Co. was awarded Item #26. Both awards are 
based on minimum shipments and payment terms. 

 Lesco Inc., Tri-Turf Inc. and Helena Chemical Co. bid alternates on Item #10, which do not 
contain chelated micro-nutrients as specified. 

 Lesco Inc. bid an alternate on Item #12, which does not have a complete micro-nutrient 
package. 

 Turfgrass Inc. bid an alternate on Item #13 that does not contain the proprietary nitrogen 
source specified. 

 Helena Chemical Co. and Turfgrass Inc. bid alternates on Item #15, which do not contain 
complex carbohydrates and proteins necessary for plant digestion and photosynthesis. 

 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04c



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
February 23, 2009 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products 
 
Background - continued 
 Lesco Inc and CPS (formerly UAP) withdrew bids on Items #16 and #21; CPS also withdrew 

on Item #23; Harrell’s withdrew bids on Items #6, #16, #21 and #26, all due to incorrect 
pricing.  

 Tri-Turf Inc., Lesco Inc. and Helena Chemical Co. bid alternates on Item #17. Tri-Turf Inc. and 
Lesco Inc. bids did not contain the micro-nutrient package as specified. Helena Chemical 
Company’s product is only labeled for use in New Mexico and Texas. 

 Lesco Inc. bid an alternate on Item #18; this product must be watered in immediately after 
application and cannot be applied if heat and humidity exceed thresholds.  Product specified 
requires no water and can be applied at any time. 

 Turfgrass Inc. and Helena Chemical Co. had identical agency pricing on Items #16 and #21. 
Items were awarded to Helena Chemical Co. based on minimum shipment and payment 
terms. 

 Lesco Inc. bid an alternate on Item #22, which has a totally different chemistry and higher 
application rates than specified. This product even though cheaper in price is more expensive 
in cost per acre and is therefore not the lowest priced or the best buy.  

 Tri-Turf Inc. and Turfgrass Inc. bid alternates on Item #23, which do not contain the patented 
pigment and Turf Shield Technology that positively affect turf physiology. 

 Tri-Turf Inc. bid an alternate on Item #25, which requires four times more product and three 
times as many applications compared to the product specified. 

 Lesco Inc. bid an alternate on Item #29, which does not contain Contec Technology. This 
allows the fertilizer to dissolve quickly into the turf canopy after application and irrigation, 
reducing the potential of turf damage to the golf course greens. 

 Harrell’s, Tri-Turf Inc, Turfgrass Inc., Lesco Inc. and Helena Chemical Co. all bid alternates on 
Item #30, which do not contain the proprietary Carbon Power Technology as specified.   

 Helena Chemical Co. and Harrell’s bid an alternate on Item #32, which does not have a 
labeled one time season long application rate. 

 All bids for Item #34, Disarm are being recommended for rejection, as the product is not 
available in the packaging specified. 

 
 
Financial Considerations 
 

 The department has funds budgeted in the Sylvan Glen Seed/Planting Supplies account 
#584.785.7740.100 and the Sanctuary Lake Seed/Planting Supplies account 
#583.765.7740.100. 

 Vendors were required to submit product information on all alternates in order to assist in the 
recommendation process. Based on this, the City was able to accept nine generic products 
and eleven low bids out of thirty six items at a considerable cost savings of $30,194.46 over 
last season’s estimated costs.  

 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

February 23, 2009 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products 

 
Legal Considerations 
 

 ITB-COT 09-01 to furnish seasonal requirements of chemicals for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary 
Lake Golf Courses was competitively bid and vendors were given the opportunity to respond 
with their level of interest in supplying turf chemicals and fertilizers to the City’s golf facilities. 

 
 
Policy Considerations 
 

 Troy golf personnel communicate with educators and vendors on newer cost effective 
chemistries and products for the future. (Outcome Statement II) 

 
Options 
 

 City management recommends awarding the seasonal requirements of chemicals for Sylvan 
Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses to the following low bidders meeting specifications: 
Lesco Inc., Cleveland, Ohio; Helena Chemical Company, Zeeland, Michigan; Great Lakes 
Turf, LLC, Grand Rapids, Michigan; Tri-Turf Inc. Farmington Hills, Michigan; Crop Production 
Services (CPS) Inc., Sunfield, Michigan; Turfgrass Inc., Novi, Michigan; and Harrell’s, 
Lakeland, Florida for products highlighted and at unit prices detailed on the attached bid 
tabulation, which opened 2/4/2009. 

 In addition, staff recommends rejecting Item #34, Disarm, as the product is not available in the 
packaging specified. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Information provided by: Danny McDonald, Superintendent of Greens 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Chemicals 02-09.doc 

 
 
 



 CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 09-01
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 jh/sl TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Tri-Turf

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 100 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Chipco 26019 Alt: Armor Tech AT IP233
(20 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 60.95$        304.75$       59.50$        297.50$     

2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Mainsail 6F Alt: Armor Tech AT CLT 720
(30 CASES) or ECHO 720/CONCORDE SST 5 GALS/CASE 43.40$        217.00$       40.60$        203.00$     

3. 30 GALS KNIFE PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Amino Iron 12-0-0 NO BID
(6 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

4.  20 GALS BANNER MAX 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Propiconazole  14.3 Alt: Armor Tech AT PPZ143
(4 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 131.58$      657.90$       116.00$      580.00$     

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb

(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case 153.81$      615.24$       158.50$      634.00$     
Alt: Triton 70WDG - 6x2#

6. 55 GALS TRINITY or TRITON FLO 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt:  DMS Trinity
(11 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 325.00$      1,625.00$    325.00$      1,625.00$  

Alt: Imidacloprid WSB 75 (88x1.60oz) 48 x 1.6 oz
7. 176 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P./Zenith 75 WSB 110 X 1.6oz Pk 6.77420$           953.81$              Alt: Armor Tech AT IMD 75

(1 Mini Drum) 176 oz/Drum 12.2159$    2,150.00$    9.10$          698.88$     

8. 50 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Ultraplex NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

9. 49.0 lbs EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs 10 Cases - rec 1 case n/c
(10 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE 280.00$      1,372.00$    270.816$    1,327.00$  

10. 50 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Sub Plant Food 18-3-6
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 37.60$        188.00$       DMS

11. 50 GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 51.80$        259.00$       

12. 30 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(6 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE 51.00$        255.00$       

13. 125 GALS POWER C3 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Fluid Fert. 29-2-3 NO BID
(25 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

14. 125 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: 12% Calcium Complex NO BID
(25 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 37.60$        188.00$       

15. 50 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Amino-plex NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

16. 68.74 LBS BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per NO BID
(2 Drums) Drum $83.309 2,863.35$    

Turfgrass, Inc.



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 09-01
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME:  Tri - Turf

EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 45 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Sub K-Phite 7LP

(9 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 58.40$        292.00$       DMS

18. 6,000 lbs HARRELS TRU-PRILL NO BID NO BID
(120 BAGS) 15-2-15 GREENS GRADE FERTILIZER 50 LBS/BAG

19. 21 TONS KELLY'S HIGH 50 LB/Bag NO BID
(840 Bags) CALCIUM LIME REGULAR GRADE 40 bags/Ton 5.92$          236.80$       

40 Lb Bag
20. 2,000 LBS CASCADE GRANULAR 40 Lb Bags Alt: Sub 16-90 Granular 

(40 BAGS) 50 LBS/BAG 1.94$          77.60$         2.32$          92.80$       

21. 15 GALS TARTAN 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(3 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 450.24$      2,251.20$    

22. 40 GALS MILLENNIUM ULTRA 2 2 X 2.5 GALS

(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 53.10$        265.50$       47.75$        238.75$     
Alt: Fosetyl - A1 4 x 6.3lbs (25.2 #case)

23. 220 lbs ALLIETTE/SIGNATURE 2 x 11 lbs DMS Alt: Armor Tech ALT 70
(10 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE 21.47$        472.34$       DMS

Alt: Mefenoxam 2AQ
378.95$             1,894.75$           

24. 20 Gals SUBDUE MAXX 2 X 2.5 GALS (Subdue 2gal) Alt: QualiPro Mefenaxam
(4 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 620.85$     1,241.70$   475.00$      2,375.00$ 

25. 60 Gals PERVADE 30 gal NO BID Alt: Sub Dispatch 
(2 Drums) Drum DMS

26. 128 oz ACELEPRYN INSECTICIDE 64 oz / Jug NO BID
(2 Jugs) 13.75$        880.00$       

27. 30 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb

(3 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE 40.76$        407.60$       57.50$        575.00$     

28. 4,000 lbs VERDE-CAL G NO BID NO BID
(80 bags) 50 lbs/ BAG

29. 2,000 LBS ANDERSON's 18-9-18 NO BID
(50 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO 40 lbs/ BAG 1.16$          46.40$         

30. 90 Gallons PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Fairphyte 1-0-26 Alt: Sub K-Phite 7LP
(18 Bags) 5 GALS/CASE DMS DMS

31. 360 lbs P-48 30 lb / Pails NO BID NO BID
(12 Pails)

32. 40 gals LESCO-FLO 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Cascade Plus Alt: Sub Aquatrols 16-90
(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 63.45$        317.25$       58.50$        292.50$     

Different Packaging (48 Lbs cs)
33. 60 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 x 2 lb case 16.676$             800.48$              Alt: T-Methyl E-Pro 50 WSB

(5 Cases) 12 lb/Case 20.43$        245.16$       18.25$        219.00$     

Turfgrass, Inc.



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 09-01
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of  12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Tri - Turf

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

34. 72 lbs DISARM 24 x 1 lb Jug

(3 Cases) 24 lbs / Case

35. 200 gals GLACIER 4F 2 X 2.5 Gals Alt: Turfcide 400
(40 Cases) 5 Gal/Case 28.12$        140.60$       26.20$        131.00$     

36. 55 gals QUICK-WATER WETTING AGENT 55 gals Alt: Sub Aquatrols Primer Select

(1 Drum) Drum 44.64$        2,455.20$    61.10$        3,360.50$  

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: 1 Case or Bag No Minimum
Days after call 1 -3 Days 1 Day

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper: 7 AM to 4:30 PM 8 AM to 5 PM
    Phone # 248-866-6081  (24 hours) 248-640-4439

PAYMENT TERMS Net 45 Days 2% 10 Net 60

WARRANTY Per Manufacturer Per Manufacturer

EXCEPTIONS See Exception Sheet Agency Terms Net 60 Days
Attached To Bid Next Day Delivery

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N Yes Yes

NO BIDS: PROPOSAL - - Seasonal Requirements of Turfgrass Chemicals
DeAngelo Brothers, Inc. 

ALL HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS
ATTEST:
Diane Fisher
Danny McDonald Susan Leirstein CPPB
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 09-01 Chemicals-Golf Courses

30,399.81$                        40,615.00$                      

Turfgrass, Inc.

Recommend Rejecting Item 34



 CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 09-01
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Lesco, Inc.

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

Alt: Chipco 26019 2.5 gallons
1. 100 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or 2 X 2.5 GALS 63.95$             319.77$           Alt: Lesco 18+

(20 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 119.64$     598.21$      52.00$      260.00$     
Alt: Ensign 720

2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS 37.50$             187.50$           Alt: Lesco Manicure 6PL
(30 CASES) or ECHO 720/CONCORDE SST 5 GALS/CASE 65.28$       326.40$      40.80$      204.00$     

3. 30 GALS KNIFE PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID Alt: Bolster
(6 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

Alt: Pro Con Z
134.50$           672.50$           

4.  20 GALS BANNER MAX 2 X 2.5 GALS (Banner10 Gals) Alt: Lesco Spectator
(4 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 275.00$      2,750.00$    140.00$    700.00$      

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb

(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case 129.44$      517.76$       145.00$    580.00$      

6. 55 GALS TRINITY or TRITON FLO 2 X 2.5 GALS Trinity
(11 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 325.00$      1,625.00$    325.00$    1,625.00$   

7. 176 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P./Zenith 75 WSB 110 X 1.6oz Pk    Merit 75 W.S.P.
(1 Mini Drum) 176 oz/Drum 12.2159$     2,150.00$    12.2159$  2,150.00$   

8. 50 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

9. 49.0 lbs EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs

(10 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE 280.00$      1,372.00$    280.00$    1,372.00$   

10. 50 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID Alt: Lesco Green Flo
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

11. 50 GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

12. 30 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID Alt: Lesco Iron + Chelated
(6 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE DMS

13. 125 GALS POWER C3 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID NO BID
(25 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

14. 125 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID Alt: Lesco Green Flo 6-0-0
(25 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 27.80$      139.00$      

15. 50 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

16. 68.74 LBS BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per

(2 Drums) Drum Withdrew Withdrew

CPS Formerly UAP



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Lesco Inc.

EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

17. 45 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID Alt: Lesco Green Flo Phyte
(9 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

18. 6,000 lbs HARRELS TRU-PRILL NO BID Alt: Lesco Trivex 20-2-16E
(120 BAGS) 15-2-15 GREENS GRADE FERTILIZE 50 LBS/BAG DMS

19. 21 TONS KELLY'S HIGH 50 LB/Bag NO BID Alt:Lime Pell Hical Fairway
(840 Bags) CALCIUM LIME REGULAR GRADE 40 bags/Ton 6.00$        240.00$      

20. 2,000 LBS CASCADE GRANULAR NO BID Alt: Lesco Flo Gran

(40 BAGS) 50 LBS/BAG 1.50$        75.00$        

21. 15 GALS TARTAN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(3 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE Withdrew Withdrew

22. 40 GALS MILLENNIUM ULTRA 2 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Lesco Momentum
(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 48.632$      243.16$       DMS

4x5.5#
23. 220 lbs ALLIETTE/SIGNATURE 2 x 11 lbs Alt: Lesco Prodigy

(10 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE Withdrew 23.41$      515.02$      
Alt: Mefenoxam 2AQ (5gals)

426.78$           2,133.90$        
24. 20 Gals SUBDUE MAXX 2 X 2.5 GALS (subdue 10gal) Alt: Mefenoxam

(4 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 451.05$      4,510.50$    435.00$    2,175.00$   

25. 60 Gals PERVADE 30 gal NO BID Alt: Lesco Flo (55 Gal)
(2 Drums) Drum 34.54$      1,899.70$   

26. 128 oz ACELEPRYN INSECTICIDE 64 oz / Jug

(2 Jugs) 13.75$        880.00$       13.75$      880.00$      

27. 30 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb

(3 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE 48.71$        487.10$       60.005$    600.05$      

28. 4,000 lbs VERDE-CAL G NO BID NO BID
(80 bags) 50 lbs/ BAG

29. 2,000 LBS ANDERSON's 18-9-18 NO BID Alt: Lesco Trivex (50 Lb Bag)

(50 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO 40 lbs/ BAG DMS

30. 90 Gallons PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID Alt: Lesco Green Flo
(18 Bags) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

31. 360 lbs P-48 30 lb / Pails NO BID NO BID
(12 Pails)

32. 40 gals LESCO-FLO 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 50.00$      250.00$      

8 oz x 4 x 10/case (20lbs)
33. 60 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 x 2 lb case Alt: Lesco T-Storm WSB

(5 Cases) 12 lb/Case 14.21$        170.53$       11.25$      225.00$      

CPS Formerly UAP



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 09-01
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Pg. 6 of 12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Lesco, Inc.

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

34. 72 lbs DISARM 24 x 1 lb Jug

(3 Cases) 24 lbs / Case

35. 200 gals GLACIER 4F 2 X 2.5 Gals Alt: Turficide 40D Alt: Turfcide 2.5 gal
(40 Cases) 5 Gal/Case 27.50$             137.50$           28.00$      140.00$      

30gal/drum
36. 55 gals QUICK-WATER WETTING AGENT 55 gals NO BID Alt: Lesco Wet 

(1 Drum) Drum 20.00$      600.00$      

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: No Minimum No Minimum
Days after call 1 - 3 Days 7 - 10  Days

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper: 8 AM to 5 PM 8 AM to 5 PM   M-F
    Phone # 586-839-8930 734-915-6123

PAYMENT TERMS Net 30 - on Agency Products Net 30 

WARRANTY Per Manufacturer N/A

EXCEPTIONS List of Alternates Attached Exceptions are noted next to

To Bid ea line item where applicable

We are offering substitute

products. Exception to para 7

under instructions to bidders
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N Yes Yes

G:ITB-COT 09-01 Chemicals-Golf Courses

CPS Formerly UAP

3,106.56$                          11,350.00$                     

Recommend Rejecting Item 34



 CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 09-01
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Pg 7 of 12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Harrell's

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

Alt: Iprodione Pro
1. 100 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or 2 X 2.5 GALS 58.00$             290.00$             Alt: Chipco 26019

(20 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 113.99$      569.95$        69.80$             349.00$            
Alt: Echo 720

2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS 36.36$             181.80$             Alt: Mainsail 6F
(30 CASES) or ECHO 720/CONCORDE SST 5 GALS/CASE 67.98$        339.90$        42.80$             214.00$            

3. 30 GALS KNIFE PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID NO BID
(6 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

Alt: Propiconizole Pro
4.  20 GALS BANNER MAX 2 X 2.5 GALS 132.00$           660.00$             Alt: Fathom 14.3

(4 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 285.00$      1,425.00$     162.60$           813.00$            

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb

(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case 134.8325$   539.33$        131.74$       526.96$        
Alt: Triton 70 WDG (6 x 2lbs) 

6. 55 GALS TRINITY or TRITON FLO 2 X 2.5 GALS DMS
(11 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 325.00$      1,625.00$     Withdrew

Alt: Mallet 75 WSP (48x1.6 oz)
7. 176 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P./Zenith 75 WSB 110 X 1.6oz Pk 9.75$               748.80$             Merit 75 W.S.P.

(1 Mini Drum) 176 oz/Drum 12.2159$     2,150.00$     12.2159$     2,150.00$     

8. 50 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

9. 49.0 lbs EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs NO BID
(10 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE 280.00$      1,372.00$     

10. 50 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Helena 19-1-16 + Aminos NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

11. 50 GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

12. 30 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID NO BID
(6 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE

13. 125 GALS POWER C3 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID NO BID
(25 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

14. 125 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID NO BID
(25 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

15. 50 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Renova NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

16. 68.74 LBS BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per

(2 Drums) Drum 83.3095$     2,863.35$     Withdrew

Helena Chemical Co



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 09-01
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Pg. 8 of 12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Harrell's

EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

17. 45 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: EleMax 4-0-20 Kphite NO BID
(9 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

18. 6,000 lbs HARRELS TRU-PRILL NO BID
(120 BAGS) 15-2-15 GREENS GRADE FERTILIZ 50 LBS/BAG 0.9974$       49.87$          

19. 21 TONS KELLY'S HIGH 50 LB/Bag NO BID NO BID
(840 Bags) CALCIUM LIME REGULAR GRADE 40 bags/Ton

20. 2,000 LBS CASCADE GRANULAR Alt: Soaker Maxx G Alt: Brilliance G
(40 BAGS) 50 LBS/BAG 1.76$               88.00$               1.28$               64.00$              

21. 15 GALS TARTAN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(3 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 450.24$      2,251.20$     Withdrew

22. 40 GALS MILLENNIUM ULTRA 2 2 X 2.5 GALS

(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 48.00$       240.00$       53.80$         269.00$       

23. 220 lbs ALLIETTE/SIGNATURE 2 x 11 lbs

(10 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE 22.1477$     487.25$        21.7727$     479.00$        

24. 20 Gals SUBDUE MAXX 2 X 2.5 GALS  (2 x 1 Gal)
(4 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 588.54$      2,942.70$     649.50$       1,299.00$     

25. 60 Gals PERVADE 30 gal NO BID NO BID
(2 Drums) Drum

26. 128 oz ACELEPRYN INSECTICIDE 64 oz / Jug

(2 Jugs) 13.75$        880.00$        Withdrew

27. 30 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb 12 lb Case
(3 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE 49.00$        588.00$        49.17$         491.70$        

28. 4,000 lbs VERDE-CAL G NO BID
(80 bags) 50 lbs/ BAG 0.48$           24.00$          

29. 2,000 LBS ANDERSON's 18-9-18 NO BID NO BID
(50 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO 40 lbs/ BAG

30. 90 Gallons PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: EleMax 0-0-26 Phite Alt: Stress Phiter 0-0-30
(18 Bags) 5 GALS/CASE DMS DMS

31. 360 lbs P-48 30 lb / Pails Alt: Axilo Mix 5 (8 x 5lbs) NO BID
(12 Pails) 9.00$               360.00$             

32. 40 gals LESCO-FLO 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: ProMate Soaker Alt: Brilliance
(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE DMS DMS

Alt: T-Methyl E Pro Alt:  Cleary Pro Pak 48LB
33. 60 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 x 2 lb case 11.95$             143.40$             16.9266$         812.48$            

(5 Cases) 12 lb/Case 18.1666$     218.00$        18.72$         224.64$        

Helena Chemical Co



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 09-01
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Pg. 9 of 12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Harrell's

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
34. 72 lbs DISARM 24 x 1 lb Jug

(3 Cases) 24 lbs / Case

35. 200 gals GLACIER 4F 2 X 2.5 Gals Alt: Turfcide 400
(40 Cases) 5 Gal/Case 27.00$             135.00$             26.304$       131.52$        

36. 55 gals QUICK-WATER WETTING AGENT 55 gals Alt: ProMate Injector Alt: Aqua Aid
(1 Drum) Drum 14.00$             770.00$             19.8181$         1,090.00$         

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: N/A None
Days after call 1 - 2 Days Same Day

CONTACT INFORMATION:      Hrs of Oper 7 AM to 6 PM 24/7
    Phone # 616-340-9557 586-917-3851

PAYMENT TERMS Net 30    2% 10 Days Net 60

WARRANTY Per Manufacturer Manufacturers

EXCEPTIONS Attached To Bid Chipco 26019 for Chipco 26GT
Fathom 14.3 for Banner Max
Mainsail 6f for Danconil . . . . . .
 Brilliance for Cascade & etc.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N Yes Yes

G:ITB-COT 09-01 Chemicals-Golf Courses

Helena Chemical Co

20,464.30$                      10,464.40$                     

Recommend Rejecting Item 34



 CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 09-01
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Pg 10 of 12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME:

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 100 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(20 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE

2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) or ECHO 720/CONCORDE SST 5 GALS/CASE 40.65$          203.25$        

3. 30 GALS KNIFE PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(6 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 44.00$          220.00$        

4.  20 GALS BANNER MAX 2 X 2.5 GALS Alt: Propensity 1.3 ME
(4 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 148.50$        742.50$        

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb NO BID
(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case

6. 55 GALS TRINITY or TRITON FLO 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(11 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

7. 176 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P./Zenith 75 WSB 110 X 1.6oz Pk Alt: Enforce 75 WSB (1.6# cs)
(1 Mini Drum) 176 oz/Drum DMS

8. 50 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 84.00$          420.00$        

9. 49.0 lbs EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs NO BID
(10 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE

10. 50 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

11. 50 GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE

12. 30 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(6 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE

13. 125 GALS POWER C3 2 X 2.5 GALS

(25 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 28.00$          140.00$        

14. 125 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(25 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 39.00$          195.00$        

15. 50 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 45.00$          225.00$        

16. 68.74 LBS BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per NO BID
(2 Drums) Drum

Great Lakes Turf, LLC



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 09-01
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Pg. 11 of 12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME:

EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 45 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID

(9 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE

18. 6,000 lbs HARRELS TRU-PRILL NO BID
(120 BAGS) 15-2-15 GREENS GRADE FERTILIZER 50 LBS/BAG

19. 21 TONS KELLY'S HIGH 50 LB/Bag NO BID
(840 Bags) CALCIUM LIME REGULAR GRADE 40 bags/Ton

20. 2,000 LBS CASCADE GRANULAR NO BID
(40 BAGS) 50 LBS/BAG

21. 15 GALS TARTAN 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(3 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE

22. 40 GALS MILLENNIUM ULTRA 2 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE

23. 220 lbs ALLIETTE/SIGNATURE 2 x 11 lbs NO BID
(10 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE

24. 20 Gals SUBDUE MAXX 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(4 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE

25. 60 Gals PERVADE 30 gal

(2 Drums) Drum 33.00$          990.00$        

26. 128 oz ACELEPRYN INSECTICIDE 64 oz / Jug NO BID
(2 Jugs)

27. 30 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb NO BID
(3 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE

28. 4,000 lbs VERDE-CAL G NO BID
(80 bags) 50 lbs/ BAG

29. 2,000 LBS ANDERSON's 18-9-18 NO BID
(50 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO 40 lbs/ BAG

30. 90 Gallons PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 GALS

(18 Bags) 5 GALS/CASE 45.00$          225.00$        

31. 360 lbs P-48 30 lb / Pails

(12 Pails) 4.833$          145.00$        

32. 40 gals LESCO-FLO 2 X 2.5 GALS NO BID
(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE

33. 60 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 x 2 lb case NO BID
(5 Cases) 12 lb/Case

Great Lakes Turf, LLC



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 09-01
Opening Date -- 02/04/09 BID TABULATION Pg. 12 of 12
Date Prepared - 02/04/09 TURFGRASS CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME:

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

34. 72 lbs DISARM 24 x 1 lb Jug

(3 Cases) 24 lbs / Case

35. 200 gals GLACIER 4F 2 X 2.5 Gals NO BID
(40 Cases) 5 Gal/Case

36. 55 gals QUICK-WATER WETTING AGENT 55 gals NO BID
(1 Drum) Drum

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: 1 case
Days after call 2 Days

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper: M-F  8 AM to 5 PM
    Phone # 586-915-9281

PAYMENT TERMS Net 30 Days

WARRANTY Per Manufacturers

EXCEPTIONS #4  Propensity 1.3 ME and #7 Enforce
75WSB 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N Yes

G:ITB-COT 09-01 Chemicals-Golf Courses

Great Lakes Turf, LLC

19,040.00$                          

Recommend Rejecting Item 34



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
February 23, 2009 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
       Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – 911- Customer Premise Equipment (CPE) 
 
Background 

 On September 1, 2005, Motorola announced the “end of life” for the Centralink 2000 Enhanced 
911 Customer Premise Equipment (CPE), the 911 telephone system and work stations used 
by 911 call takers.  All technical support of the system ceased on December 31, 2007.  The 
operating system is Windows NT and hardware is increasingly scarce.  

 

 Because of this urgent need to replace the 911 CPE in Troy and Southfield, Oakland County 
initiated the competitive bid process in 2007 and selected Plant/CML in partnership with local 
vendor Advanced Wireless Telecom (AWT) to perform the installations. (Contract ID 2399)  

 

 The original proposal was for a networked solution with minimal backbone equipment to be 
shared by all of Oakland County.  The County network, OakNET, would provide connectivity 
and 911 call delivery to the proper Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP).  The networked 
solution is no longer an option due to Oakland County budgetary constraints; and PSAPs are 
now proceeding independently with CPE replacement.  However, Oakland County has funds 
earmarked for this project, which are now available to PSAPs in Oakland County to pay a 
portion of the cost for upgrades of 911 call taking equipment.   

 
Financial Considerations 

 The total cost for the system plus installation and first year warranty is $195,105.31 less the 
financial contribution by Oakland County at a minimum of $114,495.15.   

 Funds are available in the 2008/2009 budget of the Police Communications capital account 
401.301.13.325.7980.055 

 Warranty includes 24/7 onsite maintenance plus software upgrades 

 Maintenance and software upgrades in subsequent years must be budgeted annually.  

 Homeland security grant funding is being sought by Oakland County through the Urban Area 
Strategic Initiative (UASI), but final approval has not been given for use on this project. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04d



Page 2 of 2 

 
February 23, 2009 
 
To:   Philip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  911- Customer Premise Equipment (CPE) 
 
 
 
Legal Consideration 
 

 Contract documents are being reviewed and will be executed once in acceptable form. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 

 Replacement of 911 call taking equipment enhances public safety.  (Outcome Statement I) 

 Communication is enhanced in emergency Police, Fire and Emergency Medical Service incidents. 
(Outcome Statement I) 

 
Options 
 

 City management recommends a contract be executed for the purchase of Plant/CML Vesta 
Pallas 911 Customer Premise Equipment for Police Communications from Advanced Wireless 
Telecommunications Inc of Wixom, MI, through an Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement at an estimated cost of $195,105.31, with ongoing annual maintenance and support.   

 It is understood that Oakland County will pay a portion of this cost, the exact amount yet to be 
determined.  The minimum contribution from Oakland County is $114,495.15, payable directly to 
the vendor toward the purchase and installation of equipment.   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Information provided by:  Cathy A. Brandimore, Communications Manager 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 -911 CPE OC 03.09.doc 













 

 
 
February 11,2009 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
   Captain Keith Frye, Services Division 
   Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
 
SUBJECT: Application to transfer a SDD license to Kroger Co. of Michigan. 
 
Background: 
 Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of escrowed 2008 SDD license only from 

Perry Drug Stores, Inc. to be held in conjunction with existing SDM license; and transfer location 
from 5055 Rochester Rd. to 1237 Coolidge, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County. {MLCC Req 
#486590}  

   On February 9, 2009, Tom Frank, Representative for the applicant answered questions for the 
Liquor Advisory Committee. 

 Mr. Frank explained to the Committee that the purpose of this request is to allow the Kroger Co. of 
Michigan to sell spirits at their stores that are currently licensed to sell beer and wine only. It was 
also explained the store would be configured to assure the sale of spirits would be in compliance 
with City Ordinance. 

 The Committee unanimously approved this request. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 There are no financial considerations for the City. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world.” 
 
Options: 
 City Council can approve or deny the request. 

 
 
RC/Kroger 1237 Coolidge ‘08 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05









 AGREEMENT REGARDING LIQUOR LICENSE REQUEST 
 
 
 This Agreement, made this ____ day of ____________, 200___, by and between the CITY OF 
TROY, MICHIGAN, a municipal corporation, with offices located at 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, 
48084, hereinafter known as THE CITY, and Kroger of Michigan Co., the Applicant, hereinafter known as 
APPLICANT. 

1.  The City Council of the City of Troy, for and in consideration of the following covenants and 
conditions, agrees to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission Approval of the 
request to transfer ownership of 2008 SDD license to be located at 1237 Coolidge, Troy MI. 

2.   In consideration of the City of Troy’s recommendation for approval of the request, the applicant 
hereby agrees that: 

 (a)  It has read and is aware of the provisions of City of Troy Ordinances, Chapter 
No. 67, Chapter No. 68 and Chapter No. 98, and agrees that it shall be deemed 
to have knowledge of any subsequent amendments to said Chapters which may 
become effective during the term of this agreement. 

(b)  It agrees to observe and comply with all laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, 
regulations or resolutions of the United States government, State of Michigan, 
and the City of Troy, or any department or agency of the governmental entities, 
as well as the rules and regulations of the Michigan Liquor Control Commission 
as they pertain to the operation of a liquor licensed business in the City of Troy.  

(c) It agrees to immediately require all employees who serve/sell alcohol to attend a 
recognized alcohol awareness program, and forward the names of each 
certified employee to the Troy Police Department.  The alcohol awareness 
program must either be recognized by the Troy Police Department (i.e. 
TIPS,TAMS), or the program must be reviewed by the Troy Police Department 
to insure that the program is comparable to the recognized programs.  

3.  Applicant agrees that the recommendation for Approval agreed upon by the City Council is not a 
property right and is approved upon the express and continuing condition that no violation as set 
forth in paragraph 2 of this agreement shall occur. 

4.  Applicant agrees that the recommendation for Approval agreed upon by the City Council is 
approved upon the express and continuing condition that the physical characteristics (including 
but not limited to the inside layout, building design and engineering, seating capacity, parking 
space allocations, fire exits, and other physical attributes); and also the nature and type of 
business intended to be conducted remain virtually the same. 

5.  Applicant agrees that upon such violation, after full investigation and an opportunity for said 
applicant to be heard, upon a finding by the City Council that a violation as set forth in paragraph 
2 of this agreement has occurred, the City Council shall have just cause for revocation of said 
recommendation for approval. 

  
         
 _____________________________  
  
  
 
 Authorized Representative for Kroger Co. of Michigan 
 
  
 
 
      
Witnesses:       
   
__________________________ 
 



 

 -- 

2

 
__________________________ 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this _____ day of ___________ , 200___ 
 
______________________________________ 
 
Notary Public, __________________ 
County, _______________________ 
My commission expires: 
 
 
      CITY OF TROY 
 
      By:__________________________ 
       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
       
       
      By:__________________________ 
               Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Witnesses: 
 
___________________________ 
 
 
___________________________ 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this _____ day of ______________, 200___ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
Notary Public, Oakland 
County, Michigan 
My commission expires:  



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 9, 2009  

 Page 1 of 3

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
February 9, 2009 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Officer James Feld 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: None 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of November 10, 2008 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-02-001 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the November 10, 2008 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  6 (All) 
No:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of the escrowed 

2008 SDD license only from Perry Drug Stores, Inc. to be held in 
conjunction with existing SDM license; and transfer location from 805 E. Big 
Beaver to 2105 W. South Blvd, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County. 

 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 9, 2009  

 Page 2 of 3

Present to answer questions from the Committee was Tom Frank, real estate 
manager for The Kroger Company. 
 
This 45,000 square foot store was acquired from Farmer Jack in July, 2007, and 
they just completed a major remodel.  Kroger was approached by Perry Drug 
Stores approximately one year ago offering for sale several liquor licenses, two of 
which were in Troy.  They understand that the Troy City Ordinance requires that 
liquor needs to be secured in either a controlled access area or behind a counter.  
They plan to display the liquor behind the customer service counter.  Employee 
training at all locations will be completed by Friday of this week.  It is the Kroger 
Company policy to conduct internal decoy operations to test their employees. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-02-002 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that Kroger Co. of Michigan be allowed to transfer ownership of the 
escrowed 2008 SDD license only from Perry Drug Stores, Inc. to be held in 
conjunction with existing SDM license; and transfer location from 805 E. Big 
Beaver to 2105 W. South Blvd, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County. 
 
Yes:  6 (All) 
No:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
 
 
 
2.  Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of the escrowed 

2008 SDD license only from Perry Drug Stores, Inc. to be held in 
conjunction with existing SDM license; and transfer location from 5055 
Rochester Rd. to 1237 Coolidge, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.  

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Tom Frank, real estate 
manager for The Kroger Company. 
 
This 63,000 square foot store was also acquired from Farmer Jack and is currently 
undergoing remodeling.  In accordance with the Troy City Ordinance, they plan to 
display the liquor behind the customer service counter.  Employee training at all 
locations will be completed by Friday of this week.  It is the Kroger Company policy 
to conduct internal decoy operations to test their employees. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-02-003 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 9, 2009  

 Page 3 of 3

RESOLVED, that Kroger Co. of Michigan be allowed to transfer ownership of the 
escrowed 2008 SDD license only from Perry Drug Stores, Inc. to be held in 
conjunction with existing SDM license; and transfer location from 5055 Rochester 
Rd. to 1237 Coolidge, Troy, MI 4804, Oakland County.  
 
 
Yes:  6 (All) 
No:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
 
 
 
It is noted that Henry Allemon has elected to not be reassigned to the Liquor 
Advisory Committee. 
 
Sergeant Cantlon introduced Officer Jim Feld to the Committee.  After Sergeant 
Cantlon’s retirement on February 27, 2009, Officer Feld will take over the liquor 
licensing duties for the Department.  
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster advised that the Liquor Violation Hearings 
commence Wednesday, February 11, 2009. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



 

 
 
February 11, 2009 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
   Captain Keith Frye, Services Division 
   Sergeant Robert Cantlon  
 
SUBJECT: Application to transfer a SDD license to Kroger Co. of Michigan. 
 
Background: 
 Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of escrowed 2008 SDD license only from 

Perry Drug Stores, Inc. to be held in conjunction with existing SDM license; and transfer location 
from 805 E. Big Beaver to 2105 W. South Blvd, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County. {MLCC Req 
#486575}  

   On February 9, 2009, Tom Frank for the applicant answered questions for the Liquor Advisory 
Committee. 

 Mr. Frank explained to the Committee that the purpose of this request is to allow the Kroger Co. of 
Michigan to sell spirits at their stores that are currently licensed to sell beer and wine only. It was 
also explained the store would be configured to assure the sale of spirits would be in compliance 
with City Ordinance. 

 The Committee unanimously approved this request. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 There are no financial considerations for the City. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world.” 
 
Options: 
 City Council can approve or deny the request. 

 
 
 
RC/Kroger 2105 W South Blvd ‘08 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06









LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 9, 2009  

 Page 1 of 3

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
February 9, 2009 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Officer James Feld 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: None 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of November 10, 2008 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-02-001 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the November 10, 2008 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  6 (All) 
No:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of the escrowed 

2008 SDD license only from Perry Drug Stores, Inc. to be held in 
conjunction with existing SDM license; and transfer location from 805 E. Big 
Beaver to 2105 W. South Blvd, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County. 

 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 9, 2009  

 Page 2 of 3

Present to answer questions from the Committee was Tom Frank, real estate 
manager for The Kroger Company. 
 
This 45,000 square foot store was acquired from Farmer Jack in July, 2007, and 
they just completed a major remodel.  Kroger was approached by Perry Drug 
Stores approximately one year ago offering for sale several liquor licenses, two of 
which were in Troy.  They understand that the Troy City Ordinance requires that 
liquor needs to be secured in either a controlled access area or behind a counter.  
They plan to display the liquor behind the customer service counter.  Employee 
training at all locations will be completed by Friday of this week.  It is the Kroger 
Company policy to conduct internal decoy operations to test their employees. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-02-002 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that Kroger Co. of Michigan be allowed to transfer ownership of the 
escrowed 2008 SDD license only from Perry Drug Stores, Inc. to be held in 
conjunction with existing SDM license; and transfer location from 805 E. Big 
Beaver to 2105 W. South Blvd, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County. 
 
Yes:  6 (All) 
No:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
 
 
 
2.  Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of the escrowed 

2008 SDD license only from Perry Drug Stores, Inc. to be held in 
conjunction with existing SDM license; and transfer location from 5055 
Rochester Rd. to 1237 Coolidge, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.  

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Tom Frank, real estate 
manager for The Kroger Company. 
 
This 63,000 square foot store was also acquired from Farmer Jack and is currently 
undergoing remodeling.  In accordance with the Troy City Ordinance, they plan to 
display the liquor behind the customer service counter.  Employee training at all 
locations will be completed by Friday of this week.  It is the Kroger Company policy 
to conduct internal decoy operations to test their employees. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-02-003 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 9, 2009  

 Page 3 of 3

RESOLVED, that Kroger Co. of Michigan be allowed to transfer ownership of the 
escrowed 2008 SDD license only from Perry Drug Stores, Inc. to be held in 
conjunction with existing SDM license; and transfer location from 5055 Rochester 
Rd. to 1237 Coolidge, Troy, MI 4804, Oakland County.  
 
 
Yes:  6 (All) 
No:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
 
 
 
It is noted that Henry Allemon has elected to not be reassigned to the Liquor 
Advisory Committee. 
 
Sergeant Cantlon introduced Officer Jim Feld to the Committee.  After Sergeant 
Cantlon’s retirement on February 27, 2009, Officer Feld will take over the liquor 
licensing duties for the Department.  
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster advised that the Liquor Violation Hearings 
commence Wednesday, February 11, 2009. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



campbellld
Text Box
F-07









campbellld
Text Box
F-08









campbellld
Text Box
F-09







campbellld
Text Box
F-10





















campbellld
Text Box
F-11







 
 

 
 
January 27, 2009 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Asst. City Manager/Economic Development Services 
    Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 

William J. Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:   Traffic Committee Recommendations 
    January 21, 2009 
 
Background: 

The Traffic Committee considered this item at the January 21, 2009 meeting and made the 
following recommendations (minutes attached): 

 Recommend installing a YIELD sign on Langston at Kilmer. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Signs cost approximately $115. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community. 
 
Options: 

 Council can approve or deny the recommendations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Traffic Committee\2009 Minutes and Agendas\January 21\Recommendation Memo.doc 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-12



























campbellld
Text Box
F-13





















campbellld
Text Box
F-14















campbellld
Text Box
F-15









campbellld
Text Box
F-16

















 
 
February 17, 2009 
 
 
TO:               Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:          Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
          Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT:   Request for Public Hearing on March 23, 2009 for Community        

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2006 reprogramming of  
                     funds. 
 
Background: 
 
 The City of Troy is required by Oakland County Division of Community & Home 

Improvement to advertise and conduct a Public Hearing on the reprogramming of 
CDBG Program Year 2006 funds. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to request the public hearing. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The proposed public hearing is consistent with City Council Outcome Statement II, 

(Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure 
and quality of life venues.)  

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Council authorize a public hearing for March 23, 2009 at 7:30 

PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to consider re-programming 
CDBG Program Year 2006 funds. 

 
 
 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 03.02.09 – CDBG public hearing announcement 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-17



 1 

 
 
 
DATE: February 23, 2009 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: 

ZOTA 234) – Article 28 – Automobile Repair in M-1  
 
 
Background: 
 
 A public hearing is scheduled for the March 23, 2009 City Council meeting. 

 
 The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the February 10, 2009 

Regular meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 234.   
 

 The proposed amendment permits parcels that front on major thoroughfares or abut I-75 to 
be utilized for automobile repair.  This improves the potential for reuse for vacant industrial 
buildings in the City of Troy. 
 

 The proposed amendment permits automobile repair facilities without outdoor storage by 
right in M-1.  Presently, these facilities are permitted by Special Use Approval.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 2 

Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at 
the July 1, 2008 special Council meeting: 

 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 

quality of life venues. 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in 

a changing and interconnected world. 
 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 

 No action required until the public hearing on March 23, 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 234 City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Minutes from February 10, 2009 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 234 Auto Repair in M-1\Announce CC Public Hearing 03 02 08.doc 



1 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

ZOTA 234 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article III of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to permit 
automobile repair and service facilities by Conditional Use in the M-1 District, to read as 
follows: 
 
28.00.00 ARTICLE XXVIII  M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 
 
28.25.00 Conditional Uses Permitted: 
  The following uses shall be permitted in M-1 Districts, subject to the 

conditions imposed for each use: 
 
28.25.08 Automobile repair and service facilities, including engine, electrical, and 

mechanical repair, vehicle body repair, painting, rust-proofing, and auto 
glass work, subject to the following conditions: 

 
  A. Outside storage or display of vehicles, parts or equipment shall be 

prohibited unless the applicant receives Special Use Approval per the 
provisions of Section 28.30.04.  

 
28.30.00 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
28.30.07 Automobile Repair and Service Facilities, Including Engine, Electrical, and 

Mechanical Repair, Vehicle Body Repair, Painting, Rust-Proofing, and Auto 
Glass Work, Subject to the Following Conditions: 

 
  A. Such sites shall be within the interior of industrially zoned areas. They 

shall have their frontage on and access only to secondary or interior 
streets, and no frontage on or access to Major Thoroughfares or 
Freeways as established by the Master Thoroughfare Plan. 

  B. Outside storage or display of parts or equipment shall be prohibited. 



2 
 

 
  C. Retail sales shall be limited to those items necessary to carry out the 

vehicle service activities occurring on the site. 
 
  The uses permitted by this Section shall not include Automobile Service 

Stations, as provided for in Section 23.30.02 of this Chapter. 
   
  (Rev. 12-05-94) 
 
28.30.78 Commercial Kennels, subject to the following conditions: 
 

A. The site shall be no closer than three hundred (300) feet from any 
residentially zoned or used property. This distance provision shall not 
apply to residentially zoned land which is developed or committed for 
uses other than the construction of residential dwellings. 

 
  B. A Commercial Kennel establishment may include ancillary uses such 

as pet grooming and pet obedience training. 
 
  (Rev. 02-05-01) 
 
28.30.089 Indoor commercial recreation facilities, subject to the following conditions: 
 
  A. Off-street parking requirements shall be determined based on the 

Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
 
28.30.910  Retail uses, subject to the following: 
  

A. The retail use shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the gross 
floor area of a building that is used for industrial purposes. 

B. There shall be a functional relationship between the retail use and the 
industrial use, as determined by one of the following: 

 
i. The retail use sells only products, or products directly accessory 

thereto, that are manufactured or fabricated in the industrial 
portion of the building. 

 
ii. The retail use sells only products, or products directly accessory 

thereto, that are stored in the industrial portion of the building. 
 

C. For application B. ii. above, the industrial and retail uses shall have 
common ownership. 

 
D. For application B. ii. above, the building shall front on a major 

thoroughfare as classified on the City of Troy Transportation Plan.  
 



3 
 

  (Renumbered: 04-17-06) 

Section 3.  Savings 

 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2009. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 234 Auto Repair in M-1\Draft ZOTA 234 02 20 09.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 234) – 

Article 28.30.07, Automobile Repair and Service Facilities in the Light Industrial 
District 
 
Mr. Miller gave a brief summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.  He indicated a representative of the Building Department gave a 
thumbs-up relative to the intent and enforceability of the proposed amendment. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-017 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28, M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, pertaining to 
automobile repair and service facilities, be amended as printed on the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 234 Auto Repair in M-1\Draft PC Minutes 02 10 09.doc 



 1 

 
 
 
DATE: February 24, 2009 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: 

ZOTA 235) – Article 3 – Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and 
Special Use Approval Applications  

 
 
Background: 
 
 A public hearing is scheduled for the March 23, 2009 City Council meeting. 

 
 The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the February 10, 2009 

Regular meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 235.   
 

 The requirement for a full set of plans (including preliminary grading plans, preliminary 
elevations and preliminary floor plans) is excessive in some cases when the applicant 
proposes the reuse of an existing building, with no exterior site work. 

 

 The proposed amendment provides the Planning Director with the authority to waive 
required site plan information for site plans, including special use approval applications, 
when the proposal involves limited exterior site work.   
 

 Applications will continue to be routed for inter-departmental review. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 2 

Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at 
the July 1, 2008 special Council meeting: 

 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in 
a changing and interconnected world. 

 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 

 No action required until the public hearing on March 23, 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 235 City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Minutes from February 10, 2009 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 235 Application Requirement Revisions\Announce CC Public Hearing 03 02 08.doc 



1 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

ZOTA 235 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article III of Chapter 39 
 
Article III of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to provide the 
Planning Director with the authority to waive required information for Site Plan Review 
or Special Use Approval applications, to read as follows: 
 
 
03.40.00 SITE PLAN REVIEW / APPROVAL 
 
03.43.04 For a Preliminary Site Plan Application involving the reuse of an existing 

building without any significant exterior or interior modifications, including an 
application required for Special Use Approval, the Planning Director may 
waive any of the Submittal Requirements listed in Section 03.43.01.  The 
Planning Commission may request any of the waived information if it makes 
a finding that the information is needed to determine compliance with Zoning 
Ordinance requirements.  

Section 3.  Savings 

 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 



2 
 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2009. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 235 Application Requirement Revisions\Draft ZOTA 235 02 20 09.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 

 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 235) 
Article 03.00.00, Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and 
Special Use Approval Application Submissions 
 
Mr. Miller briefly summarized the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.  
He stated a revised draft version was distributed this evening that reflects a very 
minor revision in Section 03.43.04.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented favorably on the proposed text amendment.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the procedure of site plan review and approval 
with the implementation of the new text amendment.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-018 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 3, APPLICATIONS AND PROCEDURES, pertaining to 
submittal requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval 
Application submissions, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 235 Application Requirement Revisions\Draft PC Minutes 02 10 09.doc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 235 Application Requirement Revisions\Draft PC Minutes 02 10 09.doc 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final February 13, 2008 

 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Wednesday, February 13, 2008, 
at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chair 
McGinnis  called the meeting to order at 7:38 AM. 
 

ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   

Commissioner David Cannon    
 Commissioner Patrick Daugherty  

 

ALSO PRESENT: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Charles Craft, Police Chief 

 Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
 Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 
 Sergeant Robert Redmond, TCOA President 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

 
Resolution #CSC-2008-02-001 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 

RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the meeting of Monday, September 24, 2007 as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 

 

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:  
 

a.  Approval of Eligible List for Division Police Officer 
 
Resolution #CSC-2008-02-002 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 

RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the eligible list 

for Police Officer as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 

 

NEW BUSINESS:  

 

a. Election of Chairperson 

 
Resolution #CSC-2008-02-003 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final February 13, 2008 

 

-2- 

RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby ELECTS Donald E. 

McGinnis, Jr. as Chairperson of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) for a period of one 
year. 
 
Yes: All-3 

 

OLD BUSINESS: None 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: None 

 

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 7:42 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 
 



1 

 TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL September 29, 2008 
 
A special meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held Monday, 
September 29, 2008 at the Troy Museum. Barbara Chambers called the meeting to 
order at 7:02 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT Barbara Chambers 
   Anne Partlan 
   Muriel Rounds 
   Kent Voigt   
                        Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager   
           
  ABSENT       Sabah Jihad 
   Gary Castile 
   Paul Lin 
 
      GUEST    Dave Drouillard 
        5871 Hilmore 

 

Resolution #HDC-2008-09-001 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Rounds 
 
RESOLVED, That the absences of Jihad, Castile and Line be approved. 

Yes: 4  Chambers, Partlan, Rounds, and Voigt 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Resolution #HDC-2008-09-002 
Moved by Voigt  
Seconded by Rounds 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the August 19, 2008 meeting be approved. 

Yes: 4  Chambers, Partlan, Rounds, and Voigt 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. 5871 Hilmore 
Mr. Drouillard presented his plans to add a 3 car garage and a two-level deck to 
the historic resource at 5871 Hilmore. The following points were noted by the 
Commission: 

1. The plan is for a Greek revival style structure (40’ x 24’) that matches the 
style of the house 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



2 

2. The garage doors face north, not east towards the street. A pedestrian 
entry and a window are on the east side of the structure. 

3. There is a wheelchair-accessible ramp from east door to the deck along 
the south side of the garage. 

4. The garage is located west of (behind) the house, and away from the 
road. A new driveway along the north side of the house leads to the 
garage. There is an existing driveway on the south side of the house. 

5. Mr.Drouillard wishes to keep both driveways. He will check with the city to 
see if this is permitted. 

 
Resolution #HDC-2008-09-003 
Moved by Voigt  
Seconded by Partlan 
 
RESOLVED, That the request by Dave Drouillard, the owner of the historic 
resource  at 5871 Hlimore to add a garage and deck as presented be approved, 
pending approval by the Building Department. 
 

Yes: 4  Chambers, Partlan, Rounds, and Voigt 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
The special Troy Historic District Commission meeting was adjourned at 7:24 p.m. The 
next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, October 21, 2008 at 7:00 p.m. at The Troy 
Museum. 
 
 

 
                  

Barbara Chambers 
Acting Chairperson 

 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - FINAL October 2, 2008 
 
A Special Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday, October 2, 2008, at 
the Library’s conference.  Kul Gauri, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 7 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Kul Gauri 
   Lynne Gregory 

   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
                
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director 

 
Excused: Belinda Shelton Duggan, Joel Xu 
 
Guests: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
Resolution #LB-2008-10-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That  the agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 4—Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—none  
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
Gregory informed the LAB that Mary Elizabeth Harper, director of Romeo District 
Library, has been offered the SLC Director position.   
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS—none  
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review of Library Advisory Board Reference Manual—Lori Grigg Bluhm 
The City Attorney presented the LAB Reference Manual and informed the LAB 
that all city boards and commissions would be receiving manuals specific to their 
board or commission. Ms. Bluhm went through the material in the book tab by 
tab, and let the LAB know that documents and information can be added to the 
manual as necessary. 
 
Suggested items for inclusion: Current schedule of fines and fees; a copy of the 
Patriot Act policy.  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



 2 

Discussion over whether the American Library Association’s Bill of Rights/stance 
on Censorship should be included. Russ suggested that the LAB members 
review the collection development policy and the ALA information, which she will 
send, before including this information in the manual. The collection development 
policy could also be updated to reflect the ALA philosophy, if the board decided it 
was appropriate.  
 
Russ asked the LAB to review the entire manual and let her know if there is other 
information that should be included.  
 
Ms. Bluhm discussed specifically the powers of the Library Advisory Board, one 
of the tabs in the reference manual. The LAB is an advisory board, and is not 
involved in the day to day operations of the library, such as hiring and firing staff, 
overseeing the library’s budget, or approving expenditures. The LAB makes 
recommendations to city council and/or to the city manager. These 
recommendations are to be made through the Library Director, who is the 
administrator of the library. Proper procedure on how to do that was discussed.  
 

B. Discussion of Possible Usage of Café Space 
Russ presented her recommendation regarding use of the space formerly 
occupied by Steamers Café, and her rationale for making this recommendation. 
Discussion ensued. While some members of the LAB agree conceptually with 
this recommendation, they would like to see a layout of the space before making 
a final decision. Russ will have an outline of the space available at the October 
board meeting.  

   
Resolution #LB-2008-10-02 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the Library Advisory Board table making a decision as far as 
the recommendation for the café space until the October board meeting.   
 
Yes: 4—Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
Adjournment   
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:50 P.M. 
 
     _____________________________________ 

Kul Gauri 
Chairman 
 
 

Cathleen Russ 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL OCTOBER 21, 2008 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
October 21, 2008 at the Troy Museum because there was no new business. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, November 18, 2008 at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Barbara Chambers 
Chairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



1 

TROY HISTORIC COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL OCTOBER 28, 2008 
 
The regular meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Tuesday, October 28, 
2008 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. Rosemary Kornacki called the meeting to 
order at 7:36 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:     Rosemary Kornacki 

Kevin Lindsey 
Terry Navratil  
Brian Wattles 
Roger Kaniarz 

  Vera Milz 
  Andrew Lei, Student Representative 

Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager  
     
NOTE: Newly appointed board member Padma Kuppa had not signed the oath book 
and was not available for this meeting. She will attend in January. 
      
Resolution #HDC-2008-10-001 
Moved by Lindsey 
Seconded by Milz 
 
RESOLVED, That  the minutes of September 30, 2008 be approved 

Yes: 6 Kornacki, Lindsey, Navratil, Kaniarz, Milz and Wattles  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
  
Old Business 

A. Capital Projects 
Wagon Shop 
Mark Stimac has completed the specifications for the Wagon Shop lead remediation and 
staining. Loraine will get a requisition from purchasing to put out the bid 
 
General Store 
New double doors for the north entrance (Lange Street) have been ordered and will be 
installed before the end of the year. Adair Restoration is doing the work.  
 
Loraine is collecting prices to inject hydrophobic grout in the rod holes in the basement 
walls. Many of these holes are leaking during wet weather. 
 
Poppleton School  
Loraine is collecting prices for the masonry repairs to the chimney, cement wash and 
hand rail. 
 
Main Museum Building 
Akins Construction will complete repairs and correct the drainage pattern along the 
south wall near the restrooms for $550. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



2 

 
Caswell House 
Loraine is collecting prices to repair the waterproofing mastic on the building foundation. 

  

B. Programs  
 See attached reports.  
  

Loraine attended a Cultural Alliance workshop on GLCEs (Grade Level Content 
Expectations) for English Language Arts, Math and Science. The workshop 
revealed that the Museum Education programs are actually addressing a number of 
GLCEs in these subject areas. However this information has not been included in 
our education program brochure. Also, there are many ways that additional GLCEs 
can be addressed without significant changes to our programs. The interpretive 
staff will focus on this in 2009. 

 
C. Attendance 
 See attached reports. 640 people attended Trick or Treating on the Green. 

 
D. Collections 
    No new reports 
E. Grants 

The City was notified that the Kresge Foundation awarded a operations support 
grant of $40,000 to the Museum for the period of July 1, 2008 through June 30, 
2010. The first payment of $20,000 is scheduled for November 26, 2008. The 
second $20,000 payment will be provided in July 2009, predicated on receipt and 
approval by the Kresge Foundation of the May 2008 annual report. Acceptance of 
the grant goes to City Council on November 10. 

 
F. Filming at Museum 

Loraine attended an Oakland county On Film meeting. There is a growing market 
for filming major motion pictures as well as independent films and commercials in 
Oakland County. Troy and the Museum will be working with other communities and 
the County to provide information on site locations available in Troy. The Museum 
is especially attractive because of the diversity of historic structures available. 

 
New Business 

A. Expansion Update: Presentation on preliminary site plan concepts 
The Heritage Campaign Committee and Gene Hopkins presented an informal site 
plan review at the October 7 Planning Commission meeting. The Planning 
Commission was very supportive of the plan and encouraged development of a 
detailed Landscape Plan to mediate our requests for setback variances.  
 
The committee visited the Davisburg MI barn and is scheduling visits to barns in 
Pleasant Lake near Jackson, Macomb County, and Wixom.  
 

Over $1,700 in memorial gifts have been received by the Heritage Campaign 
following the death of Harriet Barnard. 



3 

 
Hopkins Burns Design Studios have provided cost estimates for the construction 
projects. They are generally in line with the Heritage Campaign estimates 
developed in 2006.  

 
 

B. Troy Historical Society Liaison Report 
The revenue from summer fund raisers included $49,000 from the Troy Traffic Jam 
and $807 from the summer Garden Party hosted by the museum staff. The Hand 
and Eye Show is scheduled on November 15, 2008.  
 
The Campaign committee hopes to apply for a Kresge Green Initiative Grant to 
support planning and implementation of a new green storm water management 
system for the entire village. 
 
The committee is also updating the format and organization of its business plan. 
The architects will provide new construction cost estimates by mid October. 

 
C. Reports and Communications 

Staff 
Paul Kamulski, a recently retired middle school teacher has been hired to fill the 
vacancy created when Laura Bunting moved into Kathrin Jaeger’s position.  
 
Kathrin Schwietale Jaeger gave birth to a healthy boy, Beo Maxamilian. 

 
Visitor 

 None 
 

Commission Members 
Padma Kuppa was approved by City Council to fill the vacancy on the Historical 
Commission. Padma will attend the next Commission meeting. 

 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:50 p.m. The next regular 
meeting will be held Tuesday, January 28, 2009 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village 
at 7:30 pm. 
 

 
                  

Rosemary Kornacki 
Chairperson 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final AmendedNovember 12, 2008 

 

 

 1 

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, November 12, 2008, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  
48084.   
 
The meeting was called to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 

 

Trustees Present:   Nancy Bowren 
Mark Calice 
Michael Geise 
Thomas J. Gordon, II 

     Martin F. Howrylak  
John M. Lamerato 
William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 
Phillip L. Nelson 
 
 

Minutes             
Resolution # ER – 2008-11-44 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the October 15, 2008 special meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 

 

 

Resolution # ER – 2008-11-45 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the investment transactions of the October 8, 2008 board meeting be 
reviewed. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 

 
 

Other Business – September 30, 2008 Investment Performance Report   
John Grant and Rebecca Sorensen of UBS reviewed our current corporate bond holdings 
and the September 30, 2008 investment performance report. 

 

 

Other Business – Prior Government Service       
The board received and filed the prior governmental service request of Roger Lynn. 
 

 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final AmendedNovember 12, 2008 

 

 

 2 

Retirement Request           
Resolution # ER – 2008-11-45A 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Bowren 
 
RESOLVED, That the retirement request of Marilyn J. Miller, DB, 10years 3 months be 
approved. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
 

Other Business – 2009 Employees’ Retirement System Meeting Dates   
Resolution # ER – 2008-11-46 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the board approve the 2009 meeting dates contained on the attached 
communication. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
 

Other Business – Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentive Programs  
John M. Lamerato reviewed the voluntary separation retirement incentive programs with 
the board.  The reports were received and filed. 
 

 

Investments            
Resolution # ER – 2008-11-47 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Gordon 
 
RESOLVED, That the board sell the following investments: 
 
  
Sell:   T Rowe Price 
   5,000 Goldman Sachs 
   5,000 calls Goldman Sachs Dec. 65/70 
   5,000 calls Exxon Dec. 80 
    
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final AmendedNovember 12, 2008 

 

 

 3 

Public Comment           
Mark Colombo former employee and retiree had some questions answered regarding the 
voluntary separation retirement incentive programs. 
 
 
The next meeting is December 10, 2008 at 1:30 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Conference Room 
C, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:10 p.m.  
 
 
_______________________________ 
 Mark Calice, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2008\11.12.08 – Amended Minutes_Final 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - FINAL November 13, 2008 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday, November 13, 
2008, at the Conference Room of the Troy Public Library.  Vice Chair Audre Zembrzuski 
called the meeting to order at 7:45 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Belinda Shelton Duggan 
   Lynne Gregory 

   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Joel Xu, Student Representative 
 
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director 
    

Guests: Julie Sigler, Dale Zygnowicz 
 
Resolution #LB-2008-11-01 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, to excuse Kul Gauri from the Library Advisory Board meeting. 
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2008-11-02 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the Library Advisory Board meeting, held on 
Thursday, October 9, 2008, be approved.  
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2008-11-03 
Moved by Duggan  
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the agenda for the Thursday, November 13, 2008, meeting, be 
approved. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



 2 

Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—none  
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS—Duggan told the LAB members that a “green” 
calendar she saw mentioned how it is environmentally conscious and “green” to 
use your public library. Zembrzuski told the LAB members how much her 
husband is enjoying the new HITS collection.  
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS—Joel Xu asked about the status of 
the café and what were the plans for that space.  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no Postponed Items. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Drive up book drop 
The Library Director informed the LAB members that the City Engineering 
department is reviewing the library site for a way to incorporate a materials return for 
the curbs/sidewalks. Russ will let the LAB know of the findings. She will also talk to 
the Community Affairs director to ascertain the best way to inform the public about 
the possibility (or lack thereof) of a drive up materials return. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approval of revised Behavior Policy. 
Resolution #LB-2008-11-04 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Public Library’s revised Behavior Policy be 
approved.   
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
B. Approval of Library Advisory Board Meeting Dates for 2009 

Resolution #LB-2008-11-05 
Moved by Duggan  
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the revised Troy Public Library Advisory Board meeting 
dates for 2009 be approved, with the start time of 7 p.m. instead of 7:30 
p.m. 
 



 3 

Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

C. Approval of Troy Public Library closed dates for 2009 
 Resolution #LB-2008-11-06 

Moved by Wheeler  
Seconded by Gregory 

 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Public Library’s closed dates for 2009 be approved, 
specifying that the library will be closed on January 19 for an in-service day.   
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

D. Discussion of what other documents should be included in the LAB reference 
manual. 

 Resolution #LB-2008-11-07 
Moved by Duggan   
Seconded by Zembrzuski 

 
RESOLVED, that the LAB members will review their reference manual and 
discuss this issue at the February 2009 meeting.   
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report  
TPL Annual Report  
 
Resolution #LB-2008-11-08 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Library Advisory Board receive and file the Director’s 
Report for October, and the TPL annual report 
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
   
 



 4 

Suburban Library Cooperative--Gregory 
Gregory attended his last SLC board meeting in October. He received a copy of the 
letter that SLC Interim Director Art Woodford sent to C. Russ regarding a possible new 
automation system for TPL. Sherry Hupp has been accepted the position of director of 
the SLC, her first day is Monday, November 17, 2008. An agreement between SLC and 
the Macomb Library for the Blind and Physically Handicapped was reviewed by the SLC 
board. The SLC bylaws were reviewed and amended to reflect recent changes to SLC 
board election rules. A few minor changes to the Urban Cooperation Act were also 
reviewed and approved.  
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library 
No Report 
 
Gifts 
No Gifts Received this month.  
 
Informational Items. 
Website address for Troy Public Library calendar:  
http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
Written comments from the public, received from October, were reviewed.  Russ 
mentioned that the library is receiving more compliments than complaints lately. 
 
Adjournment   
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 9 P.M. 
 
 

 
 
 

      _____________________________________ 
Audre Zembrzuski 
Vice Chairman 
 
 

Cathleen Russ 
Recording Secretary 

http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp


1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL NOVEMBER 18, 2008 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
October 21, 2008 at the Troy Museum because there was no new business. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, December 16, 2008 at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Barbara Chambers 
Chairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                           November 20, 2008 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
November 20, 2008 at the Troy Nature Center.  Chairman, Tom Krent called the meeting to 
order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Present: Gary Hauff, member  Tod Gazetti, member 
  Tom Krent, member   Meaghan Kovacs, member 
  Stuart Redpath, member  Jan Zikakis, member 
  Orestes Kaltsounis, member Divya Subramanian, student representative 
  Stuart Alderman, staff  Jeff Biegler, staff 
  Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Pauline Noce, Kathleen Fejes, Jeff Stewart 
 
Visitors:  Kristina Sabo, Stacey Yankee, Lori Bluhm,City Attorney 
 
Resolution # PR-2008-11-12 
Moved by Hauff 
Seconded by Gazetti 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes from September 25, 2008 are approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: All    7 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A.  Legal Update – Lori Bluhm, City Attorney reviewed the responsibilities of this board;  
the Sunshine Laws, FOIA, and the open meetings act. 

B. Troy Daze – Currently, expenses have exceeded revenue by $34,636 for 2008.  The 
Community Fair Fund (Troy Daze) is separate from Parks and Recreation.  No funds 
allocated for Parks and Recreation are used for Troy Daze.   

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A.  Park Naming, Section 36 – Some development of the park site located on Milverton 
has been completed.  The parking lot is under construction.  Benches have been 
installed and a path has been developed.   

 
Resolution # PR–2008–11-12 
Moved by Redpath 
Seconded by Kovacs 
 
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends to City Council that 
the process for naming what is now known as Section 36 park be initiated.   
 
Yes: All    7 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                           November 20, 2008 
 

B. Adult Sports-Non Resident Report – As described in the spring, there is no limit to the 
number of non-residents allowed to participate in the leagues.  Since this change, 
more than 300 non-residents participating in the adult leagues has generated an 
additional $10,000.  The two largest sports seeing an increase were soccer and 
summer softball.   

 
Member Comments:  Jan Zikakis inquired about reserving a room for the Evening Primrose 
group at the Community Center.  The room reservation paperwork was turned in late and a 
room was not available.  (Update:  No space is available for the dates Jan requested).    
 
Gary Hauff inquired about the resident next to Raintree Park that requested the screening.  
Carol Anderson explained that the expense for that planting was more than $4,000 and 
landscaping was installed to provide full screening at the time of planting.   
 
Staff Reports 
Directors Report – City Council was given a survey to complete regarding what services to 
consider cutting in order to reduce expenses.  The survey was discussed with regards to 
those items that pertained to Parks and Recreation.  The item listed “Operate the Nature 
Center as a park” was discussed.   
 
Resolution #PR-2008-11-14 
Moved by Hauff 
Seconded by Gazetti 
 
Whereas, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board understands that in this day of economic 
turmoil that City Council and management is projecting a deficit of five million dollars in the 
2009-2010 budget year and; 
 
Whereas, there is an understanding that the way the City does business will have to change, 
and  
 
Whereas, the survey that was completed by the City Council suggests a number of potential 
new revenues be implemented and a number of expenses cut, one of which is operating the 
Nature Center as a park. 
 
Whereas, our country is focused on green and environmental issues, and 
 
Whereas, the Nature Center has been a key facility for environmental education since the 
1970’s, and 
 
Whereas operating the Nature Center as a park would eliminate all nature based programs 
resulting in the loss of a key element of human understanding of the planet by Troy residents,  
 
RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board strongly recommends that the 
City Council not authorize staff to implement the operation of the Nature Center as a park.   
 
Yes: All – 7 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                           November 20, 2008 
 
 
Recreation Report – There are two new gift cards that were developed to replace the gift 
certificate.  One is for recreation and can be used at the Nature Center, Aquatic Center and 
the Community Center for any program or pass.  The second card is for the golf courses and 
can only be used there.   
 
Massage is now offered at the Community Center.   
 
Parks Report – Section 36 park, on Milverton, will have 67 trees planted beginning November 
24 from money received from the Community Development Block Grant.  Benches will also 
be installed along a pathway that was constructed last summer and a playstructure is 
planned for that park.   
 
Solar house is almost complete.  Plumbers are working and plan to have it done by mid-
December.  When completed the solar house will be open for guided tours.   
 
The park at the corner of Livernois and Town Center will have a shelter, benches, and a 
pathway.  The shelter will be available for rental next summer.  As a cost saving measure it is 
planned that perennials from around the City will be harvested and planted at that site.   
 
The cost of renting a park shelter will increase in 2009.  To rent a shelter for an entire day will 
be $80, and a half day, either morning or afternoon, will be $50.  It is anticipated that 
revenues will increase by $10,000 with this change.   
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:12 p.m. 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom Krent, Chairman 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Williams, Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL DECEMBER 16, 2008 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
October 21, 2008 at the Troy Museum because there was no new business. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, January 20, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Barbara Chambers 
Chairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES January 6, 2009  

 

 
TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 

Minutes for Tuesday, January 6, 2009 
 
 
 

I. Call to Order 7:10 pm 
 
II. Roll Call 
 

  Present Kelly Jones 
Grigore Buia 

    Cathy Francois 
    John Witt 

Reuben Ellis 
Michelle Haight 
Lily Huang, student rep 
Aries Tao, student rep 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 

 
 
  Absent Karen Yelder  

Veena Rao 
Mayada Fakhouri 
 

   
III. Approval of Minutes – October 14, 2008 

 
Motion by Kelly Jones 
Seconded by Michelle Haight to approve the October 14, 2008 minutes. 

 
IV. New Business 

a. Correspondence/Articles 
 
School District Tries to Lure Asian Parents – New York Times, 11/12/08 
 
Michigan Roundtable sponsoring a luncheon – “Opportunity for All” – Inequity, 
Linked Fate and Social Justice in Michigan – Friday, January 30 at Charles Wright 
Museum of African American History. 
 
Celebration of Freedom to Honor the Spirit and Memory of Dr. Martin Luther King, 
Jr. on Monday, January 19 at 8:30 am.  All are invited. 
 
b.  Introduction of new Board Members 
 
John Witt has been a resident since 2000.  Starting WSU for a Masters in Public 
Administration, member of Troy Optimist Club and Troy Toastmasters. 
 
Aries Tao is a senior at Troy High School and hopes to attend University of 
Pennsylvania or University of Michigan majoring in business. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES January 6, 2009  

 

 
V. Old Business 

 
 
a. Troy Daze – EthniCity Discussion.   

 
Serious thoughts on this topic – EIA Board needs to make a firm commitment if 
they decide to do this project. 
 
Cathy – would be willing to participate that weekend on a larger scale. 
 
Kelly – Organizations that participate do a great job, but it’s a lot of work for a 
few people.  Have we measured what the community gets out of it? 
 
Cathy – poster contest seemed important. 
 
Reuben – if we lose EthniCity, will it be missed? 
 
Michelle – Is there another way to embrace our diversity within the community?  
We might not need the tent but keep ethnic entertainment 
 
Kelly – Vendors are important to this event.  Participation has declined over the 
years.  This board has gotten more involved with the school district which goes 
with our goals. 
 
Michelle – propose the EIAB do the poster contest and promote themselves as 
a resource to Troy Daze Committee. 
 
Kelly & Cathy agreed.  They will leave themselves open to help the committee. 

 
Motion made by Michelle Haight that the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board sponsors a 
poster contest to celebrate/embrace diversity during the Troy Daze Festival and 
not coordinate the EthniCity tent.  Seconded by John Witt.  Motion approved 
unanimously. 
 
Further discussion – look at what other cities do and research if something on a 
smaller scale to fill void of EthniCity Tent.  Come back with ideas at the February 
10th  meeting.  Reuben will research Indianapolis, East Pointe, Southfield and Ann 
Arbor.  John will research Arizona. Other Board members will find communities 
with diversity events 
 

b. African American Support Group – next meeting will be Jan. 12, 2009. Board 
members will try to attend.  
 

c. Troy School District updates.  Kelly met with Costello PTO related to Diversity in 
Troy.  She encouraged more diverse activities at the school.  Principal very 
supportive but not a lot of reaction from the parents.  They have a school fair in 
March with one room that has Ethnic tables (run by one parent). 

 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES January 6, 2009  

 

 
As a Board, Kelly would like to see more connectivity among the schools.  Tim 
McAvoy is emailing Michelle’s cultural newsletter (Cultural Connections).. 
 
Cultural Connections – Team Troy:  Michelle and Padma Kuppa (Troy Interfaith 
Group) coordinated the second professional development program (administration, 
principals, vice principals) on Wednesday, December 10.  There were 50 people 
held at congregation Shir Tikvah.  The Jewish voice (Rabbi Arnie and Michael 
Silverstein) spoke about their customs, traditions.  The Chinese voice was Tai 
Chan retired from Gm/Troy resident – very dynamic and Heather Zhou (Hill/Larson 
parent).   
 
Mr. Chan shared Global Journeys in Metro Detroit– a multicultural guide to the 
Motor City.  www.globaldetroit.com.   
 
Next program: March 18 at Islamic Ctr. Muslim (AIGD) & African American voices. 
Evaluations have been outstanding towards the program. They also liked visiting 
many new places of worship. 
 
(1st October Program was Arab America & India voices) 
Last program is April – Hindu voice. 
 
Michelle will provide handouts to the EIAB from the program at our next meeting. 
 
Cathy will bring information on an Interfaith Retreat planned for the near future 
 

d. Cultural Brochures 
 
Michelle will e-mail Cindy info she has collected for the brochures (Arab American, 
Asian American, Slavic, Indian). Cindy she will format and bring copies to next 
meeting in February. 
 

VI. Member Comment 
 
Willie DeChavez (NAFA) invited Kelly to awards dinner Oct 2008 at Somerset Inn. 
Honored Filipino Americans who contribute to their community. Kelly was honored 
to represent EIAB. 
 

VII. Adjournment  8:30 pm 
 
Motion by Kelly Jones, seconded by Cathy Francois. Meeting adjourned. 

 
 
  Next Meeting Tuesday, February 10, 2009 at 7 pm  
 
_____________________________ 
Kelly Jones, EIAB Vice Chair 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Recording Secretary 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - FINAL January 11, 2009 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday, January 11, 2009, at the 
Conference Room of the Troy Public Library.  Chair Kul Gauri called the meeting to order at 7:01 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Belinda Shelton Duggan 
   Kul Gauri 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Nancy Wheeler (arrived at 7:10 pm) 
   Audre Zembrzuski 

  Cathleen Russ, Library Director 
    

Guests: Kathy McKinney, TPL Circulation Coordinator; Julie Sigler 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-1-01 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, to excuse Joel Xu from the Library Advisory Board meeting. 
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-1-02 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the Library Advisory Board meeting, held on Thursday, 
December 11, 2008, be approved, with one change. Joel Xu, the student representative, should 
be included in the roster of those who were excused from this meeting.  
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-1-03 
Moved by Duggan  
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the agenda for the Thursday, January 8, 2009, meeting, be approved, with 
the following changes:  Include “Introduction to the Circulation Department” after Postponed 
Items (this new item will be #10). Under “New Business,” add Item 12B, “Exhibit procedure 
approval.” Also add Item 12C, “ILS approval.”  
 
Yes: 5—Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



 2 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT—Julie Sigler commented that the MelCat system is a great service to the public.   
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS—Gregory has been volunteering with the RFID project, and gave 
the board members an overview of the process. All volunteers welcome and appreciated! Zembrzuski 
asked about a person who had volunteered at the museum and had not received a response as yet. 
C. Russ will follow up with Museum Manager Loraine Campbell.  
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS—none  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no Postponed Items. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Drive up materials return update 
The Library Director is getting pricing from city engineers about how much it would cost the city to 
reconfigure the parking lot to accommodate this project. The biggest expense is the cost of the 
materials return boxes (approx. $20,000/each). That expense would be put into the capital budget 
for next fiscal year. 
 
B.  Café Update 
The Library Director shared the Building Operations Director’s cost projections for the renovation 
of the café space. She will be taking a memo to City Council at their meeting on January 26, 2009, 
for approval for expending these funds to renovate the café area.  

 
Resolution #LB-2009-1-04 
Moved by Wheeler   
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, That the Library Advisory Board supports the proposed renovations to the café 
area.  
 
Yes: 5—Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Statistics July 2008 through December 2008 
  Russ reviewed the statistics with the Library Advisory Board   
 members.  

 
B. Exhibit Procedure Approval 
 

Resolution #LB-2009-1-05 
Moved by Gregory  
Seconded by Duggan 

 
RESOLVED, That the Library Advisory Board approves the revised Exhibitor Procedure, 
effective February 1, 2009. This Exhibitor Procedure supercedes all other procedures.   

 



 3 

Yes: 4—Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler 
No:  1—Zembrzuski  
 

MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
C. ILS Approval 
 

Resolution #LB-2009-1-06 
Moved by Duggan    
Seconded by Wheeler 

 
RESOLVED, That the Library Advisory Board supports the purchase of the Polaris system to 
replace SIRSI as the Troy Public Library’s automation system, because of the significant cost 
savings as well as the merits of the system, in terms of improved efficiency and usage for 
patrons and staff.  

 
Yes: 5—Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0  
 

MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report 
 
   
Resolution #LB-2008-1-07 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Library Advisory Board receive and file the Director’s Report, with 
commendation to the library director for all of her hard work. 
 
Yes: 5—Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
   
Friends of the Troy Public Library 
The Friends of the Library is having a Gift Shop Inventory Reduction Sale on Thursday, January 22 
and Friday, January 23. Jeanne Stine resigned as president of the Friends board; Jeff Stewart was 
named Interim President until officer elections are held in May.   
 
Gifts 
None this month.  
 
Informational Items. 
Website address for Troy Public Library calendar:  
http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp 
 

http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp


 4 

Contacts and Correspondence.    
The Library Advisory Board members reviewed the Visitor Comments.  
 
Adjournment   
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:50 P.M. The next meeting of the Library Advisory Board is 
Thursday, February 12, 2009, at 7 pm.  
 
 

 
 
 

      _____________________________________ 
Kul Gauri 
Chairman 
 
 

Cathleen Russ 
Recording Secretary 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final January 14, 2009 

 

 

 1 

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, January 14, 2009, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  
48084.   
 
The meeting was called to order at 1:30 p.m. 
 

 

Trustees Present:   Mark Calice 
Thomas J. Gordon, II (Departed at 2:00pm) 

     Martin F. Howrylak (Arrived at 1:35) 
John M. Lamerato 

     William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 
Phillip L. Nelson 
Thomas Rosewarne 

 

Trustees Absent:   Steve Pallotta 

 
 

Minutes             
Resolution # ER – 200-1- 01 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Gordon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the December 10, 2008 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent: Howrylak, Pallotta 

 

 

Other Business – Retirement Request        
Resolution # ER – 2009-1- 02 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the board approve the following retirement requests: 
  
 Dane M. Slater, Police, DB, 12/27/08, 36 years 
 Edward J. Murphy, Police, DB, 12/27/08, 34 years, 3 months 
 James D. Richards, Building Inspection, DC, 2/21/09, 14 years, 1 month 
 Bonny A. Avery, Library, DC, 2/21/09, 32 years, 7 months 
 Thomas A. O’Brien, Public Works, DB, 2/12/09, 31 years, 5 months 
 Joyce D. Flynn, Police, DB, 2/28/09, 24 years, 11 months 
 Steven K. Bauman, Water, DC, 2/7/09, 38 years, 3 months  
  
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent:  Howrylak, Pallotta 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final January 14, 2009 

 

 

 2 

Other Business – Election Results         
The Board received and filed the December 26, 2008 election results.  Thomas 
Rosewarne and Steven Pallotta were elected to terms expiring December 31, 2009 and 
December 31, 2011 respectively. 
 
 

Other Business – Election of Chair and Vice Chair      
Resolution # ER – 2009-1- 03 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the board appoint Mark Calice as Chair and Tom Gordon as Vice Chair. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
Absent:  Pallotta 
 

 

Other Business – Ordinance Amendment       
Resolution # ER – 2009-1- 04 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Gordon 
 
RESOLVED, That the board the board approve and recommend City Council approval of 
Section 61. – Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for retirement.  A copy of which will 
be attached to the original minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
Absent:  Pallotta 
 

  

Investments            
Resolution # ER – 2009-1- 05 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Lamerato 
 
RESOLVED, That the board sell the following investment: 
 
  
Sell:   American Express 
 
    
Yeas:  All – 6 
Absent: Pallotta  
 

 

 

 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final January 14, 2009 

 

 

 3 

Resolution # ER – 2009-1- 06 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Gordon 
 
RESOLVED, That the board purchase the following investment: 
 
 
Buy:   5,000 shares Chesapeake Energy 
 
    
Yeas:  All – 6 
Absent: Pallotta  
 

 

Resolution # ER – 2009-1- 07 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the board purchase the following investments: 
  
 
Buy:   $500,000 National Rural Utilities, 5.35% due 1/15/11 
   $500,000 Eaton Vance National Municipal Mutual Fund 
 
    

Resolution # ER – 2009-1- 08 
Moved by Calice 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the board amend the motion and purchase $1,000,000 of the Eaton 
Vance National Municipal Mutual Fund. 
 
  
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent: Gordon, Pallotta  
 
 

Resolution # ER – 2009-1- 09 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the original motion as amended be adopted. 
  
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent: Gordon, Pallotta  
 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final January 14, 2009 

 

 

 4 

Public Comment           
None. 
 
 
The next meeting is February 11, 2009 at 12:00 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Conference Room 
C, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:20 p.m.  
 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 
 Mark Calice, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JML/bt\Retirement Board\2008\1.14.09 – Minutes_Final 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL JANUARY 20, 2009 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
January 20, 2009 at the Troy Museum because there was no quorum. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, February 17, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Barbara Chambers 
Chairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JANUARY 27, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on January 27, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark J. Vleck 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-01-008 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted.  
 
Yes:  All present (8) 
Absent:  Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-01-009 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 13, 2009 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JANUARY 27, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat reported there was no Board of Zoning Appeals meeting in January. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported the DDA discussed strategies for improving the DDA district at 
their January meeting. 
 
Mr. Branigan updated the Planning Commission on the status of the DDA 
Development Guidelines. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller listed the items that were approved at the January 26, 2009 City Council 
meeting. 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
8. POTENTIAL ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Site Plan and Special 

Use Application Requirements 
 
Mr. Savidant presented the item. 
 
After discussion, the Planning Commission generally agreed to consider a text 
amendment that would provide the Planning Director with the authority to waive 
required submittal information for site plans, including special use approval 
applications. 
 
A draft zoning ordinance text amendment will be presented to the Planning 
Commission at the February 3, 2009 Special/Study meeting. 
 
A public hearing is scheduled for the February 10, 2009 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting. 
 
Mr. Miller suggested the Planning Commission consider Agenda item #10 
immediately after Agenda item # 8 because the items are closely related. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JANUARY 27, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2009-01-010 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To consider Agenda items #9 and #10 on this evening’s agenda in 
reverse order. 
 
Yes:  All present (8) 
Absent:  Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. POTENTIAL ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Automotive Repair in 
M-1 
 
Mr. Savidant presented the item. 
 
After discussion, the Planning Commission generally agreed to eliminate the 
requirement that automotive repair facilities cannot abut major thoroughfares or 
freeways.  Additionally, automotive repair facilities without outside storage of parts, 
equipment or automobiles are conditional uses and not special approval uses. 
 
A draft zoning ordinance text amendment will be presented to the Planning 
Commission at the February 3, 2009 Special/Study meeting. 
 
A public hearing is scheduled for the February 10, 2009 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting. 
 
 

9. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – Discussion 
with Representatives from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Branigan presented an analysis of existing zoning districts compared to 
potential zoning districts proposed by the Master Plan. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 





 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - FINAL February 3, 2009 
 
A Special Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Tuesday, February 3, 2009, in the Library’s 
small conference room.  Kul Gauri, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 2:30 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Kul Gauri 
   Lynne Gregory 

   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director 

 
Excused: Belinda Shelton Duggan, Joel Xu 
Guests: Leslie Witt 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2008-02-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That  the agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 4—Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—none  
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
Zembrzuski informed the LAB members that she thanked the Troy City Council at their meeting on 
Monday, January 26, 2009, for approving the cost of the café renovations.    
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS—none  
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review of Library Operating, Capital and Revenue Budgets 
The Library Advisory Board members reviewed the proposed operating and capital budgets for 
2009-10. The Library Advisory Board also reviewed revenue projections for 2009-10.  
 

Adjournment   
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 4:10 P.M. 
 
     _____________________________________ 

Kul Gauri 
Chairman 
 
 

Cathleen Russ 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 3, 2009 
  

 
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on February 3, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark Maxwell 
Michael W. Hutson Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-011 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted.  
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
Absent:  Maxwell, Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-012 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 27, 2009 Special/Study 
meeting as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 3, 2009 
  

 
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 235) – Site Plan and Special 

Use Application Requirements 
 
Mr. Miller presented the item.  There was general discussion regarding the text 
amendment.  The Planning Commission requested minimal standards and authority 
to require site plan information. 
 
 

6. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 234) – Automotive Repair in M-1 
 
Mr. Miller presented the item.  There was general discussion regarding the 
amendment.  The Planning Commission requested additional clarification relating to 
storage and display of autos. 
 
 

7. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) 
 
Mr. Miller presented the item.  There was general discussion regarding the Zoning 
Ordinance re-write.  It was determined that staff and Carlisle/Wortman Associates, 
Inc. should further develop the following: 

 

 Mission, Goals and Objectives 

 Questionnaire 

 Master Plan Summary 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 





BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, February 4, 2009 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES MEETING OF JANUARY 7, 2009 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of January 7, 2009 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  PHILLIPS SIGN & LIGHTING, 1850 W. 
MAPLE, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to erect six (6) walls signs with a total 
combined area of 172 square feet. 

Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect six (6) 
wall signs with a total combined area of 172 square feet.  The proposed signs include 
one sign that is 56 square feet, two signs that are 18 square feet, two signs that are 28 
square feet and one sign that is 24 square feet.  Chapter 85.01.05 (C) (5) allows three 
(3) wall signs, one of which shall not exceed 100 square feet; the other two (2) shall not 
exceed 20 square feet.  
 
In 1999 a variance was approved by the Troy City Council, for wall signs that included 
two signs that were 43 square feet, two signs that were 22 square feet, one 36 square 
foot sign, and one 34 square foot sign. 
 
Mr. Scott Riddle of Somerset GMC and Mr. Ed Phillips of Phillips Sign & Lighting were 
present. 
 
Mr. Phillips explained that the variance granted in 1999 was for 207 square feet and a 
total of six (6) signs.  They have reduced the size of the signs and therefore have 
reduced the amount of signage by 32 square feet.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01r



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what it was about this facility that would require a variance. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that the reason for this request was due to the GM logo. 
 
Mr. Kessler explained that in order for a variance to be granted, there has to be a 
hardship peculiar to this site that would justify granting a request. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that he feels the signage is necessary as this facility fronts on both 
Maple and Maplelawn and in order to remain competitive this signage is necessary.  Mr. 
Riddle had a depiction of the site and indicated that there would also be a “Good 
wrench” sign over the service area. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if all of these buildings were separate or connected. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that they are all interconnected and they have combined GMC and 
Pontiac.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the signs were already on the building. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that in order to meet their commitment to GM the facility, including 
signage, had to be completed by December 31, 2008.  If the signs were not installed 
they would not have complied with the requirements of GM. 
 
Mr. Evans explained that the petitioner had come to City Hall to speak with him and 
indicated what the problem was and asked what would happen if the signs went up 
before permits were obtained.  Mr. Evans told the petitioner that he would have to apply 
for a variance to this Board and all enforcement would be stopped until their case was 
heard. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the petitioner would do if this request was denied. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that they would remove the signs.  Mr. Riddle also informed the Board 
that the signs located on the glass in the building would be coming down. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the “Good wrench” sign could be made smaller. 
 
Mr. Phillips indicated that the proposed size of this sign is the smallest available.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked if any of the other signs could be made smaller and Mr. Phillips said 
that they couldn’t be made any smaller. 
 
Mr. Riddle also stated that the size of the Logo over the entryway is what GM says is 
scaled to the entry feature. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if all dealerships were to have the same size signs. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that the dealer has no say in the size of the signs. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the total square footage of the proposed signs would be. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that it is 171.86 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac said depending on how the Logo sign was measured they would end up with 
more square footage but with less number of signs.  Combining the three (3) sign 
elements over the front door the combined area may be less than 100 square feet. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the variance granted in 1999. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that based upon the minutes of the meeting, City Council had granted 
the original variance as they felt the petitioner met the requirements of their request. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that the original signs were larger and were two (2) colors.  They have 
cleaned up the front of the building and the proposed signs are much simpler and 
consist of white lettering. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked how large the Somerset signs are. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that they are 20 square feet and they have one facing Maple and the 
other facing Maplelawn. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Phillips said that in his opinion one of the hardships is identification of the dealer 
and brand.  The “Good wrench” sign will aid in directing customers to the service area of 
the building. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if there were other signs on the property. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that there is a pylon sign on Maple. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that is his opinion this site is identifiable and believes because it is on 
the corner of Maple and Maplelawn it has some of the best exposure in this area.  Mr. 
Kessler asked if there were any plans to change the pylon sign. 
 
Mr. Phillips said there are no plans to change the existing pylon sign. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

4 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Phillips Sign & Lighting, 1850 W. Maple relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
install six (6) wall signs with a total combined area of 172 square feet where Chapter 
85.01.05 (c) (5) allows three (3) wall signs, one of which shall not exceed 100 square 
feet; the other two (2) shall not exceed 20 square feet. 
 

• Configuration of building creates a hardship as it fronts on two (2) main streets. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  SENTRY SECURITY SYSTEMS, 1163 
SOUTER, for relief to install an electrified security fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to electrically 
charge a 10’ high fence at 1163 Souter to act as a security barrier.  Paragraph 4 of 
Chapter 83, prohibits electrically charged fences on any property throughout the City. 
 
Ms. Cindy Vaughan of Sentry Security Systems, LLC and Mr. John Westendorf of Old 
Dominion Freight Lines were present. 
 
Ms. Vaughan explained that this company is based in South Carolina and provides this 
type of fencing to provide security for commercial businesses as well as for personnel 
located on site.  This fence will provide a “jolt” to anyone touching it, but will not 
physically harm anyone.  It is used mainly as a deterrent and 95% of the customers felt 
that after the fence was installed, the sign indicating that the fence was electrically 
charged with 7,000 volts of electricity scared people away.  The fence sends out pulse 
electricity every 1.3 seconds.  This site has had three (3) break-ins in the last year and 
quite a bit of equipment has been stolen. 
 
Chief Nelson asked what happens in an emergency situation and explained that other 
businesses in Troy that have security fences, provide a lock box for the Police and Fire 
Department. 
 
Ms. Vaughan stated that anytime the circuit is broken an alert will sound to the security 
company.  Ms. Vaughan also stated that they have lock boxes available and it would not 
be a problem to provide one in this instance.  Ms. Vaughan also stated that if there was 
an emergency they could just “bust” through the fence. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Chief Nelson also stated that he had spoken to the Police Chief regarding this type of 
fencing and the Police Chief was not familiar with it. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated he had watched the DVD provided by the petitioner and asked if a 
live wire on the fence would charge the entire fence. 
 
Ms. Vaughan explained that the electric fence is attached at the gate and runs about 6” 
inside the perimeter fence.  Ms. Vaughan also stated that the electricity looks for the 
quickest way to ground. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if Mr. Stimac had any historic knowledge regarding the Fence 
Ordinance and electrically charged fences. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he did not have any specific knowledge on the development of 
those provisions of the Ordinance; however, the Fence Ordinance was established in 
the 70’s and since that time electrically charged fences have been prohibited. 
 
Ms. Vaughan stated that typically electrically charged fences were used for livestock. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked about the difference between a taser and this fence. 
 
Ms. Vaughan referred to page 13 of the company manual and stated that a taser gives 
out a jolt of electricity 19 times per second, whereas, this fence gives a jolt of electricity 
1.3 times a second.  Due to the shortness in duration of each jolt of electricity physical 
injury is practically non-existent. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there were other cases regarding electrically charged fences. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that some time earlier this same question came up regarding a property 
on Park Street and although the variance was granted, the petitioner did not electrically 
charge the fence.  Mr. Stimac asked how far from the perimeter fence this security 
fence would be installed. 
 
Ms. Vaughan stated that it would be installed within 6” of the perimeter fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that right now there is about 3’ of snow piled against the perimeter 
fence and asked how that would affect the electric fence. 
 
Mr. Westendorf stated the alarm they have now has gone off once because of a snow 
plow coming too close, but other than that the snow has not affected the fence. 
 
A discussion began regarding the possibilities of what could happen if a vehicle bumper 
were to come in contact with the electric wire and whether or not that vehicle would 
become electrically charged. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

6 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Vaughan wasn’t sure but did say an audible alarm would go off and there could be 
a quick jolt of electricity, but she did not feel anyone would be harmed physically.  Ms.  
Vaughan also stated that this fence is in compliance with the International Standard for 
Electric Security Fences and runs off a typical marine battery. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Chief Nelson stated that the Police Chief was not aware of any crime problem in this 
area and said that there are a number of truck terminals in the City.  If a variance is 
granted for this fence, it could be precedent setting and a number of other Companies 
could ask for the same type of variance. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if there were any electrically charged fences in any of the 
communities surrounding Troy. 
 
Ms. Vaughan said that she has just submitted an application to Bloomfield Hills.  Sentry 
Security retains liability and there is a service tech in the area.   
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he would like to know if there are any other locations in 
southeast Michigan that has allowed this type of fencing to be installed, and whether or 
not they were allowed based on a variance or an Ordinance change. 
 
Ms. Vaughan said that one of the requirements is that there is an existing perimeter 
fence and sometimes Cities will have them registered as a Burglar Alarm and some 
Cities have changed their Ordinance to allow for this type of fencing. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how high the fence was. 
 
Ms. Vaughan said that it is 10’ high, which is considered to be an optimal height.   
 
Chief Nelson said that he thought this matter should be postponed to allow some time to 
get a list of existing fences in Michigan and to be able to contact other jurisdictions to 
see how they handled this type of fencing.  Chief Nelson also said that he would like to 
discuss this more thoroughly with the Police Chief. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he understands the petitioner needs an answer but also thinks 
that more time and information is needed to make an informed decision as to what is 
best for this Community. 
 
Ms. Vaughan said that the best way is to change the Ordinance and indicated that she 
would be more than willing to work with the City in getting the Ordinance changed. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

7 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that it would have to be determined if this is something that is 
appropriate for Troy. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it would take a lot of work to change the Ordinance versus a 
variance.  Without a specific hardship, he also believes that granting a variance could 
be precedent setting.   
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Sentry Security Systems, LLC, 1163 Souter, for 
relief to install an electrified security fence until the next regularly scheduled meeting of 
March 4, 2009. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to present a list to the Board members of 
other electric fences in southeast Michigan. 

• To allow Board members to contact other communities that have allowed this 
type of fencing to see what steps they have taken. 

• To allow the Fire Department and Police Department the opportunity to gather 
further information on this type of fencing. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL MARCH 4, 2009 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – PREVIOUS ACTION. 150 – 250 – 350 STEPHENSON.  
 
Discussion regarding conditions placed on the variances granted by the Building Code 
Board of Appeals at their meetings of November 7, 2007, May 7, 2008 and June 4, 
2008.  Copies of the minutes of the meeting as well as a photo of the existing ground 
sign are provided for your reference. 
 
The Board determined that when the original variances were granted, it was with the 
stipulation that there would be no ground signs identifying the businesses that were at 
these locations.  This was intended to include a restriction on the type of sign that has 
been installed.  A letter will be sent to each petitioner giving them the option of removing 
these names on the ground sign, or filing a second appeal with this Board. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:40 A.M. 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES February 10, 2009  
 

TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
Minutes for Tuesday, February 10, 2009 

 
 
 

I. Call to Order   
 
II. Roll Call 
 

  Present Kelly Jones 
    Cathy Francois 
    Michelle Haight 

Karen Yelder 
Mayada Fakhouri 
Veena Rao 
John Witt 
Lily Huang, student rep 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
Grigore Buia 

 
 
  Absent Reuben Ellis 
    Aries Tao, student rep 
  
  Guest  Jill Myllyoja (friend of Cathy) 
 

 
   

III. Approval of Minutes – January 6, 2009 
 
Motion by Michelle Haight 
Seconded by Kelly Jones to approve the January 6, 2009 minutes. 

 
IV. New Business 

a. Correspondence/Articles 
 
Macomb Community College at the Lorenzo Cultural Center will have ongoing 
programs free of charge from February 28 – May 16, 2009.  Information is 
available at www.macombcenter.com or www.lorenzoculturalcenter.com. 
 

 
V. Old Business 

 
 
a. Troy Daze – EthniCity Discussion.   

 
Kelly found information from Farmington Hills and Eastpointe.  Eastpointe has a 
World Festival.  Any way we could do this on a smaller scale?  (miindia.com 
has all Indian events posted.) 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01s



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES February 10, 2009  
 
 
John Witt researched Gilbert, AZ.  They have a global village festival (as does 
San Diego), Parade of Nations, sell crafts, tents/booths of different countries, 
entertainment, ethnic food.   
 
Michelle noted that Chandler, AZ sponsors a children’s play (folk tale) and an 
Anne Frank cultural exhibit. 
 
In San Diego there is an international story teller, and a children’s tent with face 
painting, crafts and games. 
 
It was noted that EthniCity does come under Troy Daze and they already go 
after sponsors.  It’s hard to make this separate when it is under the Troy Daze 
umbrella.   
 
The idea that perhaps it was time to take a break from EthniCity for a year, but 
sponsor the poster contest.  The EIAB still wants to hold a poster contest, but 
cannot commit to organizing the EthniCity Tent with Booths.  The Board just 
does not have the volunteers to handle this event. 
 
Will the City celebrate our diversity if we don’t have EthniCity?  The EIA Board 
believes they will.  The Library offers great cultural programs.  We offer diversity 
training for the schools together with the troy Interfaith Group.  Perhaps expand 
to teachers, PTOs as well as the Business community and city employees. 
 
Board can also work with the Library to offer support for their programs.  Also 
offer information/programs to the community that the Michigan Roundtable 
offers as well as outreach to groups working on diversity in Detroit. 
 
Research more information/programs to add to our Diversity Resource Guide. 
 
Troy Interfaith Group and African American Support Groups are great 
resources that EIAB could get more involved with. 
 
Board agrees to sponsor poster contest and to notify the schools before the end 
of the year.  Cindy will e-mail the last five poster contest themes to the Board to 
generate ideas for the March meeting. 
 

 
b. African American Support Group – Michelle attended the January and February 

meetings at Baker.  Nadeen Brown does a great job and we should continue to 
support her.  Rosie Chapman did a presentation on Harriet Tubman.  The 
January meeting included math excel tutoring program, ACT prep and a 
bowling event over Winter break on February 17.   
 

        c.   Troy School District updates – The next professional development workshop is   
   March 23.  Michelle will bring materials to share with the EIAB.  Troy Schools   
 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES February 10, 2009  
 
  hired a diversity consultant named Roslyn Cox.  Michelle is going to talk to  
   her about speaking at the March Diversity Workshop and invite her to a future  
   EIAB meeting (May or June).  

 
c. Cultural Brochures -- Michelle will send information to Cindy to format and discuss 

at March meeting. 
 

 
VI. Member Comment 

 
Michelle said that Heather Zhou (she did Faces of China) is working with Michelle 
on a student exchange from China (10 students and 1 teacher).  They applied for 
a grant from TFEE.  They also plan to meet with L. Brooks Patterson for support.  
They will look for host families.  Lily told of a similar program with Japan last year 
and she will get info to Michelle on the teacher who coordinated this at Troy High. 
 
Kelly noted a program on PBS, “We Shall Remain,” that will air April & May.  It is a 
five-part mini-series on Native American culture and the history of our country.  
More information is available on www.pbs.org. 
 
Karen noted that February is Black History Month. 
 
Cathy handed out Michigan Roundtable for Diversity and Inclusion 2009 Interfaith 
Retreat scheduled for May 3 & 4. 
 
 

VII. Adjournment  8:14 pm 
 
Motion to adjourn was made by Kelly Jones, and seconded by Karen Yelder.   
Meeting adjourned. 

 
 
  Next Meeting Tuesday, March 3, 2009 at 7 pm  
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Kelly Jones, EIAB Vice Chair 

 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Recording Secretary 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on February 10, 2009, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:36 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-013 
Moved by:  Edmunds 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:36 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-014 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 3, 2009 Special/Study 
Meeting as submitted. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:36 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01t



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. PRESENTATION OF SERVICE COMMENDATION – Bill Cowger, Acacia 
Photography 
 
Mr. Cowger was not present to accept the commendation.  Chair Schultz read the 
commendation. 
 
 

[Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:36 p.m.] 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 364) – Pet Suite Retreat, 
Commercial Kennel, East side of Bellingham, North of Brinston (2300 Bellingham), 
Section 2, M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
The petitioner distributed revised site plans to the Planning Commission prior to the 
beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use and preliminary site plan.  He addressed compatibility issues 
relating to adjacent land uses, and reported the Planning Commission must find that 
the proposed use is compatible with adjacent land uses. 
 
Mr. Miller informed the Planning Commission that the revised plans distributed this 
evening have not been reviewed by the Planning Department.   
 
There was a brief discussion on existing surrounding land uses. 
 
The petitioner, Dino Giulietti of Ron Jona & Associates, 29000 Inkster Road, 
Southfield, was present.  Mr. Giulietti briefly addressed the proposed use and site 
plan design.  He said the existing surrounding land uses are light industrial and it 
appears that all business is conducted within the confines of the buildings.  Mr. 
Giulietti confirmed he is a registered architect. 
 
There was a brief discussion relating to the proposed screening material and dog 
run locations.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

3 
 

Karen Knopper of 26245 Michigan Avenue, Inkster, was present.  Ms. Knopper 
operates the Pet Suite Retreat in Inkster.  She addressed the following and stated 
she was proud to say there have been no complaints registered against the Inkster 
facility.   

 Capacity of dogs. 

 Hours of operation. 

 Outside play areas and play times. 

 Clean-up and disposal of dog waste. 

 Drop-off/pick-up times. 

 Dog run locations. 

 Screening. 

 Existing surrounding land uses. 
 
Discussion continued on: 

 Parking. 

 Storm water detention; catch basins, run-off of dog waste. 

 Entrance to facility; safety concern. 

 Screening; type and color. 
 
The Planning Commission asked the petitioner to provide a cross section of the 
synthetic lawn and a more detailed description of the screening inclusive of colors.  
Further, the Planning Commission would like the Engineering Department to review 
more in depth the storm water detention and grading on the site. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
The Public Hearing remains open. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-015 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item to the February 24, 2009 Special/Study meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

4 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 365) – Animal Advocates 
Veterinary Hospital, North side of Long Lake Road, East of Rochester Road (1047-
1055 E. Long Lake Road), Section 11, B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use and preliminary site plan.  Mr. Savidant advised members that 
sealed color copies of the office floor design were distributed prior to the beginning 
of tonight’s meeting.  He reported City Management recommends approval of the 
special use request and preliminary site plan.  Mr. Savidant further noted City 
Management would like to see additional landscaping provided on the site, with the 
understanding that this would require the deletion of off-street parking spaces. 
 
After a brief discussion, it was determined that the parking and sidewalk are located 
on the property, not in the right-of-way.  Discussion continued on parking at an 
angle to create green space and the effect of the condemnation on the property. 
 
John Hennessey of Hennessey Engineers, Inc., 13500 Reeck Road, Southgate, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Hennessey addressed the site relative 
to size, parking, landscaping, cross access easements and access drives.   
 
Discussion continued on: 

 Elimination of parking spaces 1 and 7 for green space. 

 Planting greenbelt/street trees in proximity of signage. 

 Curb cuts. 

 Parking breakdown/parking needs provided by petitioner. 

 Functionality of cross access easements. 

 Improvements to exterior of building. 

 Discussion with property owner to the east relative to cross access easement. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Weted, property owner to the east of the subject property, was present and 
represented the owner of Long Lake Plaza.  Mr. Weted addressed the need for a 
cross access easement and the intent to provide additional landscaping to the Long 
Lake Plaza site.  He said a shared parking agreement with the proposed veterinary 
use would be feasible. 
 
Mr. Forsyth stated that a shared parking agreement should be drafted should any 
parking arrangement go forward.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

5 
 

Resolution # PC-2009-02-016 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces to seventeen (17) when a total of twenty two 
(22) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space 
requirements for commercial kennels, as per Article XL.  This reduction meets the 
standards of Article 40.20.12. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval, pursuant to Section 22.30.04 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for 
the proposed Animal Advocates Veterinary Hospital, located on the north side of 
Long Lake Road, east of Rochester Road, in Section 11, within the B-3 zoning 
district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Parking spaces in the front be provided as landscaped area. 
2. Street trees will be provided. 
3. Approve landscaping changes administratively. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 234) – 

Article 28.30.07, Automobile Repair and Service Facilities in the Light Industrial 
District 
 
Mr. Miller gave a brief summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.  
He indicated a representative of the Building Department gave a thumbs-up relative 
to the intent and enforceability of the proposed amendment. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-017 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28, M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, pertaining to 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

6 
 

automobile repair and service facilities, be amended as printed on the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 235) 
Article 03.00.00, Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special 
Use Approval Application Submissions 
 
Mr. Miller briefly summarized the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.  He 
stated a revised draft version was distributed this evening that reflects a very minor 
revision in Section 03.43.04.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented favorably on the proposed text amendment.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the procedure of site plan review and approval with 
the implementation of the new text amendment.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-018 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 3, APPLICATIONS AND PROCEDURES, pertaining to submittal 
requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval Application 
submissions, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

7 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION – 2009 National Planning Conference in 
Minneapolis, Minnesota, April 25-29, 2009 
 
Mr. Miller briefly summarized the budget allowance that accommodates Planning 
Commission attendance at the national conference.   
 
Mr. Edmunds expressed an interest in attending, as well as Chair Schultz and Mr. 
Strat. 
 
Action will be taken at the February 24, 2009 Special/Study meeting. 
 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
Mr. Vleck addressed his absence at previous meetings.   
 
Mr. Maxwell addressed the clearing of snow from residential and commercial 
sidewalks. 
 
Mr. Miller announced Zak Branigan of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. would be 
in attendance at the March 3, 2009 Special/Study meeting.   
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:25 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Draft\02-10-09 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft February 25, 2009 

 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Wednesday, February 25, 2009, 
at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chair 
McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:30 AM. 
 

A. ROLL CALL: 
    

   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   
Commissioner David Cannon    

 Commissioner Patrick Daugherty  
 

ALSO PRESENT: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
 Gary Mayer, Deputy Police Chief 
 Keith Frye, Police Captain 
 Colleen Mott, Police Captain 
 Gerard Scherlinck, Police Captain 
 Sgt. Robert Redmond, TCOA President 
 Jonathan Makela, Human Resources Specialist 
 Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 

 

Vote on Resolution to Suspend Civil Service Commission (Act 78) Hearing Rules, 

Article III – Meetings, Section 4 – Order of Business 
 
Resolution #CSC-2009-02-001 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by Cannon 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby SUSPENDS Civil 
Service Commission (Act 78) Hearing Rules, Article III - Meetings, Section 4 - Order of 
Business and moves forward F. NEW BUSINESS to discuss and take action on Agenda 
Items: 1. Reappointment of Civil Service Member (Term Expired: April 30, 2008) and 2. 
Election of President/Chair. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 

F. NEW BUSINESS:  

 

1. Reappointment of Civil Service Member (Term Expired: April 30, 2008):  
 

Resolution #CSC-2009-02-002 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Cannon 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby REAPPOINTS Patrick 
Daugherty as the Civil Service Commission member with a term scheduled to expire on April 
30, 2014. 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-1u



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft February 25, 2009 

 

-2- 

Yes: Cannon, McGinnis 
No: None 
Abstain: Daugherty 
 

2. Election of President/Chair 

 
Resolution #CSC-2009-02-003 
Moved by Cannon  
Seconded by Daugherty 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPOINTS Donald E. 

McGinnis, Jr. as President/Chair of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) for a period of 
one year. 
 
Yes: All-3 

 

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

 
Resolution #CSC-2009-02-004 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 

RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the meeting of Wednesday, February 13, 2008 as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3  

 

C. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS: None 
 

D. REPORTS: None 
 

E. OLD BUSINESS: None 
 

F. NEW BUSINESS:  

 

3. Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Police Chief  
 
President/Chair McGinnis noted that three of the current potential candidates for Police Chief  
Have not been in the rank of captain for two years. He asked if this affected the process. 
 
Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director indicated that the Act includes a provision that 
under the current circumstances would make the Police Captains eligible to apply. 
 
Lori Bluhm, City Attorney agreed. City Attorney Bluhm noted that under the statutory 
provisions, there are four persons eligible for the position. 
 
 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft February 25, 2009 

 

-3- 

Resolution #CSC-2009-02-005 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Chief as 

PRESENTED, with the understanding that the current Troy police captains are eligible to test. 
 
Yes: All-3 

 

4. Appointment of Temporary Police Chief 
 
Resolution #CSC-2009-02-006 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby CERTIFIES that the 

City Manager’s nominee, Deputy Police Chief Gary Mayer, is qualified to serve as Acting 
Police Chief for the City of Troy for a period not exceeding three (3) months. 
 
Yes: All-3 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Chair/President McGinnis asked if it is possible to waive the testing for the police chief 
position as a cost savings measure if there is only one candidate. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm reminded the Commission that the statute requires the City to offer a 
competitive process, and that there would be a deadline for each of the eligible candidates to 
decide whether or not to test. She also mentioned that an eligible list is good for two years, 
and would be used if there were any future vacancies in the position, which may have some 
impact on the decision to test.  
 
Chair/President McGinnis asked that a Civil Service Commission (Act 78) meeting be 
scheduled as soon as possible so that they can move forward as quickly as possible to 
permanently fill the police chief position.  

 
City Attorney Bluhm would like to review the Open Meetings Act with the Commissioners at 
their next scheduled meeting. 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  
 
Resolution #CSC-2009-02-007 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by Cannon 
 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft February 25, 2009 

 

-4- 

RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby ADJOURNS the Civil 
Service Commission meeting at 7:45 AM. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 
 



 

 
 
February 16, 2009 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

 

SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services –  
January 2009  

 
 
 

Background 
 

 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 
BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented the on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through 
the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the Purchasing department’s official e-
procurement website used for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award 
information. It was a Purchasing goal that one e-procurement website would be 
operational for all functions. 

 
 

 

Financial Considerations 
 

 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for one 
(1) Fire Finders, one (1) roof light, one (1) Code 3 mini light-bar, one (1) green teardrop 
light, one (1) Code 3 V-Con siren, one (1) high back gray chair with wheels, one  (1) cash 
drawer with lock, one (1) each HP #10 & #11 print-heads, one (1) HP black cartridge, 
one (1) binoculars, one (1) Sentry roof light, one (1) EPSON black ink cartridge, one (1) 
HME air ride seat, one (1) overhaul light, one (1) dash light, two (2) siren speakers, one 
(1) hose testing manifold, one (1) Federal Signal PA300 siren, five (5) Street-hawk light-
bars, two (2) Canon inkjet cartridges, one (1) lot of brackets, one (1) Mini light-bar, one 
(1) green strobe light, two (2) HP #14 print-heads, one (1) Sony rear projection TV, one 
(1) Mini-edge light-bar, and one (1) Sony camera that were auctioned on-line through 
BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, on January 12, 2009 and closed on,  
January 26, 2009.   

 

 
1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



February 16, 2009 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – January 2009  
            
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
SUMMARY PROCEEDS    SUB-TOTAL  NET INCOME 

 BidNet Auction         $1,471.88    

     
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:      $1,471.88  

 FEES:   

5% - light-bars, TV, camera, sirens, fire finders & etc. ($73.60)   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:          ($73.60)  

Sales Tax +6% (Light-bars, sirens, TV and etc):       $88.31   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:            $88.31  

                                                         $   1,486.59 

 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing department. 

(Chapter 7, Sec 8), no perceived Policy consideration is associated with this item.  
 

Options 
 
 To report final results of January 2009 auctions to the City management. 
 
 No action required 
 
 
 
 
G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line–January 2009  

2 of 2 



 

MITN Auctions National Auctions   Auctions Main Menu     HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin Menu 

 
 

Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: ALL   

Reported on 1/28/2009 From: 1/1/2009  To: 1/31/2009 

Item ID  Date Sale Amount Tax Collected Charge Type of Fee  Auction Description Seller  

4286 1/26/2009 97.51 5.85 4.88 Sale  Fire Finders Bockstanz   

4291 1/26/2009 56.89 3.41 2.84 Sale  Roof Light Bockstanz   

4295 1/26/2009 57.99 3.48 2.90 Sale  Code 3 Mini Lightbar Bockstanz   

4297 1/26/2009 17.50 1.05 0.88 Sale  Green Teardrop light Bockstanz   

4300 1/26/2009 46.00 2.76 2.30 Sale  Code 3 V-Con Siren Bockstanz   

4312 1/26/2009 20.00 1.20 1.00 Sale  Exc. High Back, Gray Chair Bockstanz   

4314 1/26/2009 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  Cash Drawer w/lock Bockstanz   

4316 1/26/2009 4.00 0.24 0.20 Sale  HP 10 and HP 11 Printhead Bockstanz   

4319 1/26/2009 2.00 0.12 0.10 Sale  HP Black Cartridge Bockstanz   

4195 1/26/2009 26.50 1.59 1.33 Sale  Binoculars Bockstanz   

4294 1/26/2009 17.00 1.02 0.85 Sale  Sentry Roof Light Bockstanz   

4318 1/26/2009 2.00 0.12 0.10 Sale  EPSON Black Ink Cartridge Bockstanz   

4284 1/26/2009 52.26 3.14 2.61 Sale  HME Air Ride Seat Bockstanz   

4290 1/26/2009 27.01 1.62 1.35 Sale  Overhaul Light Bockstanz   

4292 1/26/2009 8.00 0.48 0.40 Sale  Dash Light Bockstanz   

4309 1/26/2009 67.00 4.02 3.35 Sale  Siren Speakers Bockstanz   

4288 1/26/2009 77.51 4.65 3.88 Sale  Hose Testing Manifold Bockstanz   

4301 1/26/2009 45.00 2.70 2.25 Sale  Federal Signal PA300 Siren Bockstanz   

4304 1/26/2009 67.89 4.07 3.39 Sale  Streethawk Lightbar #1 Bockstanz   

4342 1/26/2009 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Canon Inkjet Cartridges Bockstanz   

4287 1/26/2009 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Brackets Bockstanz   

4293 1/26/2009 57.00 3.42 2.85 Sale  Mini Light Bar Bockstanz   

4296 1/26/2009 37.00 2.22 1.85 Sale  Green Strobe Light Bockstanz   

4305 1/26/2009 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  Streethawk Lightbar #2 Bockstanz   

4320 1/26/2009 2.00 0.12 0.10 Sale  Canon Black Ink Cartridge Bockstanz   

4315 1/26/2009 14.00 0.84 0.70 Sale  HP 14 Printheads Bockstanz   

4285 1/26/2009 173.05 10.38 8.65 Sale  Sony Rear Projection TV Bockstanz   

4308 1/26/2009 75.00 4.50 3.75 Sale  Streethawk Lightbar #5 Bockstanz   

4306 1/26/2009 72.00 4.32 3.60 Sale  Streethawk Lightbar #3 Bockstanz   

4307 1/26/2009 68.00 4.08 3.40 Sale  Streethawk Lightbar #4 Bockstanz   

4298 1/26/2009 160.27 9.62 8.01 Sale  Mini-edge Lightbar Bockstanz   

4196 1/26/2009 35.00 2.10 1.75 Sale  Sony Camera Bockstanz   

  

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected 
date range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$1,471.88 $88.31 $73.60 
 

$73.60 $73.60 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=1&beginyear=2009&endmonth=1&endyear=2009&sortby=id
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=1&beginyear=2009&endmonth=1&endyear=2009&sortby=Date
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=1&beginyear=2009&endmonth=1&endyear=2009&sortby=Type
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=1&beginyear=2009&endmonth=1&endyear=2009&sortby=Seller
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4286
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4291
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4295
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4297
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4300
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4312
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4314
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4316
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4319
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4195
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4294
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4318
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4284
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4290
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4292
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4309
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4288
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4301
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4304
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4342
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4287
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4293
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4296
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4305
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4320
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4315
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4285
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4308
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4306
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4307
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4298
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4196


campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-05





campbellld
Text Box
J-06





  
  

TO: Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: February 24, 2009 
SUBJECT: Kocenda v. Troy et. al.  

 

David Kocenda has filed a delayed application for leave to appeal the dismissal of the lawsuit 
he filed in August 2007.  This latest filing is another of Kocenda’s several attempts seeking money 
from the City.   In his initial lawsuit, he named the City of Troy, Troy Police Chief Charles Craft, 
Captain Edward Murphy, Captain Colleen Mott, Lieutenant Richard Hay, Lieutenant Charles 
Pappas, and Lieutenant Robert Rossman as defendants.  He alleged that these Troy defendants 
provided false information about him to a prospective employer during a background investigation. 
He unsuccessfully argued that the Troy defendants’ alleged release of this information was 
defamation (Count I) and an intentional infliction of emotional distress (Count II).  The Troy 
defendants filed a Motion for Summary Disposition, arguing that the defamation claim was barred by 
the applicable statute of limitation, and also that Kocenda’s intentional infliction of emotional distress 
claims were barred by governmental immunity.  After receiving Troy’s motion for dismissal, Kocenda 
filed a motion asking to amend his complaint to add an additional claim based on an alleged tortious 
interference with an advantageous business relationship (interference with his possible employment 
with the Palm Beach Gardens Florida police department). 

Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Fred Mester denied the motion to add the additional 
claim, and dismissed the entire lawsuit against the Troy defendants on February 13, 2008.  Kocenda 
then filed an untimely Motion for Reconsideration on April 10, 2008.  Judge Mester denied this 
Motion on May 19, 2008.   Thereafter, Kocenda filed an untimely claim of appeal with the Michigan 
Court of Appeals.  Although we asked Plaintiff to voluntarily dismiss this appeal, Kocenda refused to 
do so, and we were required to file a motion to dismiss the untimely appeal.  The Court of Appeals 
dismissed Kocenda’s appeal on August 27, 2008, and also ordered Kocenda to pay the City’s costs 
in filing the motion.  Kocenda then filed a Motion for Relief from Order in the Oakland County Circuit 
Court, alleging the case should be re-opened on the basis of “newly discovered evidence.”  This 
“newly discovered evidence” was information from a retired City employee and associate in 
Kocenda’s private business venture.  This information was given in another case that was filed by 
Kocenda against his former business partners.  (That case has also been subsequently dismissed). 
The motion to re-open the case, based on this alleged “newly discovered evidence” was denied by 
Judge Mester on November 19, 2008. 

On the day before the filing deadline, Kocenda filed his delayed application for leave to 
appeal (February 13, 2009).  There is no appeal of right, but the Court of Appeals, in its discretion, 
can grant a delayed application if the panel decides that the case is worthy of consideration.  
Appeals are allowed generally only where a case presents unique issues or where there was a clear 
abuse of discretion in granting of the Motion for Summary Disposition.  The application also requires 
a satisfactory explanation for the delay in filing.  Kocenda has also filed a Motion to Expand the 
Record on Appeal.  According to this motion, Kocenda is asking the Court of Appeals to consider 
evidence that was not introduced in the circuit court.  We have filed a response to that motion.  We 
will also timely respond to the delayed application for leave to appeal (due March 5, 2009). 

Please let us know if you have any questions. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07


	AGENDA: March 2, 2009
	OUTCOME STATEMENTS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Legislative Update from State Representative Marty Knollenberg
	Portia Fields-Anderson will present the Michigan Recreation and Park Association Recreation Leadership Award to Carla Vaughan
	Certificate of Appreciation to the City of Troy from Clinton River Watershed Council for Continued Support and Membership


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions
	C-2 Liquor Violations – SDD & SDM
	a) Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid #2731)
	b) Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy (dba: Rite Aid #4305)
	c) 7-Eleven, Inc. (dba: 7-Eleven)
	d) Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8162)
	e) ADI Realty, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8242)
	f) MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market)
	g) K-Mart Corporation (dba: Big K-Mart No. 4082)


	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Board of Review b) City Council Appointments:  Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees and Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust and Liquor Advisory Committee
	E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations:  None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations: Historic District Study Committee
	E-3 Authorization to Negotiate Contract for Emergency Medical Services
	E-4 PEG Channel Protection in Response to FCC Public Notice DA 09-203 (CSR-8126, CSR-8127, CSR-8128, MB Docket No. 0913)
	E-5 Possible Tree Ordinance Revisions
	E-6 Cost Sharing Agreement for Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Facility Professional Engineering and Design Services
	E-7 Confirmation of Interim Appointment; Deputy Police Chief Gary Mayer as Acting Police Chief
	E-8 City Manager Resignation

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted
	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Emergency Radio P25 Equipment Enhancement
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 09-2 – 2008-09 Sanitary Sewer Extensions
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products – City Golf Courses
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – 911 – Customer Premise Equipment (CPE)

	F-5 Application to Transfer SDD License to Kroger Co. of Michigan – 1237 N Coolidge
	F-6 Application to Transfer SDD License to Kroger Co. of Michigan – 2105 W South Blvd
	F-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Dunham Capital Management, LLC – Section 28 – Sidwell #88-20-28-101-066
	F-8 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – NH Motel Enterprises, Inc. – Section 9 – Sidwell #88-20-09-151-004
	F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Giulio and Janice E. Grupido – Section 27 – Sidwell #88-20-27-351-016
	F-10 Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements – Quattro Development Company, LLC – Section 15 – Sidwell #88-20-15-428-015, -016, and -017
	F-11 Request for Acceptance of a Quit Claim Deed – 1075, LLC – Section 34 – Sidwell #88-20-34-226-044
	F-12 Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 21, 2009
	F-13 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #26 – Sidwell #88-20-2...
	F-14 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #12 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-023 – 5J’s Investment, LLC
	F-15 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #22 – Sidwell #88-20-14-352-001 – Maya’s Meadows Condomin...
	F-16 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #44 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-044 – Carlton P. Ostdiek Trust and Karen A...
	F-17 Request for Public Hearing on March 23, 2009 for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2006 Reprogramming of Funds

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 234) – Article 28 – Automobile Repair in M-1 – March 23, 2009
	b) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 235) – Article 3 – Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval Applications – March 23, 2009

	G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – February 13, 2008
	Historic District Commission/Final – September 29, 2008
	Library Advisory Board/Final – October 2, 2008
	Historic District Commission/Final – October 21, 2008
	Historic Commission/Final – October 28, 2008
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final Amended – November 12, 2008
	Library Advisory Board/Final – November 13, 2008
	Historic District Commission/Final – November 18, 2008
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – November 20, 2008
	Historic District Commission/Final – December 16, 2008
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – January 6, 2009
	Library Advisory Board/Final – January 11, 2009
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 14, 2009
	Historic District Commission Minutes/Final – January 20, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 27, 2009
	Library Advisory Board/Final – February 3, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 3, 2009
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 4, 2009
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Minutes/Draft – February 10, 2009
	Planning Commission/Draft – February 10, 2009
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – February 25, 2009

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – January 2009

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation to Cindy Stewart from Wolf Den Pack 1707 Regarding the Presentation at Troy Union Elementary School

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	J-5 Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding  Notice of Hearing for the Electric Delivery and Supply Customers of The Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-15751
	J-6 Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Federal Aid Funding for Major Roads – Stimulus Plan and FY 2013
	J-7 Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Kocenda v. Troy et. al.

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Discussion of Interim Appointment of an Acting City Manager and Recruitment Process for City Manager

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



